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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC.
GLOSSARY
The following terms are frequently used in the txthis report and have the meanings indicatedviel

“Used Core” — An automobile part which has beerdusehe operation of a vehicle. Generally, thedJ€ere is an original equipment (“OE”
automobile part installed by the vehicle manufamtand subsequently removed for replacement. Usegls@ontain salvageable parts which
are an important raw material in the remanufactuprocess. We obtain most Used Cores by providiedits to our customers for Used Cores
returned to us under our core exchange programc@siomers receive these Used Cores from consumhersieliver a Used Core to obtain
credit from our customers upon the purchase ofrdyneemanufactured automobile part. When sufficidsed Cores cannot be obtained from
our customers, we will purchase Used Cores frora bookers, who are in the business of buying alithgéJsed Cores. The Used Cores
purchased from core brokers or returned to us Ibyestomers under the core exchange program, aiah\whve been physically received by
us, are part of our raw material or work in prodesentory included in long-term core inventory.

“Remanufactured Core” — The Used Core underlyingaomobile part that has gone through the rematurdag process and through that
process has become part of a newly remanufactutedhabile part. The remanufacturing process takdseal Core, breaks it down into its
component parts, replaces those components thavtha reused and reassembles the salvageable cenip@f the Used Core and additional
new components into a remanufactured automobile Ramanufactured Cores are included in our on-fimmghed goods inventory and in the
remanufactured finished good product held for shleustomer locations. Used Cores returned by enestuito our customers but not yet
returned to us continue to be classified as Renaatwfed Cores until we physically receive thesedUSeres. All Remanufactured Cores are
included in our long-term core inventory or in domg-term core inventory deposit.
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC.

Unless the context otherwise requires, all refeesnio this Annual Report orForm 10-K to “the Company,” “we,” “us,” “MPA,” and “our”

refer to Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. and its subsidiaries. This Form 10Ky contain forward-lookingstatements within the meaning of

the Private Securities Litigation Reform Actf 1995. Such forward-looking statements involsksiand uncertainties. Oumactual results may

differ significantly from the results discussedimy forward-looking statements. Discussions contairsngh forward-looking statements me

be found in the material set forth under Item 7 dh&dgement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition desults of Operationsds
well as within this Form 10-K generally.

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, gretatements and other information with the Seiasriind Exchange Commission (“SEC”).
Our SEC filings are available free of charge tofghblic over the Internet at the SEC’s websiteratv.sec.gov Our SEC filings are also
available free of charge on our websitew.motorcarparts.con¥ou may also read and copy any document we fila wié SEC at its Public
Reference Room at 100 F. Street, NE, Washingto, P0549. Please call the SEC at (800) SEC-033fuftrer information on the operation
of the Public Reference Room.

PART |
Iltem 1. Business
General

We are a leading manufacturer, remanufacturerdastdbutor of aftermarket automotive parts for imnppand domestic cars, light trucks, heavy
duty, agricultural and industrial applications. &l our products predominantly in North Americahe largest auto parts retail and traditiona
warehouse chains and to major automobile manuferstfior both their aftermarket programs and theirranty replacement programs
(“OESH).

The current population of vehicles in the U.S.ppr@ximately 246 million and the average age o$éheehicles is approximately 11 years. We
believe the market for replacement parts is prilpalriven by the age of vehicles and the miles emniwVhile an aged vehicle population is
favorable today, miles driven continues to fluctuptimarily based on fuel prices. We believe d esremd replacement rates for aftermarket
automotive parts generally increase with the ageebfcles and increases in miles driven.

The aftermarket for automobile parts is divideaitwo markets. The first market is the do-it-yolfr§#1Y”) market, which is generally
serviced by the large retail chain outlets. Conssméo purchase parts from the DIY channel genenaditall parts into their vehicles
themselves. In most cases, this is a less expealemative than having the repair performed Ipyadessional installer. The second market is
the professional installer market, commonly knowritee do-it-for-me (“DIFM”) market. This marketserviced by the traditional warehouse
distributors, the dealer networks, and the comrakdivisions of retail chains. Generally, the cangu in this channel is a professional parts
installer. Our products are distributed to bothEi¥ and DIFM markets.

While both markets continue to grow and we contittugrow in both markets, we have distribution afela with all of the major retailers and
have grown share with them. In particular as vieduce our new products we are leveraging outiegiglistribution channels. The DIFM
market is growing faster and is an attractive oppuoty for growth. We are positioned to benefitrfrahis market opportunity in three ways: (i)
our auto parts retail customers are expanding #ftarts to target the DIFM market, (i) we sellrqaroducts under private label and our own
brand names directly to suppliers that focus orfigsgional installers, and (iii) we sell our produtd original equipment manufacturers for
distribution to the professional installer both ¥earranty replacement and their general aftermarkannels. We have been successful in
growing sales to this market.

We have two operating segments: (i) wheel hub alsbesrand bearings and (i) rotating electricaldurets which consist of alternators and
starters. In accordance with the authoritative anting guidance for segment reporting, we haverdeted that these operating segments
the criteria for aggregation and accordingly weehame reportable segment for purposes of recomtidgreporting our financial results.
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Discontinued Operation and Deconsolidation of Fenco

In May 2011, we purchased (i) all of the outstagdiquity of Fenwick Automotive Products Limited &PL"), (ii) all of the outstanding
equity of Introcan, Inc., a Delaware corporatiolm{focan”), and (iii) 1% of the outstanding equitfyFapco S.A. de C.V., a Mexican variable
capital company (“Fapco”) (collectively, “Fenco”aalso referred to herein as the “discontinued isiidny”). Since FAPL owned 99% of
Fapco prior to these acquisitions, we owned 100%agfco.

Between May 2011 and its bankruptcy in June 20&8¢cB had been attempting to turn around its busiré@wvever, revenues generated by its
undercar product line segment were not sufficierdrtable Fenco to meet its operating expensestahedidse implement its undercar product
line turnaround plan. Fenco had recurring operdtisges since the date of acquisition and had &imagcapital and equity deficiency.

In May 2013, FAPL appointed a new board of indegendlirectors, hired an independent chief restrirgjuofficer and all its previously
existing officers resigned from FAPL. As a resultass of control of Fenco, we deconsolidated thsets and liabilities of Fenco from our
consolidated financial statements effective MayZi11,3. On June 10, 2013, each of FAPL, Introcanlatrdcan’s subsidiaries, Flo-Pro Inc.,
LH Distribution Inc., Rafko Logistics Inc., Rafkodttlings Inc. and Rafko Enterprises Inc. (collediry¢he “Fenco Entities”), filed a voluntary
petition for relief under Chapter 7 of Title 11tbe United States Code (the “Bankruptcy Code’the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the District
Delaware. As a result of the loss of control of é&and the subsequent filing of the petition fdiefaunder the Bankruptcy Code, Fenco had
effectively been disposed of and we did not andataretain any continuing involvement in the opiersd of Fenco (see Note 3 of the notes to
consolidated financial statements). We may be stibgeclaims relating to the bankruptcy, as desdtiim Item 3 — Legal Proceedings.

Products
Our products include rotating electrical productstsas alternators and starters and wheel hub atissrand bearings.

Our products meet or exceed original equipment @@bwrer specifications. Remanufacturing generaigates a supply of parts at a lower

to the end user than newly manufactured parts aldemavailable automotive parts which are no longemufactured as new. Our
remanufactured parts are sold at competitively kquviees than most new replacement parts. We behewst of our automotive parts are non-
elective replacement parts in all makes and maafelehicles because they are required for a velic@perate.

We recycle nearly all materials in keeping with éagus of positively impacting the environment. Neall parts, including metal from the
Used Cores, and corrugated packaging are recycled.

The increasing complexity of cars and light truaksl the number of different makes and models afelvehicles have resulted in a significant
increase in the number of different automotive pegtjuired to service vehicles. We carry over 9800k keeping units (“SKUs”) for
automotive parts that are sold under our custonved®ly recognized private label brand names anrdQuality-Built®, Xtreme®, Reliance™
and other brand names.

Customers: Customer Concentration

We sell our products to the largest retail autowgotihain stores including AutoZone, Advance, Geatarts (NAPA), O'Reilly, and Pep
Boys, with an aggregate of approximately 16,008ireutlets as well as a diverse group of autoneotixarehouse distributors and OES
customers.

While we continually seek to diversify our custorbese, we currently derive, and have historicadigiveed, a substantial portion of our sales
from a small number of large customers. Duringdist014, 2013 and 2012, sales to our four largestbmers in the aggregate represented
87%, 82% and 78%, respectively, of our net saled,sales to our largest customer, AutoZone, reptedeb3%, 41% and 49%, respectively
our net sales. Any meaningful reduction in the lefesales to any of these customers, deterioraifamy customer’s financial condition or the
loss of a customer could have a materially advienpact on our business, results of operations fimadicial condition.
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Customer Arrangements; Impact on Working Capital

We have or are renegotiating loteym agreements with many of our major customensldd these agreements, which in most cases hdiz
terms of at least four years, we are designatédeasxclusive or primary supplier for specifiedezairies of our products. Because of the very
competitive nature of the market and the limitechber of customers for these products, our custofrare sought and obtained price
concessions, significant marketing allowances anterfavorable delivery and payment terms in consiilen for our designation as a
customer’s exclusive or primary supplier. Thesenives differ from contract to contract and carlude (i) the issuance of a specified amoun
of credits against receivables in accordance wibhedule set forth in the relevant contractsipport for a particular customer’s research or
marketing efforts provided on a scheduled basiy d{scounts granted in connection with each imdlinal shipment of product, and (iv) other
marketing, research, store expansion or productldpmnent support. These contracts typically regthie¢ we meet ongoing standards relatt
fulfillment, price, and quality. Our contracts withajor customers expire at various dates througrcMa019.

While these longeterm agreements strengthen our customer relatipsstiie increased demand for our products ofteminegjthat we increa
our inventories and personnel. Customer demandsvihaurchase their Remanufactured Core inventisky r@quire the use of our available
working capital. The marketing and other allowaneestypically grant our customers in connectiorbwvatir new or expanded customer
relationships adversely impact the neézmm revenues, profitability and associated camivslfrom these arrangements. However, we beliey
investment we make in these new or expanded custatationships will improve our overall liquidignd cash flow from operations over
time.

Competition

The market for aftermarket automotive parts is lyiglompetitive. We compete with several large aredlimm sized remanufacturers, including
BBB Industries and Remy International, and a largember of smaller regional and specialty remanufacs. We also compete with overseas
manufacturers, particularly those located in Chimag are increasing their operations and could imeca significant competitive force in the
future.

We believe that the reputations for quality anda@oer service that a supplier provides are sigaifidactors in our customers’ purchase
decisions. We believe that our ability to providelity replacement automotive products, rapid atidble delivery capabilities as well as
promotional support distinguishes us from manywf@mpetitors and provides a competitive advantagaddition, we believe favorable
price and extended payment terms are also veryriapocompetitive factors in customers’ purchasesiens.

We seek to protect our proprietary processes amet @tformation by relying on trade secret laws aod-disclosure and confidentiality
agreements with certain of our employees and qitbeons who have access to that information.

Operations

Production ProcessOur remanufacturing process begins with the readiptsed Cores from our customers or core brokers.Used Cores
are evaluated for inventory control purposes aed gorted by part number. Each Used Core is cosipldisassembled into its fundamental
components. The components are cleaned in a priowassmploys customized equipment and cleaningmadd in accordance with the
required specifications of the particular componétitcomponents known to be subject to major waaadl those components determined not t
be reusable or repairable are replaced by new coemts. Non-salvageable components of the Used &ersold as scrap.

6




Table of Contents

After the cleaning process is complete, the sal@blgecomponents of the Used Core are inspectetkatet] as prescribed by our ISO TS
16949 approved quality control program, which ipiemented throughout the production process. ISQG3I9 is an internationally
recognized, world class, automotive quality systeimon passage of all tests, which are monitoreddsjgnated quality control personnel, all
the component parts are assembled in a work delkifinished product. Inspection and testing aredacted at multiple stages of the
remanufacturing process, and each finished praduespected and tested on equipment designedngate performance under operating
conditions. Finished products are either storealinwarehouse facility or packaged for immediatersient. To maximize remanufacturing
efficiency, we store component parts ready formbde in our warehousing facilities.

Our remanufacturing processes combine product ii@sniith similar configurations into dedicated fagtwork cells. This remanufacturing
process, known as “lean manufacturing,” replacednlore traditional assembly line approach we hadgipusly utilized and eliminated a large
number of inventory moves and the need to trackniary movement through the remanufacturing proCesis lean manufacturing process
has been fully implemented at all of our producfiacilities. This lean manufacturing approach eeshis to significantly reduce the time it
takes to produce a finished product. We continuexfdore opportunities for improving efficienciesdur remanufacturing process.

Offshore Remanufacturing. The majority of our remanufacturing operationsrawe conducted at our facilities in Mexico and Ma&y We
continue to maintain production of certain remantufeed units that require specialized service an@foid turnaround in our U.S. facilities. In
addition, we operate a shipping and receiving wauieh and testing facility in Singapore for our pod.

Used CoresThe majority of our Used Cores are obtained frost@mers using our core exchange program. The caleaage program
consists of the following steps:

e Our customers purchase from us a remanufacturédaibé sold to their consume

«  Our customers offer their consumers a credit tdvamge their used unit (Used Core) at the time gmsemer purchases a
remanufactured uni

 We, in turn, offer our customers a credit to seadhese Used Cores. The credit reduces our accaagivable

Our customers are not obligated to send us alUexl Cores exchanged by their consumers. We hataribally purchased Used Cores in the
open market from core brokers who specialize infmgnd selling Used Cores. Although the open maskeot a primary source of Used

Cores, it is a critical source for meeting our raaterial demands. Remanufacturing consumes, oag@emore than one Used Core for each
remanufactured unit produced since not all Usedk€are reusable. The yield rates depend upon hethroduct and customer specifications.

The price of a finished rotating electrical prodseld to our customers is generally comprised ddrmount for remanufacturing (“unit value”)
and an amount separately invoiced for the Rematwuieat Core included in the product (“Remanufactu@ede charge”). The Remanufactured
Core charge is equal to the credit we offer to aedtihhe customer to use our core exchange progrdreeard back the Used Cores to us. The
ability to obtain Used Cores, materials and comptef the types and quantities we need is es$émibar ability to meet demand.

Purchased Finished Goods In addition to our remanufactured goods, we plsehase certain of our finished goods from varswspliers,
including several located in Asia. We perform digsmualification, product inspection and testiogassure product quality levels. We also
perform periodic site audits of our suppliers’ miauturing facilities. Finished products purchaseel either stored in our warehouse facility ol
packaged for immediate shipment. We currentlyawgeexisting Torrance, California facility to stoaad distribute wheel hub assemblies and
bearings.
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Return Rights. Under our customer agreements and general indpisigtice, our customers are allowed stock adjustsnghen their

inventory of certain product lines exceeds the imory necessary to support sales to end-user carsuistock adjustment returns). Customers
have various contractual rights for stock adjustmeturns which are typically less than 5% of usitfd. In some instances, we allow a higher
level of returns in connection with a significadate order. In addition, we allow customers tamegoods to us that their emder consume;
have returned to them. We allow this general rajhreturn regardless of whether the returned iteaefective. We seek to limit the aggregate
of stock adjustment and other customer returngydirg general right of return, to less than 20%ioit sales. Stock adjustment returns do not
occur at any specific time during the year.

As is standard in the industry, we only acceptrretdrom on-going customers. If a customer ceasagydusiness with us, we have no further
obligation to accept additional product returnsrfrtihat customer. Similarly, we accept product mefiand grant appropriate credits from new
customers from the time the new customer relatipnsrestablished. This obligation to accept refufrom new customers does not result in
decreased liquidity or increased expenses sincenlyeaccept one returned product for each unit solthe new customer. In each case, the
return must be received by us in the original bbthe unit sold.

Sales, Marketing and Distribution. We have one of the widest varieties of automotiaglpcts available to the market, and we market and
distribute our products throughout North Americar @roducts for the automotive retail chain maidet primarily sold under our customers’
widely recognized private labels. We have exparalegdales efforts beyond automotive retail chanistlude warehouse distribution centers
serving professional installers. We ship our prasliom our facilities and fee warehouses locateNorth America.

We publish, for print and electronic distributiancatalog with part numbers and applications ferpzaducts along with a detailed technical
glossary and informational database. We believievieamaintain one of the most extensive catalogmnduct identification systems available
to the market.

Employees

We had 2,270 employees and 1,852 employees at N4rck014 and 2013, respectively, in our continwdpgrations. Of these 302 employees
were located in the U.S., 6 in Canada, 1,722 initgeX251 in our Asian facilities, at March 31, 20¥Me had 155 administrative employees, o
which 25 were engaged in sales. A union represei85 employees at our Mexico facility. All othengloyees are non-union. We consider
our relations with our employees to be satisfactory

Governmental Regulation

Our operations are subject to federal, state aral laws and regulations governing, among othegthi emissions to air, discharge to waters,
and the generation, handling, storage, transporiatieatment and disposal of waste and other mbteWe believe that our businesses,
operations and facilities have been and are bgiegated in compliance in all material respects &jiplicable environmental and health and
safety laws and regulations, many of which provatesubstantial fines and criminal sanctions falafions. Potentially significant
expenditures, however, could be required in ordeomply with evolving environmental and health aaéety laws, regulations or
requirements that may be adopted or imposed ifutiee.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

While we believe the risk factors described belosvadl the material risks currently facing our business, additional risks are not presently
aware of or that we currently believe are immaterial maycaisipair our businessoperations. Our financial condition or results qferation:
could be materially and adversely impacted by these risksl, the trading price of ourcommon stock could be adversely impacted by any o
these risks. In assessinthese risks, you should also refer to the othearmftion included in orincorporated by reference into this Form 10-
K, including our consolidate financial statements and related notes thereto appg elsewhere orincorporated by reference in this Form
10-K.

Werely on a few large customersfor a majority of our business, and theloss of any of these customers, significant changesin the prices,
marketing allowances or other important terms provided to any of these customers or adver se developments with respect to the financial
condition of these customers could reduce our net income and operating results.

Our net sales are concentrated among a small nuohbenge customers. During fiscal 2014, salesuofour largest customers in the aggregat
represented 87% of our net sales, and sales tag@st customer represented 53% of our net salesare under ongoing pressure from our
major customers to offer lower prices, extendechpant terms, increased marketing allowances and tghas more favorable to these
customers because our sales to these customarsrarentrated, and the market in which we operaterng competitive. These customer
demands have put continued pressure on our opgratingins and profitability, resulted in period@ntract renegotiation to provide more
favorable prices and terms to these customersigndisantly increased our working capital needsatdition, this customer concentration
leaves us vulnerable to any adverse change inrtaedial condition of these customers. The losara significant decline in sales to any of
these customers could adversely affect our businesslts of operations and financial condition.

There may be claimsfiled against usin connection with the bankruptcy proceedings involving the Fenco Entities.

There have been and may be additional claims &itgadnst us by the trustee and some or all of thditors in connection with the bankruptcy
proceedings involving the Fenco Entities. For eplemthe trustee has notified our insurance congsattiat it may have claims for wrongful
acts, breach of fiduciary duty, civil conspiracigdiag and abetting, negligence and conversion. a¥éealso a defendant in a case in Ontario
Superior Court and in a case in the District Céarrthe District of Delaware claiming that we ai@ble for amounts due by the Fenco Entities
to their employees under U.S. and Canadian lawy ligation to determine the validity of theseiola, regardless of their merit or resolution,
may be costly and time consuming and divert thereffand attention of our management from our tassrstrategy. Any adverse judgment ol
settlement by us of these claims will also resuldlditional expense. We believe we no longer laayematerial obligations under any Fenco
agreements nor have we assumed any of the Fendogbimes. Others such as the trustee may netagith our position.

Our offshore remanufacturing and logistic activities expose usto increased political and economic risks and place a greater burden on
management to achieve quality standards.

Our overseas operations, especially our operatioliexico, increase our exposure to political, ériad or economic instability in the host
countries and to currency fluctuations. Risks aheerent in international operations, including:

. exchange controls and currency restrictions;

. currency fluctuations and devaluations;

. changes in local economic conditions;

. repatriation restrictions (including the impositionincrease of withholding and other taxes on teamces and other payments by
foreign subsidiaries

. global sovereign uncertainty and hyperinflatiorcéntain foreign countries;

. laws and regulations relating to export and impestrictions;

. exposure to government actions; and

. exposure to local political or social unrest inghgdresultant acts of war, terrorism or similar ietge
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These and other factors may have a material adeffieset on our offshore activities and on our bass) results of operations and financial
condition. Our overall success as a businessndispén part, upon our ability to manage our fonedgerations. We may not continue to
succeed in developing and implementing policiessirategies that are effective in each locationrehee do business, and failure to do so
could adversely affect our business, results ofatfmns and financial condition.

Interruptions or delays in obtaining component parts could impair our business and adversely affect our operating results.

In our remanufacturing processes, we obtain Usae<;primarily through the core exchange prograth wur customers, and component g
from third-party manufacturers. We generally pusghapproximately 120% of our Used Cores from core brokers. Histolycahe Used Cor
returned from customers together with purchasems frore brokers have provided us with an adequaelpof Used Cores. If there was a
significant disruption in the supply of Used Conebether as a result of increased Used Core atiquisiby existing or new competitors or
otherwise, our operating activities could be matsriand adversely impacted. In addition, a nundfehe other components used in the
remanufacturing process are available from a verigdd number of suppliers. We are, as a resulhenable to any disruption in component
supply, and any meaningful disruption in this sypgbuld materially and adversely impact our op&gtiesults.

Increases in the market prices of key component raw materials could increase the cost of our products and negatively impact our
profitability.

In light of the continuous pressure on pricing whice have experienced from our large customersnasenot be able to recoup the higher
costs of our products due to changes in the pdatesw materials, particularly aluminum and coppewe are unable to recover a substantial
portion of our raw materials from Used Cores reddrto us by our customers through the core excharaggam, the prices of Used Cores that
we purchase may reflect the impact of changesarctst of raw materials. However, we are unabtietermine what adverse impact, if any,
sustained raw material price increases may havaioproduct costs or profitability.

Substantial and potentially increasing competition could reduce our market share and significantly harm our financial performance.

While we believe we are well-positioned in the aftarket for remanufactured products, this markeery competitive. In addition, other
overseas manufacturers, particularly those locaté€thina, are increasing their operations and cbeltbme a significant competitive force in
the future. We may not be successful competingnagather companies, some of which are larger tissend have greater financial and other
resources at their disposal. Increased competithoid put additional pressure on us to reduce pricg¢ake other actions which may have an
adverse effect on our operating results.

Our financial results are affected by automotive partsfailureratesthat are outside of our control.

Our operating results are affected over the long tey automotive parts failure rates. These faihates are impacted by a number of factors
outside of our control, including, the age of car®duct designs that have resulted in greateabidity, consumers driving fewer miles as a
result of both high gasoline prices and the slowdawthe U.S. economy, and the average age of keshim the road. A reduction in the failure
rates of automotive parts would adversely affectsales and profitability.
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Our operating results may continue to fluctuate significantly.

We have experienced significant variations in ourual and quarterly results of operations. Thasedhtions have resulted from many fact
including shifts in the demand and pricing for pooducts and general economic conditions, includimgnges in prevailing interest rates. Our
gross profit percentage fluctuates due to numefaetsrs, some of which are outside of our conffbkse factors include the timing and level
of marketing allowances provided to our customacsijal sales during the relevant period, pricimgtsgies, the mix of products sold during a
reporting period, and general market and competitbnditions.

Our lenders may not waive future defaults under our credit agreements.

Over the past several years, we have violated dauof the financial and other covenants containexlr credit agreements, including our
current financing agreement with a syndicate oflégs, Cerberus Business Finance, LLC, as collaégeht, and PNC Bank, National
Association, as administrative agent. Our mostrresaiver was in June 2013. If we fail to meetfinancial covenants or the other obligations
set forth in our credit agreements in the futuneré is no assurance that our lenders will waiyesaich defaults. If obtained, any such waiver
may impose significant costs or covenants on us.

Our level of indebtedness and the terms of our indebtedness could adversely affect our business and liquidity position.

As of March 31, 2014, we had $97,277,000 of net debder our credit agreement and cash on hand45$92,000. Our indebtedness may
increase substantially from time to time for vagoeasons, including fluctuations in operating itssmarketing allowances provided to
customers, capital expenditures and possible atiqnis Our indebtedness could materially affeat lousiness because (i) a portion of our ¢
flow must be used to service debt rather than fieayur operations, (i) it may eventually impair ability to obtain financing in the future, ¢
(iii) it may reduce our flexibility to respond tdnanges in business and economic conditions oradkentage of business opportunities that
arise.

Our stock price may be volatile and could decline substantially.

Our stock price has fluctuated from $5.75 to $27d@fing fiscal 2014. It may decline substantiakyaaresult of developments in our business,
the volatile nature of the stock market, and ofhetors beyond our control. The stock market hasnftime to time, experienced extreme price
and volume fluctuations. Many factors may causentheket price for our common stock to decline, udohg (i) our operating results failing to
meet the expectations of securities analysts @sitors in any quarter, (i) downward revisionséogities analysts’ estimates, (iii) market
perceptions concerning our future earnings prospéed public or private sales of a substantiahier of shares of our common stock, and (v
adverse changes in general market conditions ovossiz trends.

Unfavorable currency exchange rate fluctuations could adversely affect us.

We are exposed to market risk from material movamenforeign exchange rates between the U.S. dafid the currencies of the foreign
countries in which we operate. In fiscal 2014, agpnately 13% of our total expenses were in curiesother than the U.S. dollar. As a result
of our extensive operations in Mexico, our primesk relates to changes in the rates between tBeddllar and the Mexican peso. To mitig
this currency risk, we enter into forward foreigttlkeange contracts to exchange U.S. dollars for béaxpesos. We also enter into forward
foreign exchange contracts to exchange U.S. ddar€hinese yuan in order to mitigate risk relate@dur purchases and payments to our
Chinese vendors. The extent to which we use forfi@gn exchange contracts is periodically revigwelight of our estimate of market
conditions and the terms and length of anticipagegiirements. The use of derivative financial instents allows us to reduce our exposure tc
the risk that the eventual net cash outflow resglfrom funding the expenses of the foreign openatiwill be materially affected by change:
the exchange rates. We do not engage in curreragukggion or hold or issue financial instrumentstfading purposes. These contracts
generally expire in a year or less. Any changéifair value of foreign exchange contracts is anted for as an increase or decrease to
general and administrative expenses in currenbgezarnings.
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We may continue to make strategic acquisitions of other companies or businesses and these acquisitions introduce significant risks and
uncertainties, including risksrelated to integrating the acquired businesses and achieving benefits from the acquisitions.

In order to position ourselves to take advantaggrofvth opportunities, we have made, and may coatip make, strategic acquisitions that
involve significant risks and uncertainties. Theasks and uncertainties include:

. the difficulty in integrating newly-acquired busgses and operations in an efficient and effectisamer;

. the challenges in achieving strategic objectivest savings and other benefits from acquisitions;

. the potential loss of key employees of the acquinesinesses;

. the risk of diverting the attention of senior magagnt from our operations;

. risks associated with integrating financial repagtand internal control systems;

. difficulties in expanding information technologyssgms and other business processes to accommbdateduired businesses; and
. future impairments of goodwill of an acquired besis.

Any of the foregoing, or a combination of them, kcbcause us to incur additional expenses, distreectagement and adversely affect our
business, financial condition, results of operagionliquidity.

Weaknessin conditionsin the global credit markets and macroeconomic factors could adversely affect our financial condition and results
of operations.

Any weakness in the credit markets could resusigmificant constraints on liquidity and availabyilof borrowing terms from lenders and
accounts payable with vendors. Modest economic gréawmost major industrial countries in the woaldd uncertain prospects for continued
growth threaten to cause further tightening ofdreslit markets, more stringent lending standardistarms, and higher volatility in interest
rates. The persistence of these conditions coud hanaterial adverse effect on our borrowingsthedvailability, terms and cost of such
borrowings. In addition, deterioration in the UegBonomy could adversely affect our operating result

Our reliance on foreign suppliersfor some of the automotive parts we sell to our customers or included in our products presentsrisksto our
business.

Certain of our automotive parts are imported frapmiers located outside the U.S., including vasicountries in Asia. As a result, we are
subject to various risks of doing business in fpnenarkets and importing products from abroad, sisch

° significant delays in the delivery of cargo dugtot security consideration

imposition of duties, taxes, tariffs or other cheg@n imports

imposition of new legislation relating to imporatas or other restrictions that may limit the ditarof our product that may be
imported into the U.S. from countries or regionsvéhwe do busines

° financial or political instability in any of the oatries in which our product is manufactur

° potential recalls or cancellations of orders foy product that does not meet our quality stands

° disruption of imports by labor disputes or strilesl local business practict

° political or military conflict involving the U.Swhich could cause a delay in the transportatioouwfproducts and an increase in
transportation cost:

° heightened terrorism security concerns, whichagubject imported goods to additional, more fredque more thorough inspections,
leading to delays in deliveries or impoundment @dds for extended perioc

° natural disasters, disease epidemics and headttedetoncerns, which could result in closed faesnieduced workforces, scarcity of
raw materials and scrutiny or embargoing of goadsipced in infected aree

° inability of our nol-U.S. suppliers to obtain adequate credit or adagsslity to finance their operations; a

° our ability to enforce any agreements with our iigmesuppliers
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Any of the foregoing factors, or a combinationteémn, could increase the cost or reduce the suggyoducts available to us and adversely
affect our business, financial condition, resuftsperations or liquidity.

In addition, because we depend on independent phiries to manufacture a portion of certain autiveqroducts, we cannot be certain that
we will not experience operational difficulties tvisuch manufacturers, such as reductions in thigability of production capacity, errors in
complying with merchandise specifications, insuéfit quality controls and failure to meet producttteadlines or increases in manufacturing
costs.

Our failure to implement and maintain effective internal control over financial reporting could result in material misstatementsin our
financial statements.

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“SJa¥quires our management to assess the effeedgeaf our internal control over
financial reporting at the end of each fiscal yaad certify whether or not internal control overdincial reporting is effective. Our independen
accountants are also required to express an opwithrrespect to the effectiveness of our integmaitrols. In the past we have identified
material weaknesses in our internal control oveairitial reporting in our discontinued subsidiavye cannot assure that additional significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses in our intezoatrol over financial reporting will not be idéied in the future. Any failure to maintain or
implement new or improved internal controls, or difficulties we encounter in their implementati@ould result in significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses, cause us to fail to meeteriogic reporting obligations (which may resultoar failure to maintain the listing standards
for our common stock) or result in material misstaénts in our financial statements. Any such faitould also adversely affect the results o
periodic management evaluations and annual aualitestation reports regarding the effectivenessuofinternal control over financial
reporting required under SOX.

An increasein the cost or a disruption in the flow of our imported products may significantly decrease our sales and profits.

Merchandise manufactured offshore represents apartr total product purchases. A disruption ia finipping or cost of such merchandise
may significantly decrease our sales and profit&ddition, if imported merchandise becomes mopeegive or unavailable, the transition to
alternative sources may not occur in time to meetdemands. Merchandise from alternative sourcesaisa be of lesser quality and more
expensive than those we currently import. Riske@ased with our reliance on imported merchandigduide disruptions in the shipping and
importation or increase in the costs of importeadpicts. For example, common risks may be:

. raw material shortages;

. work stoppages;

. strikes and political unrest;

. problems with oceanic shipping, including shippaumtainer shortages;

. increased customs inspections of import shipmentsher factors causing delays in shipments;
. economic crises;

. international disputes and wars;

. loss of “most favored nation” trading status by theS. in relations to a particular foreign country
. import duties;

. import quotas and other trade sanctions; and

. increases in shipping rates.

Products manufactured overseas and imported irt@J18. and other countries are subject to impaitintions and duties.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

Item 2. Properties

The following table sets forth the location, tygdarxility, square footage and ownership interastach of our facilities.

Approx. Leased Date of
Square or Lease
Location Type of Facility Feet Owned Expiration
Torrance, CA Remanufacturing, Warehouse, Administrative, andc€ 231,000 Leasec March 2022
Tijuana, Mexico (1. Remanufacturing, Warehouse, and Of 311,000  Leasec April 2015
Singapore & Malaysi Remanufacturing, Warehouse, and Of 65,000 Leasec Various through August 20
Shanghai, Chin Warehouse and Offic 27,000  Leasec March 201€

(1) We have an option to extend the lease term forasditional -year periods

We believe the above mentioned facilities are sigffit to satisfy our foreseeable warehousing, prtida, distribution and administrative offi
space requirements for our current operations.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

There have been and may be additional claims éitggdnst us by the trustee and some or all of thditors in connection with the bankruptcy
proceedings involving the Fenco Entities. For eplemthe trustee has notified our insurance congzattiat it may have claims for wrongful
acts, breach of fiduciary duty, civil conspiracigdiag and abetting, negligence and conversion. a¥éealso a defendant in a case in Ontario
Superior Court and in a case in the District Céarthe District of Delaware claiming that we aiable for amounts due by the Fenco Entities
to their employees under U.S. and Canadian lawy lhigation to determine the validity of theseiols, regardless of their merit or resolution,
may be costly and time consuming and divert thereffand attention of our management from our lassrstrategy. Any adverse judgment ol
settlement by us of these claims will also resuldditional expense.

We are also subject to various other legal procegdarising in the normal course of conducting hess. Management does not believe the
outcome of these matters will have a material asbvénpact on its financial position or future réswlf operations.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Globak8eMarket under the trading symbol MPAA. The faling table sets forth the high
and low sale prices for our common stock duringai014 and 2013.

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013
High Low High Low
1st Quarte $ 9.6C $ .7t § 10.0C $ 4,04
2nd Quarte $ 129 $ 827 $ 5.1¢ $ 3.9¢
3rd Quarte! $ 19.4C $ 12.3¢ $ 6.858 $ 4.22
4th Quartel $ 2727 $ 1851 $ 7.3C % 5.3C

As of June 9, 2014, there were 15,082,645 sharesroimon stock outstanding held by 20 holders dfnmetcWe have never declared or paid
dividends on our common stock. The declarationngfarospective dividends is at the discretion ef Board of Directors and will be
dependent upon sufficient earnings, capital requénets and financial position, general economic tant, state law requirements and other
relevant factors. Additionally, our agreement wotlr lenders prohibits the payment of dividends egxstock dividends, without the lenders’
prior consent.

Share Repurchase Program

In March 2010, our Board of Directors authorizezhare repurchase program of up to $5,000,000 obwtstanding common stock from time
to time in the open market and in private transactiat prices deemed appropriate by managemenproljeam does not have an expiration
date. Under this program, we repurchased and deditetal of 67,347 shares at a total cost of apprately $389,000 during fiscal 2013. We
did not repurchase any outstanding common stodkgldiscal 2014.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table summarizes our equity compeinsaplans as of March 31, 2014:

@) (b) (©)

Number of securities

Number of securities to remaining available for
be issued upon Weighted-average future issuance under
exercise of outstanding exercise price of equity compensation plans
options, warrants and outstanding options (excluding securities
Plan Category rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
Equity compensation plans approved by
securities holder 1,426,96/(1) $ 9.21 1,794,98(2)
Equity compensation plans not approved
security holders N/A N/A N/A
Total 1,426,960 $ 9.21 1,794,98

(1) Consists of options issued pursuant to our 2Q#I8y-Term Incentive Plan, 2004 Non-Employee Dise&tock Option Plan, and 2010
Incentive Award Plar
(2) Consists of shares available for issuance unde2@1@ Incentive Award Plan and 2014 I-Employee Director Incentive Award Ple
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative retarholders of our common stock for the five yeardieg March 31, 2014 with the
NASDAQ Composite Index and the Zacks Retail and \&$ede Auto Parts Index. The comparison assume3 %46 invested at the close
business on March 31, 2009 in our common stockimedch of the comparison groups, and assumesastiment of dividends.

Comparison of 5 Year Cumulative Total Return
Assumes Initial Investment of $100
March 2014

Companson of 5 Year Cumulative Total Retum
Assumes Initial Investment of $100
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected historical consolidated fingl information for the periods indicated beloastbeen derived from and should be read i
conjunction with our consolidated financial statemseand related notes thereto.

Our selected income statement data below represantsontinuing operations and excludes the resifiltise discontinued subsidiary
subsequent to its acquisition in May 2011. See Saiéthe notes to consolidated financial statement

Fiscal Years Ended March 31

Income Statement Data 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Net sales $258,669,00 $213,151,00 $178,551,00 $161,285,00 $147,225,00
Operating incom 32,104,00 34,314,00 26,574,00 25,384,00 18,307,00
Income from continuing operatiol 6,482,001 14,558,00 14,348,00 12,220,00 9,646,00!
Basic net income per share from continuing opemnatio $ 0.4t $ 1.01 $ 115§ 1.01 $ 0.8(
Diluted net income per share from continuing operet $ 04z $ 1.01 $ 1.1 §$ 0.9¢ $ 0.8(

March 31,

Balance Sheet Dat: 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Total asset $318,853,00 $364,969,00 $501,898,00 $191,865,00 $163,480,00
Working capital (1) 22,077,00 33,722,00 15,311,00 1,395,001 3,399,00!
Revolving loar 10,000,00 - - - -
Term loan 87,277,00 81,905,00 75,000,00 7,500,001 9,500,00!
Capital lease obligatior 318,00( 214,00( 463,00( 834,00( 1,398,00!
Other long term liabilitie: 26,340,00 15,464,00 10,526,00 9,984,001 7,056,001
Shareholder equity (deficit) $109,636,00 $ (3,514,000 $ 73,619,00 $117,177,00 $103,620,00

(1) The calculation of working capital excludes the @upof the discontinued subsidia
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations
Disclosure Regarding Private Securities LitigatiorReform Act of 1995

This report contains certain forward-looking stagems with respect to our future performance thatlive risks and uncertainties. Various
factors could cause actual results to differ matigrfrom those projected in such statements. THasers include, but are not limited to: the
bankruptcy of the Fenco Entities and related cqett liabilities, concentration of sales to certaiistomers, changes in the financial conditior
of or our relationship with any of our major custns, the increasing customer pressure for loweeprand more favorable payment and othe
terms, lower revenues than anticipated from neweatisting contracts, the increasing demands ommuking capital, the significant strain on
working capital associated with large inventoryghases from customers, any meaningful differenteden expected production needs and
ultimate sales to our customers, our ability teag@bainy additional financing we may seek or requite ability to achieve positive cash flows
from operations, potential future changes in oevjmusly reported results as a result of the idieation and correction of errors in our
accounting policies or procedures or the potentaterial weaknesses in our internal controls owemicial reporting, our failure to meet the
financial covenants or the other obligations sehfin our credit agreement and the lenders’ rdftcswaive any such defaults, increases in
interest rates, , the impact of high gasoline gricensumer preferences and general economic mgjitncreased competition in the
automotive parts industry including increased catitipa from Chinese and other offshore manufactyrdifficulty in obtaining Used Cores
and component parts or increases in the costoeétparts, political, criminal or economic instapiin any of the foreign countries where we
conduct operations, currency exchange fluctuationfyreseen increases in operating costs, and fatters discussed herein and in our other
filings with the SEC.

Management Overview

We are a leading manufacturer, remanufacturerdastdbutor of aftermarket automotive parts for mnppand domestic cars, light trucks, heavy
duty, agricultural and industrial applications. &l our products predominantly in North Americahe largest auto parts retail and traditiona
warehouse chains and to major automobile manuferstdior both their aftermarket programs and th&S@rograms . Our products include
rotating electrical products such as alternatotssarters and wheel hub assemblies and bearings.

The current population of vehicles in the U.S.pp@ximately 246 million and the average age o$éheehicles is approximately 11 years. We
believe the market for replacement parts is pritpalriven by the age of vehicles and the milesemniwVhile an aged vehicle population is
favorable today, miles driven continues to flucéuptimarily based on fuel prices. We believe d etnamd replacement rates for aftermarket
automotive parts generally increase with the ageebfcles and increases in miles driven.

The aftermarket for automobile parts is divideaitwo markets. The first market is the DIY markehich is generally serviced by the large
retail chain outlets. Consumers who purchase frants the DIY channel generally install parts inteir vehicles themselves. In most cases,
this is a less expensive alternative than haviegdipair performed by a professional installer. 3&eond market is the professional installer
market, commonly known as the DIFM market. This keais serviced by the traditional warehouse distors, the dealer networks, and the
commercial divisions of retail chains. Generallye tonsumer in this channel is a professional frastaller. Our products are distributed to
both the DIY and DIFM markets.

While both markets continue to grow and we contittugrow in both markets, we have distribution afela with all of the major retailers and
have grown share with them. In particular as vieduce our new products we are leveraging outiegiglistribution channels. The DIFM
market is growing faster and is an attractive opputy for growth. We are positioned to benefitrfrahis market opportunity in three ways: (i)
our auto parts retail customers are expanding #ftarts to target the DIFM market, (i) we sellrqaroducts under private label and our own
brand names directly to suppliers that focus orfigsgional installers, and (iii) we sell our produtd original equipment manufacturers for
distribution to the professional installer both ¥earranty replacement and their general aftermarannels. We have been successful in
growing sales to this market.
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We have two operating segments: (i) wheel hub alsbesrand bearings and (i) rotating electricaldurets which consist of alternators and
starters. In accordance with the authoritative anting guidance for segment reporting, we haverdeted that these operating segments 1
the criteria for aggregation and accordingly weehame reportable segment for purposes of recowtinlgeporting our financial results.

Discontinued Operation and Deconsolidation of Fenco

In May 2011, we purchased (i) all of the outstagdiquity of FAPL, (ii) all of the outstanding equif Introcan, and (iii) 1% of the
outstanding equity of Fapco (collectively, “Fen@aid also referred to herein as the “discontinudégisiiary”). Since FAPL owned 99% of
Fapco prior to these acquisitions, we owned 100%agfco.

Between May 2011 and its bankruptcy in June 20&8¢cB had been attempting to turn around its busirté@wvever, revenues generated by its
undercar product line segment were not sufficiergrtable Fenco to meet its operating expensesthrdrise implement its undercar product
line turnaround plan. Fenco had recurring operdtisges since the date of acquisition and had &imagcapital and equity deficiency.

In May 2013, FAPL appointed a new board of indegendlirectors, hired an independent chief restrijuofficer and all its previously
existing officers resigned from FAPL. As a restltass of control of Fenco, we deconsolidated thsets and liabilities of Fenco from our
consolidated financial statements effective MayZi11,3. On June 10, 2013, the Fenco Entities filedlantary petition for relief under the
Bankruptcy Code in the U.S. Bankruptcy Court far Bistrict of Delaware. As a result of the lossohtrol of Fenco and the subsequent filing
of the petition for relief under the Bankruptcy @oéenco had effectively been disposed of and @aal and do not retain any continuing
involvement in the operations of Fenco (see NadétBe notes to consolidated financial statemenfgg may be subject to claims relating to
the bankruptcy, as described in Item 3 — Legal &¥dngs.

The accompanying consolidated financial statemientade the accounts of Motorcar Parts of Amerina, and its wholly owned subsidiaries.
All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been etedind/e have classified Fenco operations as disemd operations |
the accompanying consolidated financial statemases result of the Fenco Entities voluntary petifior relief under the Bankruptcy Code in
the U.S. Bankruptcy Court of the District of Dela@n June 10, 2013. Correspondingly, reclassifinatof Fenco’s assets, liabilities, and
operations for prior year periods to discontinupdrations have been made to conform to the cuyesarts presentation.

Critical Accounting Policies

We prepare our consolidated financial statemenée@ordance with generally accepted accountingiplies, or GAAP, in the United States.
Our significant accounting policies are discussedatail below and in Note 2 of the notes to cadstéd financial statements.

In preparing our consolidated financial statementsuse estimates and assumptions for matteratbanherently uncertain. We base our
estimates on historical experiences and reasolablenptions. Our use of estimates and assumpfi@es the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities and the amount and timing of revenued axpenses we recognize for and during the repp&riod. Actual results may differ from
our estimates.

Our remanufacturing operations require that we medused Cores, a hecessary raw material, frontestomers and offer our customers
marketing and other allowances that impact reveaaegnition. These elements of our business géeeta accounting issues that are more
complex than many businesses our size or largexddiition, the relevant accounting standards asukis continue to evolve.

I nventory

Nor-core Inventory
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Non-core inventory is comprised of (i) non-core rawtenils, (ii) the non-core value of work in proce@s) the non-core value of
remanufactured finished goods, and (iv) purchaseshfed goods. Used Cores, the Used Core valu®d in process and the Remanufacture
Core portion of finished goods are classified agjlterm core inventory as described below undec#pion “Long-term Core Inventory.”
Used Cores are a source of raw materials usecim#nufacturing of our rotating electrical products

Non-core inventory is stated at the lower of cost arket. The cost of non-core remanufactured invgrapproximates average historical
purchase prices paid for raw materials, and isdapen the direct costs of material and an allocadif labor and variable and fixed overhead
costs. The cost of purchased finished goods inveripproximates average historical purchase ppeaés, and an allocation of fixed overhead
costs. The cost of non-core inventory is evaluatddast quarterly during the fiscal year and admisis necessary to reflect current lower of
cost or market levels. These adjustments are ditedhfior individual items of inventory within eaofithe three classifications of non-core
inventory as follows:

* Non-core raw materials are recorded at average cbéthvis based on the actual purchase price of raverals on hand. The average
cost is updated quarterly. This average cost id irsthe inventory costing process and is the Hasiallocation of materials to
finished goods during the production proce

» Non-core work in process is in various stages of petidn and is valued at the average cost of mateisalied to the open work
orders. Historically, nc-core work in process inventory has not been matesiapared to the total n-core inventory balanc

* The cost of remanufactured finished goods includesaverage cost of nawre raw materials and allocations of labor andabéde anc
fixed overhead. The allocations of labor and vdeamnd fixed overhead costs are determined baséuecaverage actual use of the
production facilities over the prior twelve montlikich approximates normal capacity. This method/@nés the distortion in allocat
labor and overhead costs that would occur durimgtgeriods of abnormally low or high production.dddition, we exclude certain
unallocated overhead such as severance costscatiy®i facility overhead costs, and spoilage fromdalculation and expense these
unallocated overhead as period costs. For thel figeas ended March 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, oéstsproximately $1,070,000,
$1,561,000, and $1,410,000, respectively, wereidered unallocated overhead charged directly tb @bsales and thus excluded
from the calculation of cost for remanufacturedsiired goods

We record an allowance for potentially excess dmblete inventory based upon recent sales hidfeeyquantity of inventory on-hand, and a
forecast of potential use of the inventory. We gdigally review inventory to identify excess quéies and part numbers that are experienc
reduction in demand. Any part numbers with quagitdentified during this process are reservea@foates based upon management’s
judgment, historical rates, and consideration afsgale scrap and liquidation values which may bhigls as 100% of cost if no liquidatit
market exists for the part.

The quantity thresholds and reserve rates are &idgeand are based on management’s judgment angll&dge of current and projected
industry demand. The reserve estimates may, thesdfe revised if there are changes in the overaiket for our products or market changes
that in management’s judgment, impact our abibitgell or liquidate potentially excess or obsoletentory. We recorded $2,708,000 and
$2,498,000 for excess and obsolete inventory atiMad, 2014 and 2013, respectively. This increaa pvimarily recorded in our non-core
inventory due to the increased inventory levels.

We record vendor discounts as reductions of inv@gdhat are recognized as reductions to costlesas the inventories are sold.
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Inventory Unreturnet

Inventory unreturned represents our estimate, baséstorical data and prospective informatiorvded directly by the customer, of finished
goods shipped to customers that we expect to benel, under our general right of return policyeathe balance sheet date. Because all cor
are classified separately as long-term assetsnvleatory unreturned balance includes only the dddet value of a finished good. The return
rate is calculated based on expected returns witleimormal operating cycle of one year. As suoh rélated amounts are classified in current
assets.

Inventory unreturned is valued in the same mans@ua finished goods inventory.
Long-term Core Inventory
Long-term core inventory consists of:
e Used Cores purchased from core brokers and héfty@mtory at our facilities
e Used Cores returned by our customers and heldraniory at our facilities

* Used Cores returned by end-users to customersobyenreturned to us which are classified as Rerfzentured Cores until they are
physically received by u

 Remanufactured Cores held in finished goods invgrabour facilities; an

 Remanufactured Cores held at customer locatioaspast of the finished goods sold to the custofRer.these Remanufactured Col
we expect the finished good containing the Remantufad Core to be returned under our general a§hgturn policy or a similar
Used Core to be returned to us by the customeadh case, for cred

Long-term core inventory is recorded at averag®hisal purchase prices determined based on aptuahases of inventory on hand. The cost
and market value of Used Cores for which sufficietent purchases have occurred are deemed theasatme purchase price for purchases
that are made in arm’s length transactions.

Long-term core inventory recorded at average hicdbpurchase prices is primarily made up of Usede8 for newer products related to more
recent automobile models or products for whichehsra less liquid market. We must purchase thesel (Cores from core brokers because ol
customers do not have a sufficient supply of thesger Used Cores available for the core exchanogram.

Used Cores obtained in core broker transactionsalved based on average purchase price. The avpurghase price of Used Cores for ir
recent automobile models is retained as the coshése Used Cores in subsequent periods evemr astince of these Used Cores shifts to oul
core exchange program.

Long-term core inventory is recorded at the lower oft cmsnarket value. In the absence of sufficienere@urchases, we use core broker
lists to assess whether Used Core cost exceeds@isednarket value on an item by item basis. Tivaguy reason for the insufficient recent
purchases is that we obtain most of our Used Guenitory from the customer core exchange program.

We classify all of our core inventories as long¥terssets. The determination of the long-term diaasion is based on our view that the value
of the cores is not consumed or realized in casimglour normal operating cycle, which is one yeamost of the cores recorded in invent
According to guidance provided under the Finand@dounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Stards Codification (“ASC"),

current assets are defined as “assets or resormoasonly identified as those which are reasonakpeeted to be realized in cash or sold or
consumed during the normal operating cycle of t&ress.” We do not believe that core inventomdsch we classify as long-term, are
consumed because the credits issued upon the mdtulsed Cores offset the amounts invoiced wherRéiimanufactured Cores included in
finished goods were sold. We do not expect the tmentories to be consumed, and thus we do naabtp realize cash, until our relationship
with a customer ends, a possibility that we considmote based on existing long-term customer ageeés and historical experience.
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However, historically for a portion of finished gtosold, our customer will not send us a Used @pabtain the credit we offer under our ¢
exchange program. Therefore, based on our hist@#tinate, we relieve the core value for thesislfiad goods upon sale, as we believe they
have been consumed and we have realized cash.

We realize cash for only the core exchange progfaontfall. This shortfall represents the historidéflerence between the number of finished
goods shipped to customers and the number of UsessCeturned to us by customers. We do not readigh for the remaining portion of the
cores because the credits issued upon the retlseaaf Cores offset the amounts invoiced when theadRefactured Cores included in finished
goods were sold. We do not expect to realize caisthé remaining portion of these cores until @lationship with a customer ends, a
possibility that we consider remote based on exgsting-term customer agreements and historicatampce.

For these reasons, we concluded that it is moreoapgte to classify core inventory as long-terrsets.
Long-term Core Inventory Deposit

The long-term core inventory deposit account regmesthe value of Remanufactured Cores we havédased from customers, which are helc
by the customers and remain on the customers’ gesmiThe purchase is made through the issuancedifscagainst that customer’s
receivables either on a one time basis or ovegased-upon period. The credits against the custsmexeivable are based upon the
Remanufactured Core purchase price previously ksftald with the customer. At the same time, we métloe longterm core inventory depo:
for the Remanufactured Cores purchased at its des#rmined as noted under Long-term Core Inveniing long-term core inventory deposit
is stated at the lower of cost or market. The sstablished at the time of the transaction basetthe then current cost, determined as noted
under Long-term Core Inventory. The difference leswthe credit granted and the cost of the long-tare inventory deposit is treated as a
sales allowance reducing revenue. When the pursteasaemade over an agreed-upon period, the longdere inventory deposit is recorded at
the same time the credit is issued to the custdone¢he purchase of the Remanufactured Cores.

At least annually, and as often as quarterly, reti@ations and confirmations are performed to deiee that the number of Remanufactured
Cores purchased, but retained at the customeidosaremains sufficient to support the amountsmed in the long-term core inventory
deposit account. At the same time, the mix of Rarferiured Cores is reviewed to determine that §ggemate value of Remanufactured Ci
in the account has not changed during the repopé@rgpd. We evaluate the cost of Remanufacture@€supporting the aggregate long-term
core inventory deposit account each quarter. Ifdeatify any permanent reduction in either the nemdr the aggregate value of the
Remanufactured Core inventory mix held at the aqustdocation, we will record a reduction in thedeterm core inventory deposit account
during that period.

Revenue Recognition
We recognize revenue when our performance is cammead all of the following criteria have been met
» Persuasive evidence of an arrangement e:
» Delivery has occurred or services have been redd
e The selle’s price to the buyer is fixed or determinable,
»  Collectability is reasonably assur¢
For products shipped free-on-board (“FOB”) shippiregnt, revenue is recognized on the date of shippnfr products shipped FOB

destination, revenues are recognized on the estithtatactual date of delivery. We include shippang handling charges in the gross invoice
price to customers and classify the total amouméasnue. Shipping and handling costs are recdrdedst of sales.
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Revenue Recognition; Mof-Core-Value Basis

The price of a finished rotating electrical prodseld to customers is generally comprised of séplgranvoiced amounts for the
Remanufactured Core included in the product (“Reaufestured Core value”) and the unit value. The ualte is recorded as revenue based ©
our then current price list, net of applicable disats and allowances. Based on our experiencesambuél arrangements with customers and
inventory management practices, a significant portf the remanufactured automobile parts we sallistomers are replaced by similar Usec
Cores sent back for credit by customers under org exchange program. In accordance with our nebod-value revenue recognition policy,
we do not recognize the Remanufactured Core vauewenue when the finished products are sold. #vemlly limit the number of Used
Cores sent back under the core exchange progréme ttumber of similar Remanufactured Cores prelatspped to each customer.

Revenue Recognition and Defer— Core Revenue

Full price Remanufactured Cordhen we ship a rotating electrical product, we ingaertain customers for the Remanufactured Calgev
portion of the product at full Remanufactured Csaes price but do not recognize revenue for thed®eifactured Core value at that time. For
these Remanufactured Cores, we recognize coreue\mased upon an estimate of the rate at whickhumiomers will pay cash for
Remanufactured Cores in lieu of sending back simlied Cores for credits under our core exchanggram.

Nominal price Remanufactured CorWe invoice other customers for the Remanufacture @alue portion of a rotating electrical product
shipped at a nominal Remanufactured Core pricek®tihe full price Remanufactured Cores, we ongogmize revenue from nominal
Remanufactured Cores not expected to be replacadsbyilar Used Core sent back under the core exgghprogram when we believe that we
have met all of the following criteria:

 We have a signed agreement with the customer e¢ayére nominally priced Remanufactured Cores npeeted to be sent back
under the core exchange program, and the agreemesttspecify the number of Remanufactured Coreswstomer will pay cash for
in lieu of sending back a similar Used Core underamre exchange program and the basis on whichahenally priced
Remanufactured Cores are to be valued (normallp¥keage price per Remanufactured Core stipulatéltki agreement

* The contractual date for reconciling our records emstomer’s records of the number of nominallgguii Remanufactured Cores not
expected to be replaced by similar Used Corestsmit under our core exchange program must be ioutrent or a prior periot

* The reconciliation must be completed and agreday tilhe customel
*  The amount must be billed to the custon

Deferral of Core RevenueAs noted previously, we have in the past and malge future agree to buy back Remanufactured <fooen certai
customers. The difference between the credit gdsautel the cost of the Remanufactured Cores bowgiht is treated as a sales allowance
reducing revenue. As a result of the ongoing Rerfeamured Core buybacks, we have now deferred ewenue from these customers until
there is no expectation that sales allowances egedavith Remanufactured Core buybacks from tleeséomers will offset core revenues that
would otherwise be recognized once the criteri@thabove have been met.

Revenue Recognition; General Right of Re

We allow our customers to return goods to us tieit nd-user customers have returned to them hehéte returned item is or is not
defective (warranty returns). In addition, under terms of certain agreements with our custometsratustry practice, our customers from
time to time are allowed stock adjustments wheir theentory of certain product lines exceeds thécipated sales to end-user customers
(stock adjustment returns). Customers have vagoungractual rights for stock adjustment returnsolhare typically less than 5% of units sold.
In some instances, we allow a higher level of retlin connection with a significant update orderadldition, we allow customers to return
goods to us that their end-user consumers havanegtuo them. We seek to limit the aggregate ofagner returns, including warranty and
stock adjustment returns, to less than 20% ofsailés.
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We provide for such anticipated returns of inveptoy reducing revenue and the related cost of aftete units estimated to be returned as
further described under the captions “Customershizdl Goods Returns Accrual” and “Inventory Unretdfn

Our allowance for warranty returns is establishasell on a historical analysis of the level of thie of return as a percentage of total unit
sales. Stock adjustment returns do not occur aspayific time during the year, and the expectedllef these returns cannot be reasonably
estimated based on a historical analysis. Our alflm® for stock adjustment returns is based onfépeastomer inventory levels, inventory
movements and information on the estimated timiingtack adjustment returns provided by our cust@mer

Customer Finished Goods Returns Accrual

The customer finished goods returns accrual repteseir estimate of our exposure to customer rsfuncluding warranty returns, under our
general right of return policy to allow customavgeturn items that their end user customers hetvgrred to them and from time to time, stock
adjustment returns when the customers’ inventorgeofain products exceeds the anticipated salesdaiser customers. The customer finis|
goods returns accrual represents the came-sales value of the estimated returns an@ssified as a current liability due to the expéatathal
these returns will occur within the normal opergtaycle of one year.

Sales | ncentives

We provide various marketing allowances to our@wsrs, including sales incentives and concessiasketing allowances related to a sin
exchange of product are recorded as a reductioevehues at the time the related revenues aredett@r when such incentives are offered.
Other marketing allowances, which may only be aggpéigainst future purchases, are recorded as eti@ulto revenues in accordance with a
schedule set forth in the relevant contract. Salesntive amounts are recorded based on the vélilhe incentive provided.

I ntangible Assets

Our intangible assets other than goodwill are didived and amortized on a straight line basis okeirtrespective useful lives. We analyze
finite-lived intangible assets for impairment whemd if indicators of impairment exist. As of Margh, 2014, there were no indicators of
impairment.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes using the liability Inoet, which measures deferred income taxes by agpbmacted statutory rates in effect at
the balance sheet date to the differences betwectax basis of assets and liabilities and thg@iomed amounts in the financial statements. Th
resulting asset or liability is adjusted to reflebinges in the tax laws as they occur. A valuatitowance is provided to reduce deferred tax
assets when it is more likely than not that a partf the deferred tax asset will not be realized.

The primary components of our income tax expensédipthe current liability or refund due for fedgrstate and foreign income taxes and (ii)
the change in the amount of the net deferred indamasset, including the effect of any changdévaluation allowance.

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent opoability to generate sufficient future taxalieome. We review our deferred tax asse

a jurisdiction by jurisdiction basis to determin@ether it is more likely than not that the defertaxi assets will be realized. We believe that
more likely than not that our future taxable incowilt be sufficient to realize the recorded defertax assets. In evaluating this ability, we
consider long-term agreements, including RemanufadtCore purchase obligations, with our major@wstrs that expire at various dates
through March 2019. We also periodically compageftirecasts to actual results. Although there @andassurance that the forecasted resul
will be achieved, the history of income in all gatictions provides sufficient positive evidencet tha valuation allowance is needed.
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Financial Risk Management and Derivatives

We are exposed to market risk from material movamenforeign exchange rates between the U.S. dafid the currencies of the foreign
countries in which we operate. As a result of agnificant operations in Mexico, our primary risklates to changes in the rates between the
U.S. dollar and the Mexican peso. To mitigate thigency risk, we enter into forward foreign exahparontracts to exchange U.S. dollars for
Mexican pesos. We also enter into forward foreigrhange contracts to exchange U.S. dollars for €@ryuan in order to mitigate risk rela
to our purchases and payments to our Chinese ventloe extent to which we use forward foreign ergieacontracts is periodically reviewed
in light of our estimate of market conditions ahd terms and length of anticipated requirements.ge of derivative financial instruments
allows us to reduce our exposure to the risk tiagetventual net cash outflow resulting from fundimg expenses of the foreign operations will
be materially affected by changes in the exchaatgsr We do not engage in currency speculatiomldrdr issue financial instruments for
trading purposes. These contracts generally expiaeyear or less. Any changes in the fair valutoign exchange contracts are accounte
as an increase or decrease to general and admiivistexpenses in current period earnings.

Share-based Payments

In accounting for share-based compensation awenal$pllow the accounting guidance for equity-basedhpensation, which requires that we
measure the cost of employee services receivexcim@ge for an award of equity instruments basetthegrant-date fair value of the award.
The cost associated with stock options is estimaséty the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. Thst of equity instruments is recognized
in the consolidated statements of operations draght-line basis (net of estimated forfeitureggothe period during which an employee is
required to provide service in exchange for therdwalso, excess tax benefits realized are repated financing cash inflow.

New Accounting Pronouncements
Accumulated other comprehensive incollAOCI")

In the first quarter of fiscal 2014, we adoptedaanounting standard issued by the FASB that regeindities to provide details of
reclassifications in the disclosure of changes @CA balances. In addition, for significant itemslassified out of AOCI in the fiscal year,
entities must provide information about the effamset income together, in one location, on tloe faf the statement where net income is
presented, or as a separate disclosure in the. fkiegems not reclassified to net income in tlegitirety in the fiscal year, entities must cross-
reference to the note where additional details atimuieffects of the reclassifications are disalodée adoption of this update did not have an
impact on our financial position, results of openas or cash flows.

Income Taxe

In July 2013, the FASB issued guidance that requargities to present an unrecognized tax bermefd, portion of an unrecognized tax benefit,
as a reduction to a deferred tax asset for a rexatipg loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, éeacredit carryforward when settlement in this
manner is available under the tax law and the Compgends to use the deferred tax asset for thiggqse. The amendments in this update ar
effective for fiscal years, and interim periodshiitthose fiscal years, beginning after DecembeR033. The adoption of this guidance is not
expected to have a material impact on our finarmiaition, results of operations or cash flows.
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Discontinued Operation

In April 2014, the FASB issued guidance on repagrtiiscontinued operations. The new guidance chathgesriteria for determining which
disposals can be presented as discontinued opesatiwl modifies related disclosure requirementsledthe new guidance, a discontinued
operation is defined as a disposal of a componegtaup of components that is disposed of or issifeed as held for sale and “represents a
strategic shift that has (or will have) a majoieeffon an entity’s operations and financial resultke guidance applies prospectively to new
disposals and new classifications of disposal gs@sgpheld for sale after the effective date. Thrdsrd is required to be adopted by public
business entities in annual periods beginning axfter December 15, 2014, and interim periods withbse annual periods. The adoption of
this guidance is not expected to have a materiphohon our financial position, results of openasi@r cash flows.

Revenue Recognitic

In May 2014, the FASB issued an amendment to thewading guidance related to revenue recognititte &mendment was the result of a
joint project between the FASB and the Internatidk@ounting Standards Board ("IASB") to clarifyetiprinciples for recognizing revenue ¢
to develop common revenue standards for U.S. GA#Platernational Financial Reporting StandardsR®). To meet those objectives, the
FASB is amending the FASB ASC and creating a nepicl606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers,taadASB is issuing IFRS 15,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The newaguid is effective prospectively for annual peribdginning after December 15, 2016,
and interim periods within those years. Early agadlon is not permitted. We are evaluating the iohpd adopting this prospective guidance to
our consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent Events

On June 12, 2014, we entered into a first amendtoghte amended and restated financing agreemerstignt to which (i) the commitments
make revolving loans under the amended and redfiatting agreement were increased by $10,000®8@0,000,000, and (ii) the maxim
amount of capital expenditures was increased 2083000 for fiscal year 2014, $7,000,000 for fisgzdr 2015, and $4,000,000 for each of
fiscal years 2016 and 2017. The maximum amounapital expenditures for fiscal year 2018 remairs2s500,000.

Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should bel ieaconjunction with the financial statements ates thereto appearing elsewhere herein

The following table summarizes certain key operatiata for our continuing operations for the pesiotlicated:

Fiscal Years Ended March 31,

2014 2013 2012
Gross profit percentac 31.5% 32.5% 32.1%
Cash flow provided by (used in) continuing openasi $ 13,290,00 $ (4,758,00) $ 15,802,00
Finished goods turnover ( 7.2 7.7 6.5

(1) Finished goods inventory turnover is calculatedliwding the cost of goods sold for the year by dlverage between beginning and en
non-core finished goods inventory values, for eacheligear. We believe that this provides a usefulsusaof our ability to turn invento
into revenues
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Fiscal 2014 Compared to Fiscal 2013
Net Sales and Gross Profit
The following table summarizes net sales and goosfit for our continuing operations for fiscal 2Dand 2013:

Fiscal Years Ended March 31

2014 2013
Net sales $ 258,669,00 $ 213,151,00
Cost of goods sol 177,103,00 143,810,00
Gross profit 81,566,00 69,341,00
Cost of goods sold as a percentage of net 68.5% 67.5%
Gross profit percentac 31.5% 32.5%

Net Sale:. Our net sales for fiscal 2014 increased by $45(10, or 21.4%, to $258,669,000 compared to res $ar fiscal 2013 of
$213,151,000. The increase in net sales was doetlothe introduction of our new wheel hub prodwaatd growth in the sales of our rotating
electrical products primarily to existing customefge began selling wheel hub products in late 2018 and they represented approximately
11% of our net sales during fiscal 2014.

Cost of Goods Sold/Gross Profdur cost of goods sold as a percentage of net salesased during fiscal 2014 to 68.5% from 67.9¥diEcal
2013, resulting in a corresponding decrease irgmss profit to 31.5% for fiscal 2014 from 32.5% figcal 2013. Our gross profit was
primarily impacted by lower gross margin on wheab lproducts, which we began selling in late Junk320

Operating Expenses

The following table summarizes operating expensestir continuing operations for fiscal 2014 and 20

Fiscal Years Ended March 31

2014 2013

General and administrati $ 39,684,00 $ 25,807,00
Sales and marketir 7,838,001 7,290,001
Research and developmt 1,940,001 1,930,001
Percent of net sale:

General and administrati 15.2% 12.1%
Sales and marketir 3.C% 3.4%
Research and developmt 0.7% 0.€%

General and Administrativ®Our general and administrative expenses for fi20a# were $39,684,000, which represents an inciefase
$13,877,000, or 53.8%, from general and adminisgaxpenses for fiscal 2013 of $25,807,000. Tleesiase in general and administrative
expenses was primarily due to (i) $10,054,000 oféased loss recorded due to the change in thedlaie of the warrant liability, (ii) a loss of
$842,000 recorded due to the change in the valtigedrward foreign currency exchange contractsequent to entering into the contracts
compared to a gain of $804,000 recorded durin@ffi@013, (iii) $780,000 of increased salaries aag®s, (iv) $515,000 of increased legal f
and (v) $406,000 of increased general and admédiigtr expenses at our offshore locations due teased employee-related expenses and
outside services. These increases were partlytdffs@) $982,000 of expenses incurred during fi&€3 in connection with the discontinued
subsidiary’s initial implementation work relatedtt® compliance with Section 404 of the SarbanelgyOict of 2002, (ii) $675,000 recorded
during fiscal 2013 for the settlement of liquidattaimages in connection with our April 2012 privpkecement, and (iii) $650,000 recorded in
fiscal 2013 related to the termination of our cdtisg agreement with Mel Marks. In addition, geflenad administrative expenses increased
during fiscal 2014 due to $2,868,000 of legal arafgssional services expenses incurred by us datdeto the discontinued subsidiary.
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Sales and MarketingOur sales and marketing expenses for fiscal 2@dréased $548,000, or 7.5%, to $7,838,000 frora%¥000 for fiscal
2013. The increase was due primarily to (i) $238,60increased employee-related expenses, (ii) $084of increased professional services
and consulting fees, and (iii) $120,000 of increlsavel expenses.

Research and Developme. Our research and development expenses incregsgtD000, or 0.5%, to $1,940,000 for fiscal 20hf
$1,930,000 for fiscal 2013. The increase was dimeapily to increased consulting fees.

Interest Expense

Interest Expense, neOur interest expense, net from continuing operation fiscal 2014 increased $5,965,000, or 48.474118,289,000 from
$12,324,000 for fiscal 2013. Interest expenseismal 2013 reflects $5,182,000 of interest incomednnection with the long-term note
receivable from the discontinued subsidiary. Initwld, interest expense increased due to (i) theevaff of approximately $2,581,000 in
deferred financing costs in connection with the admeents to our credit agreements, (ii) interesalbof our outstanding obligations related to
our discontinued subsidiary guaranteed by us tlea¢waid in full on August 26, 2013. These increasere partly offset by (i) lower interest
rates on our term loan and factored receivablemgldiscal 2014 and (ii) expenses incurred in fit@l3 in connection with the third
amendment and waiver to the Financing Agreemerddéised below).

Provision for | ncome Taxes

Income Ta». Our income tax expense from continuing operativas $7,333,000, or the effective tax rate of 53.4f@ $7,432,000, or the
effective tax rate of 33.8% during fiscal 2014 &0d.3, respectively. The primary change in the éffedax rate was due to non-deductible
expenses in connection with the fair value adjustsien the warrants and the impact of the non-déslaexecutive compensation under
Internal Revenue Code Section 162(m). The balahtiee change in the effective tax rate was duedtarring rate impacting items, such as
our state and foreign income taxes, uncertain textipns, and permanent book to tax differences.

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operati.. Our income from discontinued operations was 800000 during fiscal 2014 compared to a
loss from discontinued operations of $106,069,@0Giscal 2013. The income from discontinued operat during fiscal 2014 consists of (i) a
$118,095,000 gain on the deconsolidation of theaisnued subsidiary, including an income tax bierdf$1,374,000, (ii) a loss of
approximately $20,464,000 in connection with thargmtee of obligations to certain suppliers ofdtseontinued subsidiary partly offset by
income tax benefits of $9,156,000 recorded duriscpf 2014, and (iii) losses of approximately $9,8D0 incurred by the discontinued
subsidiary from April 1, 2013 to May 31, 2013.
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Fiscal 2013 Compared to Fiscal 2012
Net Sales and Gross Profit
The following table summarizes net sales and goosfit for our continuing operations for fiscal 2D&nd fiscal 2012:

Fiscal Years Ended March 31

2013 2012
Net sales $ 213,151,00 $178,551,00
Cost of goods sol 143,810,00 121,219,00
Gross profit 69,341,00 57,332,00
Cost of goods sold as a percentage of net 67.5% 67.9%
Gross profit percentac 32.5% 32.1%

Net Sale:. Our net sales increased by $34,600,000, or 194%213,151,000 for fiscal 2013 compared to nietssaf $178,551,000 for fiscal
2012. The increase in net sales was the resuilf &\ business awarded by one of our major custen(i@ certain new customers acquired
during fiscal 2013, and (iii) overall increase gt sales to our other existing customers.

Cost of Goods Sold/Gross Profdur cost of goods sold as a percentage of net dal@eased during fiscal 2013 to 67.5% from 67.884i$cal
2012, resulting in a corresponding increase inguass profit percentage of 0.4% to 32.5% for fist@l3 from 32.1% for fiscal 2012. This
increase in gross profit percentage is a resutiwér per unit manufacturing costs, partially offeg $1,665,000 of marketing and certain othel
allowances made in connection with the purchaseveintory from a new customer we acquired in th& fijuarter of fiscal 2013.

Operating Expenses

The following table summarizes operating expensestir continuing operations for fiscal 2013 and20

Fiscal Years Ended March 31

2013 2012

General and administrati $ 25,807,000 $ 20,621,00
Sales and marketir 7,290,001 7,659,001
Research and developmt 1,930,001 1,765,00!
Acquisition cost: - 713,00(
Percent of net sale:

General and administrati 12.1% 11.5%
Sales and marketir 3.4% 4.2%
Research and developmt 0.€% 1.C%
Acquisition cost -% 0.4%
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General and Administrativé®ur general and administrative expenses for fig6aB were $25,807,000, which represents an inciafase
$5,186,000, or 25.1%, from general and administeatixpenses for fiscal 2012 of $20,621,000. Theeeme in general and administrative
expenses was primarily due to (i) $1,031,000 ofdased share-based compensation expense, (ii)0kBRAf increased legal fees, (iii)
$675,000 for liquidated damages paid in conneatitth our April 2012 private placement, (iv) $658006f increased general and
administrative expenses at our offshore locati¢rs$650,000 of accrual established related tad¢hmination of our consulting agreement v
Mel Marks, (vi) $514,000 of increased salaries aages, (vii) $481,000 of increased consulting espsrprimarily related to the requirements
of Section 404 of the Sarban@sdey Act of 2002, (viii) $389,000 recorded duethe change in the fair value of the warrants dufiscal 2013
(ix) $369,000 of increased expenses for work redlédecompliance with Section 404 of the SarbanekyDict of 2002, (x) $332,000 of
incentives paid to certain executives, and (xi)3200 of increased expenses in connection withrmame tax planning work. During fiscal
2013, we also recorded a gain of $804,000 dueetetiange in the value of the forward foreign curyeexchange contracts subsequent to
entering into the contracts compared to a losg}@6¥00 recorded during fiscal 2012. In additiomf@ssional fees of $350,000 were incurred
in connection with the restructuring of the diséouaed subsidiary. Our prior year general and adstriiive expenses included $1,292,000 of
professional services and travel incurred in cotioeavith the discontinued subsidiary.

During fiscal 2013, our general and administragxpenses were negatively impacted by $982,000mdreses incurred in connection with the
discontinued subsidiary’s initial implementationnweelated to compliance with Section 404 of theb@aes-Oxley Act of 2002. These
expenses were previously recorded by the discoadisubsidiary.

Sales and MarketingOur sales and marketing expenses for fiscal 2@t8eased $369,000, or 4.8%, to $7,290,000 froB6H00 for fiscal
2012. The decrease in sales and marketing wasrdnarpy to (i) $238,000 of decreased travel andfessional services incurred in connec
with the discontinued subsidiary and (ii) $114,@d@ecreased employee-related expenses.

Research and Developme. Our research and development expenses incregsgtbb,000, or 9.3%, to $1,930,000 for fiscal 2€@b8n
$1,765,000 for fiscal 2012. The increase in researd development expenses was due primarily teased employeeslated expenses duri
fiscal 2013.

Acquisition Cost:. During fiscal 2012, we incurred $713,000 of legatl professional fees in connection with the agtian of the
discontinued subsidiary.

Interest Expense

Interest ExpenstOur interest expense from continuing operationeces our increased leverage as a result of theigitiqn of the
discontinued subsidiary and the increase in the&iour business. Net interest expense for fid8aB increased $7,843,000, or 154.6%, to
$12,324,000 from $4,841,000 for fiscal 2012. Thig¢ase in net interest expense was attributalfipittcreased outstanding loan balances
higher interest rates incurred during fiscal 208®@mpared to fiscal 2012 and (ii) a contingentdagable in connection with the third
amendment and waiver to the Financing Agreemerdg€fised below). These increases were partly offgéhcreased interest income in
connection with the long-term note receivable friva discontinued subsidiary.

Provision for Income Taxes

Income Ta. Our income tax expense from continuing operativas $7,432,000 and $7,385,000 during fiscal 2032912, respectively, an
effective rate of 33.8% and 34.0% for fiscal 2008 2012, respectively.

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operati.. Our loss from discontinued operations was $1060@®and $62,862,000 during fiscal 2013
2012, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview
At March 31, 2014, we had working capital of $2Z,@00, a ratio of current assets to current liabgdiof 1.2:1, and included in working

capital is cash of $24,599,000, compared to workegjtal from our continuing operations of $33, T, a ratio of current assets to current
liabilities of 1.5:1, and included in working cagliis cash of $19,346,000 at March 31, 2013.
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During fiscal 2014, we used cash generated frortin@)use of our receivable discount programs wetitain of our major customers, (ii)
operations, including net income tax refunds of,418,000, and (iii) additional borrowing under evedit agreement which was primarily u
to pay in full on August 26, 2013 all of our outsting obligations related to our guaranty of a lemour discontinued subsidiary, including
interest. In addition, we used cash to build upiouentory, repay our term loan, and make capitpkaditures.

During fiscal 2014, we filed a universal shelf tgation statement on Form S-3 (File No. 3®8966), which was declared effective on Ma
2014, for the proposed offering from time to tinfaip to $100,000,000 of our securities, includimgnenon stock, preferred stock, and debt
securities. The securities may be offered by asftime to time at amounts, prices, interest rated,other terms to be determined at the time
of the offering.

We believe our cash on hand, short-term investmestsof receivable discount programs, amountdadblaiunder our credit agreement, and
other sources are sufficient to satisfy our expktuéure working capital needs, repayment of theant portion of our term loans, capital lease
commitments, and capital expenditures over the tweaiize months.

Cash Flows

Our cash flows from our continuing operations dkected in the consolidated statement of cash fltowdiscal 2014, 2013, and 2012 are
summarized as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended March 31

2014 2013 2012

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities from our continuing operatis $ 13,290,00 $ (4,758,000 $ 15,802,00

Investing activities from our continuing operatic (3,032,00i) (2,371,00) (1,047,00)

Financing activities from our continuing operatic 15,642,00 21,639,00 61,060,00

Effect of exchange rates on cash (31,000 45,00( 37,00(
Net increase in cash from our continuing operat 25,869,00 14,555,00 75,852,00
Additional selected cash flow data

Depreciation and amortizatic $ 2,742,000 $ 2,849,000 $ 3,466,00

Capital expenditure (2,978,00) (2,330,00) (1,010,00)

Fiscal 2014 Compared to Fiscal 20

Net cash provided by operating activities from comtinuing operations was $13,290,000 during fi@€dl4 compared to net cash use
operating activities from our continuing operatiafi$4,758,000 during fiscal 2013. The significanainges in our operating activities from
continuing operations in fiscal 2014 were due prilpdo (i) an increase in accounts payable balardige primarily to a buildup of our naore
inventory in the current fiscal year, in anticipatiof increased sales, compared to the pay dowsaifunts payable balances in the prior year
which were incurred in connection with the invegtprovided to the discontinued subsidiary duriregdil 2012, (ii) the receipt of income tax
refunds in the current fiscal year compared to gestments for income taxes in the prior year, difjdaf increase in accounts receivable
during fiscal 2014 due to higher net sales compardigcal 2013. In addition, other changes in afiag activities from our continuing
operations were (i) a decrease of $546,000 to iteéigion for customer payment discrepancies, (dearease of $213,000 to the provision for
bad debt, and (iii) a decrease of $194,000 to theigion for inventory reserves.

Net cash used in investing activities from our @orihg operations was $3,032,000 and $2,371,00ddiscal 2014 and 2013, respective
This change was due primarily to (i) increase irchase of equipment related to our wheel hub aséesrdnd bearings and (ii) increase in
purchases of equipment related to our manufactdaaijties.
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Net cash provided by financing activities from continuing operations was $15,642,000 and $21,88%ring fiscal 2014 and 201
respectively. This change was due mainly to (i)itmithl borrowing under the amended credit agredrmartly offset by the repayment of our
term loan, (ii) net proceeds from the stock opgarrcises during fiscal 2014, (iii) financing cog#sd in connection with the amendment of
credit agreement, and (iv) the repurchase of wsrom our lenders. In addition, our prior yeandincing activities from continuing operatic
included the net proceeds received from our prip&ieement in April 2012.

Fiscal 2013 Compared to Fiscal 20

Net cash used in operating activities from our rwihg operations was $4,758,000 during fiscal 26d@pared to cash provided frc
operations from our continuing operations of $18,800 during fiscal 2012. The significant changesur operating activities from our
continuing operations in fiscal 2013 were due prilpdo (i) the pay down of accounts payable baksmcurred in connection with the
inventory provided to the discontinued subsidiarfiscal 2012 to provide goods in order to mainthia service levels for the discontinued
subsidiary’s customers, (i) an increase in longateore inventory due to higher sales, and (iilearease in accounts receivable balances dut
to a higher balance of receivables discounted duiatal 2013 compared to fiscal 2012. In additiotiher changes in operating activities from
our continuing operations were (i) a decrease ¢§®#2,000 to the provision for inventory reserves tluhigher inventory levels, (ii) an incre:

of $266,000 to the provision for customer paymeéstregpancies, and (iii) an increase of $180,00biéaprovision for bad debt.

Net cash used in investing activities from our aarihg operations was $2,371,000 and $1,047,00gldiscal 2013 and 2012, respective
Our capital expenditures during fiscal 2013 and2@&re $2,330,000 and $1,010,000, respectivelynanily related to the purchase of
equipment for our manufacturing facilities, impravents to our California facility, and software.

Net cash provided by financing activities from continuing operations was $21,639,000 and $61,080qQring fiscal 2013 and 201
respectively. This decrease was primarily due twebsed borrowings in fiscal 2013 compared to fig0a2 partly offset by the net proceeds
received from our private placement during fisd@l2. The net cash provided by financing activities used primarily to finance the
discontinued subsidiary.

Capital Resources

Debt

We are party to the following credit agreements.

Financing Agreemer

We are party to a financing agreement, as amertle;Financing Agreement”), with a syndicate aiders, Cerberus Business Finance, LLC
(“Cerberus”), as collateral agent, and PNC Bankjdsal Association, as administrative agent. Trenkbmade thereunder (the “Loansdnsis
of: (i) term loans aggregating $85,000,000 (thertiTé.oans”) and (ii) revolving loans of up to $2000000, subject to borrowing base
restrictions and a $10,000,000 sublimit for let@frsredit (the “Revolving Loans”). The Loans wéngially scheduled to mature on January
17, 2017. In connection with the Financing Agreetmtre lenders were granted a security interestibstantially all of our assets.

The Term Loans required quarterly principal payra@it$600,000 per quarter from April 1, 2013 to teegber 30, 2013 and $1,350,000 per
quarter from October 1, 2013 until the final matudate. The Term Loans bear interest at ratesl éguat our option, either LIBOR plus 8.5%
or a base rate plus 7.5%.
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In June 2013, we entered into a sixth amendmethietd-inancing Agreement (the “Sixth Amendmentider the terms of which the agents
lenders agreed to waive any event of default tlmtlvotherwise arise under the Financing Agreerdaetto the qualification in the opinion
our certified public accountants with respect ® financial statements for the fiscal year endedci&1, 2013. In addition, the Sixth
Amendment (i) added a reporting requirement witpeet to our liquidity levels and certain inventpiyrchases and (ii) added a financial
covenant under which we must maintain the followgls of liquidity on the following dates unlestherwise consented to by the lenders: ol
June 28, 2013, an aggregate amount of at leasd@2500, subject to certain adjustments; on Jujy{2813, an aggregate amount of at least
$26,000,000, subject to certain adjustments; anflugust 30, 2013, an aggregate amount of at 1€8608$0,000, subject to certain
adjustments. We were in compliance with these minmtiquidity requirements at each date.

In August 2013, we entered into a seventh amendtoghe Financing Agreement (the “Seventh Amendi)eptirsuant to which (i) we
borrowed an additional $20,000,000 in Term Loaiisim(odified certain financial covenants, and (tfie lenders provided consent to the
payment of certain subordinated debt with respette guaranty as described below under WX Agreéff@sndefined herein). Among other
things, the Seventh Amendment required quarterfycral payments of $2,100,000, with respect toTteem Loans, beginning on October 1,
2013 until the final maturity date.

In October 2013, we entered into an eighth amentitoghe Financing Agreement (the “Eighth Amendrenthich among other things,
permitted us to purchase Mr. Joffe's stock optipassuant to an option purchase agreement.

In November 2013, we entered into a ninth amendmaedtwaiver to the Financing Agreement (the “NiAthendment”), pursuant to which (i)
the agents and lenders waived a requirement fay pay down the Loans with our receipt of certdatestax refunds, (ii) the Revolving Loans
were increased by $10,000,000 to $30,000,000 @ineehded Revolving Loans), subject to certain bomavbase restrictions, (i) the Term
Loans were decreased by $10,000,000 to $95,00@080Amended Term Loans”), (iv) the final maturitate was extended to November 6,
2018, (v) we gained the right, subject to meetiadain conditions, to repurchase up to $10,000d¥@fur equity interests, and (vi) certain ol
amendments and modifications were made to the Eingmii\greement, in the form of an amended and testiinancing agreement (the
“Amended Financing Agreement”).

Among other things, the Amended Term Loans reqquiaterly principal payments of $2,100,000 and let@rest at rates equal to, at our
option, either LIBOR (subject to a 1.50% LIBOR fipplus 5.25% or a reference rate plus 4.25%. Ainended Revolving Loans bear intet
at rates equal to, at our option, either LIBOR [#Us0% or a reference rate plus 1.00%. The intea¢s on our term loans using the LIBOR
option was 6.75% and 10.50% at March 31, 2014 &i3 2respectively. The interest rate on our Amerifedolving Loans using the LIBOR
option was 2.66% at March 31, 2014.

The Amended Revolving Loans may, at our optionptepaid in whole or in part. We may reduce or teate the commitments of the lenders
to make the Amended Revolving Loans or prepay theedded Term Loans in whole or in part, but suclp@yements are subject to a
prepayment penalty of (i) 3.00% times the sum efréduction of the revolving credit commitment pilas principal amount of any prepaym
of the term loan from the Ninth Amendment Effectidate until January 18, 2014 and (ii) 2.00% tintesgum of the reduction of the revolv
credit commitment plus the principal amount of @ngpayment of the term loan from January 19, 261¥ahuary 18, 2015. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, we had the right to prepay up to,820,000 of the Amended Term Loans without any ayegent penalty if such payment was
made within 120 days of the Ninth Amendment EffeztDate. We did not exercise the prepayment option.

The Amended Financing Agreement, among other thirgglires us to maintain certain financial covésamcluding a maximum senior
leverage ratio, a minimum fixed charge coveragierand minimum consolidated earnings before irsiziacome tax, depreciation and
amortization expenses (“EBITDA”). We were in conapice with all financial covenants under the Amenie@ncing Agreement as of March
31, 2014.
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The following table summarizes the financial covesaequired under the Amended Financing Agreeraeltarch 31, 2014:

Financial covenants
required per the
Calculation as ol Amended Financing
March 31, 2014 Agreement

Maximum senior leverage rat 1.87 3.3C
Minimum fixed charge coverage ra 1.9¢ 1.0t
Minimum consolidated EBITD/ $ 55,240,00 $ 31,500,00

At March 31, 2014, we had borrowed $10,000,000 vtttee Amended Revolving Loans. There was no outitanbalance on the Revolving
Loans at March 31, 2013. We had reserved $476,00@Amended Revolving Loans for standby lettdrsredit for workers’ compensation
insurance and $1,614,000 for commercial lettergedit at March 31, 2014 and $17,720,000, subfecettain adjustments, was available
under the Amended Revolving Loans at March 31, 2014

WX Agreement

In August 2012, we entered into a Revolving Cr&dititegic Cooperation Agreement (the “WX Agreempewnith Wanxiang America
Corporation (the “Supplier’) and the discontinuethsidiary. Under the terms of the WX Agreement,Slipplier agreed to provide a revolving
credit line for purchases of automotive parts amhgonents by the discontinued subsidiary in anegage principal amount not to exceed
$22,000,000 (the “Fenco Credit Line”), of which 20,000 would only be available for accrued intesesl other amounts payable (the
“Obligations”). Payment for all purchases became and payable 120 days after the date of the fadlding. Any amounts remaining unpaid
following the due date would bear interest at a cit1% per month. The Fenco Credit Line was scleeldio mature on July 31, 2017. Pursuan
to a guaranty (the “Guaranty”), the Obligations enthe WX Agreement were guaranteed by us andicextaur subsidiaries.

On July 9, 2013, we received notice from the Sigpghat the filing of the voluntary petition forlief under Chapter 7 of Title 11 of the United
States Code in the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for thetiizit of Delaware by the Fenco Entities constdude “Event of Default” under the WX
AgreementAs a result of the Event of Default, all amountsstanding under the WX Agreement together witraatirued interest and all otr
amounts payable automatically became immediatedyathdl payable subject to the terms of the Guamardya subordination agreement with
the lender under the Financing Agreement. In aglditsubject to certain adjustments, the interdstapplicable to all amounts remaining
unpaid will increase, to the extent permitted hy, o 1.25% per month, compounding monthly, on D&wer 10, 2013, and to 1.50% per
month, compounding monthly, on June 10, 2014.

On August 26, 2013, in connection with the Sevexitrendment, we paid $20,843,000 to the Suppliep&yments of all our outstanding
liabilities, including interest payments, under tearanty.

In connection with the WX Agreement and the Guarane also issued a warrant (the “Supplier Wartatt'the Supplier to purchase up to
516,129 shares of our common stock for an initi@reise price of $7.75 per share exercisable atiemgyafter August 22, 2014 and on or prior
to September 30, 2017. The exercise price is sutgjesdjustments, among other things, for salesafmon stock by us at a price below the
exercise price.

The fair value of the Supplier Warrant using therfdoCarlo simulation model was $10,047,000 and3g,@0 at March 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. This amount is recorded as a waltiapitity which is included in other liabilities ithe consolidated balance sheets at March 31,
2014 and 2013. During fiscal 2014 and 2013, a¢6$8,408,000 and $621,000, respectively, was ommbm general and administrative
expenses due to the change in the fair value sfihirant liability.
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Receivable Discount Prograr

We use receivable discount programs with certagtacuers and their respective banks. Under theggamrs, we have options to sell those
customersteceivables to those banks at a discount to besdgrpon at the time the receivables are sold. Ttheseunt arrangements allows

to accelerate collection of customers’ receivabléiile these arrangements have reduced our woddpdal needs, there can be no assuranc
that these programs will continue in the futurgéetast expense resulting from these programs wiaatéase if interest rates rise, if utilization
of these discounting arrangements expands or did@unt period is extended to reflect more fablr@ayment terms to customers.

The following is a summary of the receivable distgorograms from continuing operations:

Years Ended March 31,

2014 2013
Receivables discountt $210,752,00 $188,536,00
Weighted average da 337 33€
Weighted average discount ri 2.2% 2.7%
Amount of discount as interest expe! $ 4,336,000 $ 4,654,00

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

At March 31, 2014, we had no off-balance sheetrfiivag or other arrangements with unconsolidatediesr financial partnerships (such as
entities often referred to as structured financepacial purpose entities) established for purpogéacilitating off-balance sheet financing or
other debt arrangements or for other contractuedtyow or limited purposes.

Multi-year Customer Agreements

We have or are renegotiating lotegm agreements with many of our major customenslddthese agreements, which in most cases hdiz
terms of at least four years, we are designatekeasxclusive or primary supplier for specifiedezairies of our products. Because of the very
competitive nature of the market and the limitechber of customers for these products, our custohmeare sought and obtained price
concessions, significant marketing allowances anterfavorable delivery and payment terms in consititen for our designation as a
customer’s exclusive or primary supplier. Theseimives differ from contract to contract and carlude (i) the issuance of a specified amoun
of credits against receivables in accordance witbheedule set forth in the relevant contractsfipport for a particular customer’s research or
marketing efforts provided on a scheduled basiy d{scounts granted in connection with each imdlinal shipment of product, and (iv) other
marketing, research, store expansion or produatldpment support. These contracts typically reqihia¢ we meet ongoing standards relate
fulfillment, price, and quality. Our contracts withajor customers expire at various dates througrcMa019.

While these longeterm agreements strengthen our customer relatipsstiie increased demand for our products oftemnes)that we increa
our inventories and personnel. Customer demandsvihaurchase their Remanufactured Core inventarg lalso been a significant and an
additional strain on our available working capitethe marketing and other allowances we typicalngiour customers in connection with our
new or expanded customer relationships adversgigdtrthe near-term revenues, profitability and eisged cash flows from these
arrangements. However, we believe the investmemhalee in these new or expanded customer relatipsastiil improve our overall liquidity
and cash flow from operations over time.

Share Repurchase Program

In March 2010, our Board of Directors authorizeshare repurchase program of up to $5,000,000 obwistanding common stock from time
to time in the open market and in private transactiat prices deemed appropriate by managemenproljeam does not have an expiration
date. Under this program, we repurchased and deditetal of 67,347 shares at a total cost of apprately $389,000 during fiscal 2013. We
did not repurchase any outstanding common stodkgldiscal 2014.
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Capital Expenditures and Commitments

Our capital expenditures were $2,978,000 durinzafi014. A significant portion of these expenditirelate to the purchase of equipment fol
our manufacturing and warehousing facilities angrismements to our California facility and softwavée expect our fiscal 2015 capital
expenditures for our current operations to be értnge of $3,000,000 to $7,000,000 depending etirtfing of initiatives primarily related to
our purchases of equipment, information technolagyl leasehold improvements to our current fagdlitWe expect to use our working capital
and incur additional capital lease obligationsimafce these capital expenditures.

Contractual Obligations

The following summarizes our contractual obligasi@md other commitments as of March 31, 2014 ameéftlect such obligations could have
on our cash flows in future periods:

Payments Due by Period

Less than 2t03 4t05 More than 5
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year years years years
Capital Lease Obligations ( $ 353,000 $ 76,000 $ 152,000 $ 125,000 $ =
Operating Lease Obligations ( 10,628,00 2,953,001 2,369,001 2,097,001 3,209,001
Revolving Loar 10,000,00 10,000,00 - - -
Term Loan (3 116,000,00 14,437,00 27,129,00 74,434,00 -
Unrecognized Tax Benefits ( - - - - -
Other Lon¢-Term Obligations (5 46,996,00 15,460,00 17,403,00 9,582,001 4,551,00!
Total $183,977,00 $ 42,926,00 $ 47,053,00 $ 86,238,00 $ 7,760,00

(1) Capital Lease Obligations represent amounts duerwapital leases for various types of equipm

(2) Operating Lease Obligations represent amouwrgdar rent under our leases for office and warebdacilities in North America and Asia
and for our Company automobi

(3) Term Loan obligations represent the amountsfduprincipal payments as well as interest paymémbe made. Interest payments were
calculated based upon the interest rate for oar tean using the LIBOR option at March 31, 2014 ehhivas 6.75%

(4) We are unable to reliably estimate the timifiduture payments related to uncertain tax positiabilities at March 31, 2014 in the amount
of $540,000; therefore, $493,000 of income taxgmple for the voluntary disclosure agreements whithbe paid in fiscal 2015 has be
excluded from the table above. However, futurepayment accruals related to uncertain tax positwasncluded in our balance sheets,
reduced by the associated federal deduction fte taaes

(5) Other Long-Term Obligations represent committaeve have with certain customers to provide mangedllowances in consideration for
long-term agreements to provide products over mééfperiod. We are not obligated to provide thasgketing allowances should our
business relationships end with these custor
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk

Our primary market risk relates to changes in #gerates and foreign currency exchange rates.dV@tenter into derivatives or other
financial instruments for trading or speculativegmses. As our overseas operations expand, ousasto the risks associated with foreign
currency fluctuations will continue to increase.

Interest rate risk

We are exposed to changes in interest rates phynaaria result of our borrowing and receivable @list programs, which have interest costs
that vary with interest rate movements. Our creaditlity bears interest at variable base ratess pluapplicable margin. At March 31, 2014, ou
net debt obligations totaled $97,277,000. If intérates were to increase 1%, our net annual sttesense would have increased by
approximately $973,000. In addition, for each $00,000 of accounts receivable we discount overagef 180 days, a 1% increase in
interest rates would increase our interest expbn50,000.

Foreign currency risl

We are exposed to foreign currency exchange risérant in our anticipated purchases and expensesrdeated in currencies other than the
U.S. dollar. We transact business in the followfimigeign currencies; Mexican pesos, Malaysian rirgihgapore dollar, Chinese yuan, and the
Canadian dollar. Our primary currency risks refrolin fluctuations in the value of the Mexican pesal to a lesser extent the Chinese yuar
mitigate these risks, we enter into forward foretgmrency exchange contracts to exchange U.S.rddtdathese foreign currencies. The extent
to which we use forward foreign currency exchang&macts is periodically reviewed in light of owgtienate of market conditions and the te
and length of anticipated requirements. The ustedfative financial instruments allows us to reglocr exposure to the risk that the eventual
net cash outflow resulting from funding the expenskthe foreign operations will be materially afied by changes in exchange rates. These
contracts generally expire in a year or less. Amgnges in the fair values of our forward foreignrency exchange contracts are reflected in
current period earnings. Based upon our forwareifor currency exchange contracts related to th@serwies, an increase of 10% in exche
rates at March 31, 2014 would have increased auergéand administrative expenses by approxim&®)§03,000. During fiscal 2014 and
2013, a loss of $842,000 and a gain of $804,0@peetively, were recorded in general and admirtisg@xpenses due to the change in the
value of the forward foreign currency exchange @i subsequent to entering into the contracts.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information required by this item is set faritthe consolidated financial statements, commenoimpage F-1 included herein.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Account&mon Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have established disclosure controls and preesda ensure that the information required toibelased by the Company in the reports
that it files or submits under the Securities Exg®Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summasrddeported within the time periods
specified in the SEC rules and forms and that sufchhmation is accumulated and made known to tlieexs who certify the Company’s

financial reports and to other members of senianagament and the Board of Directors as appropiaadiow timely decisions regarding
required disclosures.
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Under the supervision and with the participatioomafinagement, including our Chief Executive Offi&@jef Financial Officer, and Chief
Accounting Officer, we have conducted an evaluatibthe effectiveness of our disclosure controld procedures as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(b) and 15d-15(e). Based on this atialu— and that the Company has remediated tloe year material weakness in internal
control over financial reporting described belovdenChanges in Internal Control Over Financial Repo — our Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer, and Chief Accounting Officconcluded that the MPA's disclosure controls pratedures were effective as of March
31, 2014.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for estabfi and maintaining adequate internal controt éwancial reporting as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) .

Internal control over financial reporting is a pess designed to provide reasonable assurance iregé#nd reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for extiepoiaposes in accordance with accounting princigkserally accepted in the United States of
America, applying certain estimates and judgmestequired.

Internal control over financial reporting includb®se policies and procedures that:

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records thagasanable detail, accurately and fairly reflecttthasactions and dispositions of the
assets of the compar
2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactienne@rded as necessary to permit preparatiomarcial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles, #nad receipts and expenditures of the company @irggbmade only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directorthefcompany; an

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prewventibmely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose, or disposition of the compasay’
assets that could have a material effect on tlanéial statement:

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agject to the risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participatioomainagement, including our Chief Executive Offi&@jef Financial Officer, and Chief
Accounting Officer, we conducted an evaluationha effectiveness of our internal control over ficiahreporting based on the criteria
established in the 1998ternal Control — Integrated Framewoitsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe Treadway
Commission. Based on this evaluation — and thaCrapany has remediated the prior year materiakmess in internal control over financial
reporting described below under Changes in Inte@aaltrol Over Financial Reporting — managementtgated that the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting was effective ddtarch 31, 2014 .

The effectiveness of our internal control over ficial reporting as of March 31, 2014 has been addiyy the Company’s independent
registered public accounting firm, Ernst & YoungR.LTheir assessment is included in the accomparBamprt of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control over &itial Reporting.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Other than the items noted immediately below, tegee no changes in MPA's internal control overfinial reporting during the fourth
quarter ended March 31, 2014 that have materiffiécted, or are reasonably likely to materiallyeatf MPA's internal control over financial
reporting.
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Discontinued Operation and Deconsolidation of Fenco

In May 2013, FAPL appointed a new board of indegendlirectors, hired an independent chief restrirgjuofficer and all its previously
existing officers resigned from FAPL. As a resliltass of control of Fenco, we deconsolidated thsets and liabilities of Fenco from our
consolidated financial statements effective MayZ113. Fenco has effectively been disposed ofiamtiave not and do not retain any
continuing involvement in its operations.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance

The information required by this item is incorpedby reference to our Definitive Proxy Statemartannection with our next Annual
Meeting of Stockholders (the “Proxy Statement”).

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorpaby reference to the Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @Qvners And Management and Related Stockholder Matters
The information required by this item is incorp@by reference to the Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns, and Director Independence

The information required by this item is incorpaby reference to the Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorp@by reference to the Proxy Statement.
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Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.
a. Documents filed as part of this report:
(1) Index to Consolidated Financial Statements

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfing
Consolidated Balance She

Consolidated Statements of Operati

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomss
Consolidated Statement of Sharehol’ Equity (Deficit)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flc

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem

(2) Schedules

Schedule I— Valuation and Qualifying Accoun

PART IV

51
F-2
F-3
F-4

F-6

S-1

Method of Filing

(3) Exhibits:

Number Description of Exhibit

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of the Company

3.2 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of tl
Company

3.3 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of t
Company

3.4 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of tl
Company

3.5 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of t
Company

3.6 Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Comp

3.7 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of
Incorporation of the Compar

4.1 Specimen Certificate of the Company’s commu
stock

4.2 Form of Underwriter's common stock purchase

warrant

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the @any’s Registration
Statement on Form SB-2 declared effective on Ma@&;H994 (the “1994
Registration Stateme”).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the @any’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (No. 33-97498) declared &ffeon November 14,
1995 (the*1995 Registration Statem”).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the @any’s Annual Report ¢
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1@8é “1997 Form 10-
K”).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to the @any’s Annual Report ¢
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1668 “1998 Form 10-
K”).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit C to the Conyps proxy statement ¢
Schedule 14A filed with the SEC on November 25,2

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to ther€ar Report on Form 8-K
filed on August 24, 201(

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to ther€ar Report on Form 8-K
filed on April 9, 2014

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to thedl B&gistration Statement.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to thedl®&gistration Statement.
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4.3 1994 Stock Option Pla Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to thedlB&gistration Statemer
4.4 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreeme Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to thedl®®gistration Statemer
4.5 1994 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Ple Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the @amny’s Annual Report ¢
Form 1(-KSB for the fiscal year ended March 31, 19
4.6 1996 Stock Option Plan Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to the @any’s Registration
Statement on Form S-2 (No. 333-37977) declarect®ff=on November
18, 1997 (th¢*1997 Registration Statem(”).
4.7 2003 Long Term Incentive Plan Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to the @any’s Registration
Statement on Form-8 filed with the SEC on April 2, 200
4.8 2004 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Ple Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the RrStatement on
Schedule 14A for the 2004 Annual Shareholders Mge
4.9 Registration Rights Agreement among the Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Curifeaport on Form 8-K
Company and the investors identified on the filed on May 18, 2007.
signature pages thereto, dated as of May 18,
4.10 Form of Warrant to be issued by the Company Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to CuriReport on Form 8-K
investors in connection with the May 2007 Priv  filed on May 18, 2007.
Placemen
411 2010 Incentive Award Plan Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Br8iatement on
Schedule 14A filed on December 15, 20
412 Amended and Restated 2010 Incentive Award Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Rr8tatement on
Plan Schedule 14A filed on March 5, 201
4.14 Second Amended and Restated 2010 Incentiv  Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the FrStatement on
Award Plan Schedule 14A filed on March 3, 201
4.15 2014 Non-Employee Director Incentive Award Incorporated by reference to Appendix B to the RrStatement on
Plan Schedule 14A filed on March 3, 201
10.1 Amendment to Lease, dated October 3, 1996, Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to tree®mber 31, 1996 Form
and between the Company and Golkar Enterp  10-Q.
Ltd. relating to additional property in Torrance,
California
10.2 Lease Agreement, dated September 19, 1995 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to tA83. Registration

and between Golkar Enterprises, Ltd. and the
Company relating to the Company’s facility
located in Torrance, Californ

Statement.
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10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6*

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11*

10.12

10.13

10.14

Agreement and Plan of Reorganization, dated
of April 1, 1997, by and among the Company,
Marks, Richard Marks and Vincent Quek relati
to the acquisition of MVR and Unijc

Form of Indemnification Agreement for officers
and director:

Second Amendment to Lease, dated March 1¢
2002, between Golkar Enterprises, Ltd. and th
Company relating to property in Torrance,
California

Addendum to Vendor Agreement, dated May ¢
2004, between AutoZone Parts, Inc. and the
Company

Form of Orbian Discount Agreement between
Company and Orbian Cor

Form of Standard Industrial/Commercial Multi-
Tenant Lease, dated May 25, 2004, between t
Company and Golkar Enterprises, Ltd for prop
located at 530 Maple Avenue, Torrance,
California

Build to Suit Lease Agreement, dated October
2004, among Motorcar Parts de Mexico, S.A. (
CV, the Company and Beatrix Flourie Geoffi

Amendment No. 3 to Pay-On-Scan Addendurr
dated August 22, 2006, between AutoZone Pa
Inc. and the Compar

Amendment No. 1 to Vendor Agreement, date
August 22, 2006, between AutoZone Parts, In
and Motorcar Parts of America, Ir

Lease Agreement Amendment, dated October
2006, between the Company and Beatrix Flou
Geffroy

Third Amendment to Lease Agreement, dated
of November 20, 2006, between Motorcar Par
America, Inc. and Golkar Enterprises, L

Securities Purchase Agreement among the
Company and the investors identified on the
signature pages thereto, dated as of May 18,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to tB87LForm 10-K.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to tB87LRegistration
Statement

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.44 to tB6210-K.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to tB8£210-K.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to th8£210-K.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to th8£210-K.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CuriReport on Form 8-K
filed on November 2, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CuriReport on Form 8-K
filed on August 30, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to CuriReport on Form 8-K
filed on August 30, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Curieeport on Form 8-K
filed on October 20, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Curieaport on Form 8-K
filed on November 27, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Curfeeport on Form 8-K
filed on May 18, 2007.

43




Table of Contents

Number

Description of Exhibit

Method of Filing

10.15

10.16*

10.17*

10.18 *

10.19*

10.20 *

10.21 *

10.22 *

10.23

10.24

10.25

Amended and Restated Employment Agreeme
dated as of December 31, 2008, by and betwe
the Company and Selwyn Jo

Vendor Agreement dated as of March 31, 200!
between the Company and AutoZone Parts, Ir

Core Amendment to Vendor Agreement, datec
of March 31, 2009, between the Company anc
AutoZone Parts, Inc

Vendor Agreement Addendum, dated as of Mz
31, 2009, between the Company and AutoZon
Parts, Inc

Core Amendment to Vendor Agreement
Addendum, dated as of March 31, 2009, betwi
the Company and AutoZone Parts, |

Master Vendor Agreement, dated as of April 1
2009, between the Company and O’Reilly
Automotive, Inc.

Letter Agreement, dated as of April 1, 2009,
between the Company and O’Reilly Automotiv
Inc.

Vendor Agreement Addendum, dated as of Ag
1, 2009 between the Company and O’Reilly
Automotive, Inc.

Debenture, dated August 24, 2010, issued by
Fenwick Automotive Products Limited to
Motorcar Parts of America, In

Addendum to Unanimous Shareholders
Agreement, dated August 24, 2010, between
Motorcar Parts of America, Inc., Fenwick
Enterprises Inc., Escal Holdings Inc., Fencity
Holdings Inc., Jofen Holdings Inc., Gordon
Fenwick, Paul Fenwick, Joel Fenwick, Stanley
Fenwick, Karen Fenwick, Jack Shuster and F/
Holdings Inc.

Amended and Restated Debenture, dated
December 15, 2010, issued by Fenwick
Automotive Products Limited to Motorcar Parts
America, Inc.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Curfeeport on Form 8-K
filed January 7, 2009.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CuriRaport on Form 8-K
filed May 5, 2009.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Curieeport on Form 8-K
filed May 5, 2009.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CuriRaport on Form 8-K/A
filed on December 23, 2009.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to CuriReport on Form 8-K/A
filed on December 23, 2009.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Curifeaport on Form 8-K
filed on January 13, 2010.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Curfeeport on Form 8-K
filed on January 13, 2010.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Curieaport on Form 8-K
filed on January 13, 2010.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Curfeeport on Form 8-K
filed on August 30, 2010.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Curifeeport on Form 8-K
filed on August 30, 2010.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Curieeport on Form 8-K
filed on December 21, 2010.
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10.26

10.27*

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

Amended and Restated Addendum to Unanim
Shareholders Agreement, dated December 15
2010, between Motorcar Parts of America, Inc
Fenwick Enterprises Inc., Jack Shuster, Gordc
Fenwick, Paul Fenwick, Joel Fenwick, FAPL,
Fenwick Automotive Products Limited, Introcal
Inc., Escal Holdings Inc., Fencity Holdings Inc.
and Jofen Holdings Ins

Consignment Agreement, dated as of March 1
2011, among Motorcar Parts of America, Inc.,
Rafko Logistics Inc., Fenwick Automotive
Products Limited and FAPL Holdings Ir

Purchase Agreement, dated May 6, 2011, by ¢
among Motorcar Parts of America, Inc., FAPL
Holdings Inc., Jack Shuster, Gordon Fenwick,
Paul Fenwick and Joel Fenwic

Hold Agreement, dated May 6, 2011, between
Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. and FAPL
Holdings Inc.

Escrow Agreement, dated May 6, 2011, by an
among Motorcar Parts of America, Inc., FAPL
Holdings Inc., Jack Shuster, Gordon Fenwick,
Paul Fenwick, Joel Fenwick and Strikeman Ell
LLP

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, da
May 6, 2011, by and among Fenwick Automot
Products Limited, Introcan Inc., Manufactures
Traders Trust Company, M&T Bank and such
other lenders from time to time as may becom
party theretc

Core Amendment No. 3 to Vendor Agreement
dated as of May 31, 2011, by and between
Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. and AutoZone
Parts, Inc

Core Amendment No. 4 to Vendor Agreement
dated as of May 31, 2011, by and between
Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. and AutoZone
Parts, Inc

Addendum No. 2 to Amendment No. 1 to Venc
Agreement, dated as of May 31, 2011, by and
between Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. and
AutoZone Parts, Inc

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Curfeeport on Form 8-K
filed on December 21, 2010.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CuriRaport on Form 8-K
filed on March 7, 2011.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Curieeport on Form 8-K
filed on May 12, 2011.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to CurifReport on Form 8-K
filed on May 12, 2011.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Curfeeport on Form 8-K
filed on May 12, 2011.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Curieeport on Form 8-K
filed on May 12, 2011.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CurifReport on Form 8-K
filed on June 16, 2011.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Curifeeport on Form 8-K
filed on June 16, 2011.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Curieeport on Form 8-K
filed on June 16, 2011.
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10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44

Fifth Amendment, dated as of November 17,
2011, to that certain Standard Industrial
Commercial Single Tenant Lease-Gross, date!
of September 19, 1995, between Golkar
Enterprises, Ltd and Motorcar Parts of Americi
Inc., as amende

Financing Agreement, dated as of January 18,
2012, among Motorcar Parts of America, Inc.,
each lender from time to time party thereto,
Cerberus Business Finance, LLC, as collatera
agent, and PNC Bank, National Association, a
administrative ager

Subscription Agreement, dated April 20, 2012

Registration Rights Agreement, dated April 20
2012

Right of First Refusal Agreement, dated May &
2012

Employment Agreement, dated as of May 18,
2012, between Motorcar Parts of America, Inc
and Selwyn Joffi

Second Amendment to the Financing Agreem:
dated as of May 24, 2012, among Motorcar Pz
of America, Inc., each lender from time to time
party thereto, Cerberus Business Finance, LL(
collateral agent, and PNC Bank, National
Association, as administrative ags

Warrant to Purchase Common Stock, dated M
24, 2012, issued by Motorcar Parts of Americe
Inc. to Cerberus Business Finance, LLC in
connection with the Second Amendment to the
Financing Agreemer

Revolving Credit/Strategic Cooperation
Agreement, dated as of August 22, 2012, by a
among Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. (solely
purposes of provisions specified thereto), Fen
Automotive Products Limited and Wanxiang
America Corporatiol

Guaranty, dated as of August 22, 2012, by
Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. for the benefit
Wanxiang America Corporatic

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Curfeeport on Form 8-K
filed on November 25, 2011.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Curieeport on Form 8-K
filed on January 24, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Curieeport on Form 8-K
filed on April 23, 2012

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Curifeaport on Form 8-K
filed on April 23, 2012

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Curifeaport on Form 8-K
filed on May 7, 2012

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Curfeeport on Form 8-K
filed on May 24, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CurifReport on Form 8-K
filed on May 31, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to CurifReport on Form 8-K
filed on May 31, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Curieeport on Form 8-K
filed on August 28, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Curieeport on Form 8-K
filed on August 28, 2012.
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10.45

10.46

10.47

10.48

10.49

10.50

10.51

10.52

Warrant to Purchase Common Stock, dated as
August 22, 2012, issued by Motorcar Parts of
America, Inc. to Wanxiang America Corporati

Third Amendment and Waiver to the Financing
Agreement, dated as of August 22, 2012, amo
Motorcar Parts of America, Inc., each lender fr
time to time party thereto, Cerberus Business
Finance, LLC, as collateral agent, and PNC B:
National Association as administrative ag

Amendment No. 2 to the Amended and Restal
Credit Agreement, dated as of August 22, 201
by and among Fenwick Automotive Products
Limited, Introcan Inc., Manufacturers and Trad
Trust Company, as lead arranger, and M&T Bi
as administrative agent and a len

Stock Repurchase Agreement, dated as of
December 3, 2012, by and among Motorcar P
of America, Inc., Mel Marks and Melmarks
Enterprises LLLF

Fourth Amendment to Financing Agreement,
dated as of December 3, 2012, among Motorc
Parts of America, Inc., each lender from time t
time party thereto, Cerberus Business Finance
LLC, as collateral agent, and PNC Bank, Natic
Association, as administrative ag:

Option Purchase Agreement, dated as of Jant
16, 2013, by and between Motorcar Parts of
America, Inc. and Selwyn Jof

Fifth Amendment to Financing Agreement, dat
as of January 16, 2013, among Motorcar Parts
America, Inc., each lender from time to time p:
thereto, Cerberus Business Finance, LLC, as
collateral agent, and PNC Bank, National
Association, as administrative ag:

Amendment No. 3 to the Amended and Restal
Credit Agreement, dated as of February 13, 2(
by and among Fenwick Automotive Products
Limited, Introcan Inc., Manufacturers and Trad
Trust Company, as lead arranger, and M&T Bi
as administrative agent and a len

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Curieeport on Form 8-K
filed on August 28, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to CurifRaport on Form 8-K
filed on August 28, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to CuriRaport on Form 8-K
filed on August 28, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CuriRaport on Form 8-K
filed on December 6, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Curfeeport on Form 8-K
filed on December 6, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Curfeeport on Form 8-K
filed on January 17, 2013.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to CurifReport on Form 8-K
filed on January 17, 2013.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CurifReport on Form 8-K
filed on February 20, 2013.
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10.53

10.54

10.55

10.56

10.57

10.58

10.59

10.60

Mel Marks Agreement, dated and effective as
March 31, 2013, among Motorcar Parts of
America, Inc., Mel Marks and Mel Marks
Enterprises LLLF

Sixth Amendment to Financing Agreement, da
as of June 14, 2013, among Motorcar Parts of
America, Inc., each lender from time to time p:
thereto, Cerberus Business Finance, LLC, as
collateral agent, and PNC Bank, National
Association, as administrative ag:

Form of Stock Option Notice for use in
connection with stock options granted to Selw
Joffe pursuant to the Motorcar Parts of Americ
Inc. 2010 Incentive Award Ple

Form of Stock Option Agreement for use in
connection with stock options granted to Selw
Joffe pursuant to the Motorcar Parts of Americ
Inc. 2010 Incentive Award Ple

Seventh Amendment to the Financing Agreem
dated as of August 26, 2013, among Motorcar
Parts of America, Inc., each lender from time t
time party thereto, Cerberus Business Finance
LLC, as collateral agent, and PNC Bank, Natic
Association, as administrative ag:

Option Purchase Agreement, dated as of Octc
9, 2013, by and between Motorcar Parts of
America, Inc. and Selwyn Jof

Eighth Amendment to the Financing Agreemel
dated as of October 9, 2013, among Motorcar
Parts of America, Inc., each lender from time t
time party thereto, Cerberus Business Finance
LLC, as collateral agent, and PNC Bank, Natic
Association, as administrative ags

Ninth Amendment and Waiver to the Financ
Agreement, dated as of November 6, 2013, ar
Motorcar Parts of America, Inc., each lender fr
time to time party thereto, Cerberus Business
Finance, LLC, as collateral agent, and PNC B:
National Association, as administrative ag

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Curfeeport on Form 8-K
filed on May 16, 2013.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.58 to thé@2Annual Report on
Form 10-K filed on June 17, 2013.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CuriReport on Form 8-K
filed on August 12, 2013.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Curifeaport on Form 8-K
filed on August 12, 2013.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Curfeeport on Form 8-K
filed on August 30, 2013.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Curfeeport on Form 8-K
filed on October 10, 2013.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Curifeeport on Form 8-K
filed on October 10, 2013.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Qué&rtReport on Form 1@
filed on November 12, 2013.
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10.61

10.62

10.63

141

21.1

23.1

311

31.2

31.3

32.1

101.1

Amended and Restated Financing Agreement
dated as of November 6, 2013, among Motorc
Parts of America, Inc., each lender from time t
time party thereto, Cerberus Business Finance
LLC, as collateral agent, and PNC Bank, Natic
Association, as administrative ag:

First Amendment to the Amended and Restate
Financing Agreement, dated as of June 12, 2C
among Motorcar Parts of America, Inc., each
lender from time to time party thereto, Cerbert
Business Finance, LLC, as collateral agent, ar
PNC Bank, National Association, as
administrative ager

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement,
dated as July 1, 2014, between Motorcar Part:
America, Inc., and Selwyn Jof

Code of Business Conduct and Ett
List of Subsidiarie!

Consent of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm Ernst & Young LLI

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuai
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuan
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2

Certification of Chief Accounting Officer pursui
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2

Certifications of Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer and Chief Accounting Officer
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes Oxle!
of 2002

The following financial information from
Motorcar Parts of America, Inc.’'s Annual Repc
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March
2014, formatted in Extensible Business Repor!
Language (“XBRL") and furnished electronical
herewith: (i) the Consolidated Balance Sheets
the Consolidated Statements of Operations; (i
the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensi
Income (Loss), (iv) the Consolidated Statemer
Shareholders’ Equity; (v) the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows; and (vi) the Notes
Consolidated Financial Stateme

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Ameh@Qeiarterly Report on
Form 10-Q/A filed on February 10, 2014.

Filed herewith.

Filed herewith.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.48 to th@2Form 1-K.
Filed herewith

Filed herewith.

Filed herewith.

Filed herewith.

Filed herewith.

Filed herewith.

Filed herewith.

*  Portions of this exhibit have been granted confidétreatment by the SE(
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 15(d) @&écurities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrastduly caused this report to be signec

on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duth@ized.

Dated: June 16, 2014

Dated: June 16, 2014

MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC

By: /s/ David Lee

David Lee
Chief Financial Office

By: /s/ Kevin Daly

Kevin Daly
Chief Accounting Office!

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this Report on Form 10-K has lzgned by the following persons on

behalf of the Registrant in the capacities andchendates indicated:

/sl Selwyn Joffe
Selwyn Joffe

/s/ David Lee
David Lee

/s/ Kevin Daly
Kevin Daly

/sl Mel Marks
Mel Marks

/sl Scott Adelsol
Scott Adelsor

/s/ Rudolph Borne
Rudolph Bornec

/s/ Philip Gay
Philip Gay

/s/ Duane Miller
Duane Miller

/sl Jeffrey Mirvis
Jeffrey Mirvis

Chief Executive Officer and Director June 2614
(Principal Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer

June 16, 2014

Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer

June 16, 2014

Director June 16, 2014
Director June 16, 2014
Director June 16, 2014
Director June 16, 2014
Director June 16, 2014
Director June 16, 2014
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of MotoR=ts of America, Inc.

We have audited Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. sulosidiaries’ internal control over financial refimg as of March 31, 2014 based on
criteria established in Internal Control-Integrakgdmework issued by the Committee of Sponsorirgafizations of the Treadway
Commission (1992 framework) (the COSO criteria) tdfoar Parts of America, Inc. and subsidiaries’ aggament is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over finaalcieporting, and for its assessment of the effeatss of internal control over financial
reporting included in the accompanying Managemere&port on Internal Control over Financial Repati®ur responsibility is to express an
opinion on the company'’s internal control over fingl reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightri8q@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigéénternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®is:. audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etasting and evaluating the design and operatifegfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstancefeliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegeinerally accepted accounting princip
A company'’s internal control over financial repodiincludes those policies and procedures thai€ftrin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseocfompany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatp@aparation of financial statements in accor@anwith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely detectfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @étaisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agject to the risk that controls may become inadegibecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. aubsidiaries maintained, in all material respesffective internal control over financial
reporting as of March 31, 2014, based on COSOrite

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the consolida
balance sheets of Motorcar Parts of America, Ind.subsidiaries as of March 31, 2014 and 2013 {tlamdelated consolidated statements of
operations, comprehensive income (loss), sharetwldguity (deficit) and cash flows for each of theee years in the period ended March 31,
2014 and our report dated June 16, 2014 expressedcualified opinion.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Los Angeles, Californii
June 16, 201
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of MotoR=ts of America, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. aribisliaries (the “Company”) as of
March 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related conselibstatements of operations, comprehensive inctoss)(shareholders' equity (deficit) ¢
cash flows for each of the three years in the geginded March 31, 2014. Our audits also includedittancial statement schedule listed in the
index at Item 15(a)(2). These financial statemants schedule are the responsibility of the Comgamgnagement. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statememtseamedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBqUnited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtadsonable assurance about whether the finastaiainents are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thatodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@alove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial position of Motorcar
Parts of America, Inc. and subsidiaries at March2814 and 2013, and the consolidated resultseif tiperations and their cash flows for €
of the three years in the period ended March 3142 conformity with U.S. generally accepted againg principles. Also, in our opinion,
the related financial statement schedule, whenideresd in relation to the basic consolidated finalnstatements taken as a whole, presents
fairly in all material respects the information $ath therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Blo@/nited States), Motorcar Parts of
America, Inc.'s internal control over financial ogfing as of March 31, 2014, based on criterialdisfaed in Internal Control-Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imations of the Treadway Commission (1992 franv&jvand our report dated June
16, 2014 expressean unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Los Angeles, Californii
June 16, 201
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets

March 31,
2014 2013
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash $ 24,599,00 $ 19,346,00
Shor-term investment 521,00( 411,00(
Accounts receivabl— net 22,283,00 3,689,001
Inventor— net 47,246,00 31,838,00
Inventory unreturne 7,534,001 6,981,001
Deferred income taxe 18,767,00 30,996,00
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 4,316,001 8,195,001
Current assets of discontinued operations (Note 3) - 51,175,00
Total current asse 125,266,00 152,631,00
Plant and equipmer— net 11,025,00 10,036,00
Long-term core inventor— net 143,476,00 118,211,00
Long-term core inventory deposi 29,375,00 27,610,00
Long-term deferred income tax 2,614,001 2,377,001
Intangible asset— net 3,244,001 3,983,001
Other asset 3,853,00! 5,618,001
Long-term assets of discontinued operations (Npte 3 - 44,503,00
TOTAL ASSETS $318,853,00 $ 364,969,00
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 59,509,00 $ 39,152,00
Accrued liabilities 8,316,001 9,326,001
Customer finished goods returns acci 16,251,00 14,289,00
Revolving loar 10,000,00 -
Other current liabilitie: 1,270,001 1,192,001
Current portion of term loa 7,843,001 3,775,001
Current liabilities of discontinued operations (B@) - 151,914,00
Total current liabilities 103,189,00 219,648,00
Term loan, less current portit 79,434,00 78,130,00
Deferred core revent 15,065,00 12,014,00
Other liabilities 11,529,00 3,481,001
Long-term liabilities of discontinued operationsoti 3) - 55,210,00
Total liabilities 209,217,00 368,483,00
Commitments and contingenci
Shareholders' equit
Preferred stock; par value $.01 per share, 5,00086@res authorized; none iss| - -
Series A junior participating preferred stock; palue $.01 per share,20,000 shares authorized; insnec - -
Common stock; par value $.01 per share, 50,000666@0,000,000 shares authorized;15,067,645 ant
14,460,979 shares issued and outstanding at Marck034 and 2013, respective 151,00( 145,00(
Additional paic-in capital 120,553,00 114,737,00
Accumulated other comprehensive i (877,000 (846,00()
Accumulated deficit (10,191,00) (117,550,00)
Total shareholders' equity (deficit ) 109,636,00 (3,514,00)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY $318,853,00 $ 364,969,00

The accompanying notes to consolidated financééstents are an integral part hereof.
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years Ended March 31,

Net sales
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Operating expense
General and administrati
Sales and marketir
Research and developmt
Acquisition costs
Total operating expenses
Operating incom:
Interest expense, net

Income from continuing operations before incomeeapense
Income tax expense

Income from continuing operatiol
Income (loss) from discontinued operations

Net income (loss

Basic net income per share from continuing openal
Basic net income (loss) per share from discontimysstations

Basic net income (loss) per share

Diluted net income per share from continuing operest
Diluted net income (loss) per share from discorgthoperation

Diluted net income (loss) per share

Weighted average number of shares outstani
Basic

Diluted

2014 2013 2012
$258,669,00 $213,151,00 $178,551,00
177,103,00  143,810,00  121,219,00
81,566,00 69,341,00  57,332,00
39,684,00 25,807,00 20,621,00
7,838,001 7,290,001 7,659,001
1,940,001 1,930,001 1,765,001

- - 713,00
49,462,00 35,027,00 __ 30,758,00
32,104,00 34,314,00 26,574,00
18,289,00 12,324,00 4,841,00
13,815,00 21,990,00 21,733,00
7,333,001 7,432,001 7,385,001
6,482,001 14,558,00 14,348,00
100,877,00  (106,069,00)  (62,862,00)
$107,359,00 $ (91,511,00) $ (48,514,00)
$ 0.4 $ 1.01 $ 1.1F
6.8¢ (7.40) (5.0)

$ 7.3, $ (6.39 $ (3.90)
$ 0.4z $ 1.01 $ 1.12
6.5¢ (7.37) (4.93)

$ 7.01 $ (6.3 $ (3.80)
14,633,94 14,327,31 12,442,68
15,317,93 14,385,51 12,756,84

The accompanying notes to consolidated financékstents are an integral part hereof.
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (ks)
Years Ended March 31,

2014 2013 2012
Net income (loss $107,359,00 $ (91,511,00) $ (48,514,00)
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of
Unrealized gain on short-term investments (neawfdf $22,000, $11,000, and $0,
respectively’ 34,00( 162,00( 70,00(
Foreign currency translation (loss) gain (65,000 (124,000 (605,000
Total other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax (31,000 38,00( (535,000
Comprehensive income (loss) $107,328,00 $ (91,473,00) $ (49,049,00)

The accompanying notes to consolidated financékstents are an integral part hereof.
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity (Deit)
For the Years Ended March 31,

Common Stock

Treasury Stock

Shares

Amount

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Common
Stock

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Shares Amount Warrants

Accumulated Retained
Other Earnings
Comprehensive (Accumulated
Income (Loss) Deficit)

Total

Balance at March
31, 2011

Compensation
recognized und
employee stock
plans -
Exercise of
options
Tax benefit from
employee stock
options
exercisec -
Common stock
issued as
consideration fa
acquisition
Unrealized gain o
investments, ne
of tax -
Foreign currency
translation -
Net loss -

95,55(

360,00(

12,078,27 $121,00( (14,400 $ (89,000 $ 93,140,00 $ 1,879,00!

52,00(

1,00( - 320,00(

172,00(

3,00( 4,943,00 ]

$ (349,000 22,475,00

70,00( -

(605,00() -

$117,177,00

52,00(

321,00(

172,00(

4,946,001

70,00(

(605,00()

- (48,514,00) (48,514,00)

Balance at March
31, 2012

Compensation
recognized und
employee stock
plans -

Common stock
issued under
stock plans, net
of shares
withheld for
employee taxe

Repurchase of
options grante:

Tax benefit from
employee stock
options
exercisec -

Expired
unexercised
warrants

Repurchase of
common stock
including fees

Cancellation of
treasury stocl

Common stock
issued in
connection with
PIPE

52,53(

(67,34

1,936,00i

12,533,82 $125,00(

(14,400 $ (89,000 $ 98,627,00 $ 1,879,001

752,00(

1,00( 241,00(

(455,000()

101,00(

1,879,001 (1,879,001

(52,947 (300,00)

(1,000 67,347 389,00( (388,001

20,00( - - 14,985,00 -

$ (884,000 $ (26,039,00) $ 73,619,00

752,00(

242,00(

(455,000()

101,00(

(300,00()

15,005,00



Stock issuance
costs

Common stock
issued in lieu of
cash for PIPE
liquidated
damage:

Unrealized gain o
investments, ne
of tax

Foreign currency
translation

Net loss

Balance at March
31, 2013

Compensation
recognized und
employee stock
plans

Common stock
issued under
stock plans, net
of shares
withheld for
employee taxe

Repurchase of
options grante:

Tax benefit from
employee stock
options
exercisec

Unrealized gain o
investments, ne
of tax

Foreign currency
translation

Net income

Balance at March
31, 2014

- - - - (1,034,00)

5,97¢ - - - 29,00(

(1,034,00)

29,00(
162,00 - 162,00
(124,000) - (124,00()

- (91,511,00) (91,511,00)

14,460,97 $145,00( - $ - $114,737,00 $ - (846,000 $ (117,550,00) $ (3,514,001
; ; - - 969,00( - - - 969,00(

606,66  6,00( 5,760,001 5,766,001
(627,001 (627,001

- - - - (286,00() - - - (286,001

- 8 - - - - 34,00( . 34,00(

] ; - - - - (65,000) - (65,000)

; ; ; - - - - 107,359,00 107,359,00
15,067,64 $151,00( - $ - $120,553,00 $ - (877,000 $ (10,191,00) $109,636,00

The accompanying notes to consolidated financééstents are an integral part hereof.

F-4




Table of Contents

MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended March 31,

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income (loss
Less income (loss) from discontinued operations

Income from continuing operatiol

Adjustments to reconcile net income from continuamgrations to net cash provided b

(used in) operating activitie
Depreciatior
Amortization of intangible asse
Amortization of deferred financing cos
Loss due to change in fair value of warrant lidpi
Gain on extinguishment of warrant liabili
Provision for inventory reserve
Net (recovery of) provision for customer paymersicaepencie
Net (recovery of) provision for doubtful accou
Deferred income taxe
Sharebased compensation expel
Impact of tax benefit on APIC pool from stock opitsoexercise:
Loss on disposal of ass¢
Changes in current assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl
Inventory
Inventory unreturne
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Other asset
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit
Customer finished goods returns acci
Deferred core revent
Long-term core inventor
Long-term core inventory deposi
Other liabilities
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activitiesn continuing operatior
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activitiem discontinued operations
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchase of plant and equipm
Change in short term investments
Net cash used in investing activities from contiguoperation:
Net cash used in investing activities from discomid operations
Net cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activitie
Borrowings under revolving loe
Repayments under revolving lo
Proceeds from term loe
Repayments of term lo¢
Deferred financing cos
Payments on capital lease obligatit
Exercise of stock optior
Tax benefit from employee stock options exerc
Cash used to net share settle equity aw
Repurchase of common stock and options, includieg
Repurchase of warran
Proceeds from issuance of common st
Stock issuance costs
Net cash provided by financing activities from éoning operation:
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activifiesn discontinued operations
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Net (decrease) increase in Ci
Cash— Beginning of period from continuing operatic
Cash — Beginning of period from discontinued ogers

2014 2013 2012
$107,359,00 $ (91,511,00) $ (48,514,00)
100,877,00  (106,069,00)  (62,862,00)
6,482,001 14,558,00 14,348,00
2,003,001 2,076,001 2,692,001
739,00 773,00 774,00
4,574,001 1,702,00 576,00
10,443,00 389,00 -
(216,00) - -
1,620,001 1,814,001 3,216,001
(10,000 536,00 270,00
(47,000 166,00 (14,000
20,124,00 1,561,001 1,673,001
969,00 1,083,00! 52,00(
569,00 70,00( 83,00(
9,00( 3,00( 14,00(
(18,342,00) 5,940,001 (4,113,00)
(14,478,00)  (1,491,00)  (1,753,00)
(552,000  (1,296,00) (654,00()
3,689,001 (4,063,00) 2,982,001
(463,00) (321,00() (234,00()
18,965,00  (10,300,00)  12,834,00
1,961,001 3,242,001 1,886,001
3,051,001 2,239,001 1,046,001
(26,519,00)  (22,993,00)  (18,554,00)
(1,766,00) (671,00() (955,00()
485,00( 225,00 (367,00()
13,290,00 (4,758,00)  15,802,00
227,000 (26,303,00)  (54,290,00)
13,517,00  (31,061,00)  (38,488,00)
(2,978,00)  (2,330,00)  (1,010,00)
(54,000 (41,000 (37,000
(3,032,00)  (2,371,00) _ (1,047,00)
(295,000  (1,698,00) (544,00()
(3,327,00)  (4,069,00)  (1,591,00)
10,000,00 - 53,000,00
- - (53,000,00)
20,000,00 10,000,00 75,000,00
(11,600,00) (500,000 (7,500,001
(5,221,00) (799,000 (6,560,001
(196,00) (289,00) (373,00()
5,760,001 73,00( 320,00(
(286,00 101,00 172,00

: (163,00() -
(627,00) (755,000) -
(2,194,001 - -
6,00( 15,005,00 1,00(

- (1,034,00) -
15,642,00 21,639,00 61,060,00
(20,636,00) 263,00 9,122,001
(4,994,00)  21,902,00 70,182,00
(31,000 45,00( 37,00
516500  (13,183,00)  30,140,00
19,346,00 32,379,00 2,477,001
88,00( 238,00 -




Cash— End of perioc
Less Cash — End of period from discontinued openati

Cash — End of period from continuing operations

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informat
Cash paid during the period fc
Interest, ne
Income taxes, net of refun
Non-cash investing and financing activiti
Property acquired under capital lei
Warrants issued in connection with d
Common stock issued in business combine

24,599,00  19,43400  32,617,00
- 88,00( 238,00(

$ 2459900 $ 19,346,00 $ 32,379,00
$ 14,647,00 $ 2292300 $ 11,905,00
(16,472,00) 8,128,00 3,036,001
$ 303000 $ 155000 $ -
- 1,625,001 -

- - 4,946,00

The accompanying notes to consolidated financééstents are an integral part hereof.
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Company Background and Organization
Overview

Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. and its subsid&(ige “Company”, or “MPA”) is a leading manufaaurremanufacturer, and distributor of
aftermarket automotive parts. These replacemens pag sold for use on vehicles after initial véhgurchase. These automotive parts are sol
to automotive retail chain stores and warehoudeildlisors throughout North America and to majorcambbile manufacturers. The Company
began selling new wheel hub assemblies and whéebbarings in late June 2013.

The Company obtains used automotive parts, comnordwn as Used Cores, primarily from its customerder the Company’s core
exchange program. It also purchases Used Coresvieoihors (core brokers). The customers grant ctedite consumer when the used part is
returned to them, and the Company in turn provalesedit to the customers upon return to the CompHlmese Used Cores are an essential
material needed for the remanufacturing operations.

The Company has remanufacturing, warehousing aipgisly/receiving operations for automotive partdNiorth America and Asia. In additic
the Company utilizes various third party warehodis&ibution centers in North America.

The Company has determined that it has two opegratgments: (i) wheel hub assemblies and bearimdy§iig rotating electrical products
which consist of alternators and starters. Purtstaatine guidance provided under the Financial Aicting Standards Board (“FASB”)
Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC"), for segnt reporting the Company has determined that thpseting segments meet the criteria
for aggregation and accordingly the Company hasrepertable segment for purposes of recording apdrting its financial results.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemientade the accounts of Motorcar Parts of Amerina, and its wholly owned subsidiaries.
All significant inter-company accounts and tran&att have been eliminated. The Company has cladgfienco (as defined in Note 3)
operations as discontinued operations in the acaagipg consolidated financial statements as atre$tihe Fenco Entities (as defined in Note
3) voluntary petition for relief under Chapter 7Tofle 11 of the United States Code in the U.S.IBaptcy Court of the District of Delaware on
June 10, 2013 (see Note 3). Correspondingly, rsifieastions of Fenco’s assets, liabilities, andragiens for prior year periods to discontinued
operations have been made to conform to the cuyeants presentation.

Reclassifications

Certain items in the consolidated balance shedhfofiscal year ended March 31, 2013 have bedassified to conform to fiscal 2014
classifications. Certain deferred fees and caaits fo the Company’s lenders under its financingament have been reclassified from other
assets to an offset to the term loan in the codatdd balance sheet at March 31, 2013 to confortimetaonsolidated balance sheet presentatic
at March 31, 2014.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash primarily consists of cash on hand and bapksits. Cash equivalents consist of money marketfuThe Company considers all highly
liquid investments purchased with an original anaining maturity of less than three months at thie @f purchase to be cash equivalents.
Cash and cash equivalents are maintained withwsfioancial institutions.
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Accounts Receivable

The allowance for doubtful accounts is developesktaipon several factors including customer capgitity, historical write-off experience
and any known specific issues or disputes whichtesd of the balance sheet date. Accounts receiaablwritten off only when all collection
attempts have failed. The Company does not regoitateral for accounts receivable.

The Company has receivable discount programs that heen established with certain customers amdrédspective banks. Under these
programs, the Company has the option to sell thastomers’ receivables to those banks at a disdoure agreed upon at the time the
receivables are sold. Once the customer choos&hwhistanding invoices are going to be made adaif@r discounting, the Company can
accept or decline the bundle of invoices providétk receivable discount programs are non-recoarsefunds cannot be reclaimed by the
customer or its bank after the related invoicesHaaen discounted.

I nventory
Nor-core Inventory

Non-core inventory is comprised of (i) non-core rawtemials, (ii) the non-core value of work in proce@is) the non-core value of rotating
electrical finished goods, and (iv) purchased fiei$ goods. Used Cores, the Used Core value of ingrkocess and the Remanufactured Core
portion of finished goods are classified as longateore inventory as described below under thei@aptong-term Core Inventory.” Used
Cores are a source of raw materials used in theifaeturing of the Company’s rotating electrical guiots.

Non-core inventory is stated at the lower of cost arket. The cost of non-core remanufactured invgrapproximates average historical
purchase prices paid for raw materials, and isdapen the direct costs of material and an allocadif labor and variable and fixed overhead
costs. The cost of purchased finished goods inverigproximates average historical purchase ppaés, and an allocation of fixed overhead
costs. The cost of non-core inventory is evaluatddast quarterly during the fiscal year and admisis necessary to reflect current lower of
cost or market levels. These adjustments are ditedhfior individual items of inventory within eaofithe three classifications of non-core
inventory as follows:

* Non-core raw materials are recorded at average cbéthvis based on the actual purchase price of raverals on hand. The average
cost is updated quarterly. This average cost id irsthe inventory costing process and is the Hasiallocation of materials to
finished goods during the production proce

» Non-core work in process is in various stages of petida and is valued at the average cost of mageisaled to open work orders.
Historically, nor-core work in process inventory has not been matesiapared to the total n-core inventory balanc

* The cost of remanufactured finished goods includesaverage cost of nawore raw materials and allocations of labor andabéde anc
fixed overhead. The allocations of labor and vdeamnd fixed overhead costs are determined baséuecaverage actual use of the
production facilities over the prior twelve monthlikich approximates normal capacity. This method@nés the distortion in allocat
labor and overhead costs that would occur durimgtgreriods of abnormally low or high production.dddition, the Company
excludes certain unallocated overhead such asa®mercosts, duplicative facility overhead costs, soilage from the calculation ¢
expenses these unallocated overhead as period Eosthe fiscal years ended March 31, 2014, 2aa48,2012, costs of approximat
$1,070,000, $1,561,000, and $1,410,000, respegtivare considered unallocated overhead chargedttirto cost of sales and thus
excluded from the calculation of the cost for reofantured finished good

The Company records an allowance for potentiallyess and obsolete inventory based upon recentlsatesy, the quantity of inventory on-
hand, and a forecast of potential use of the irorgnThe Company periodically reviews inventoryidentify excess quantities and part
numbers that are experiencing a reduction in dem@anyg part numbers with quantities identified dgrithis process are reserved for at rates
based upon management’s judgment, historical ratesconsideration of possible scrap and liquidat@ues which may be as high as 100%
of cost if no liquidation market exists for the par
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The quantity thresholds and reserve rates are ctiligeand are based on management’s judgment ansll&dge of current and projected
industry demand. The reserve estimates may, therdfe revised if there are changes in the overatket for the Company’s products or
market changes that in management’s judgment, itigsagbility to sell or liquidate potentially exegor obsolete inventory. The Company ha
recorded $2,708,000 and $2,498,000 for excess lasmlete inventory at March 31, 2014 and 2013, mspy. This increase was primarily
recorded in the Company’s non-core inventory duta¢aincreased inventory levels.

The Company records vendor discounts as a reductimventories that are recognized as a redut¢ta@ost of sales as the inventories are
sold.

Inventory Unreturne(

Inventory unreturned represents the Compsuegtimate, based on historical data and prosgeictiormation provided directly by the custon

of finished goods shipped to customers that the [i2omy expects to be returned after the balance slagetBecause all cores are classified
separately as long-term assets, the inventory ummed balance includes only the added unit valdeshed goods. The return rate is
calculated based on expected returns within thmaboperating cycle of one year. As such, the edlamounts are classified in current assets

Inventory unreturned is valued in the same mans¢he Company’s finished goods inventory.
Long-term Core Inventory
Long-term core inventory consists of:

» Used Cores purchased from core brokers and héftyémtory at the Compa’s facilities,

e Used Cores returned by the Comg’s customers and held in inventory at the Com’s facilities,

* Used Cores returned by end-users to customersopyenreturned to the Company are classified and®efactured Cores until they
are physically received by the Compa

 Remanufactured Cores held in finished goods invgrabthe Compar's facilities; anc

« Remanufactured Cores held at customer locatioaspast of finished goods sold to the customer.tRese Remanufactured Cores,
Company expects the finished good containing thedmifactured Core to be returned under the Compaygyieral right of return
policy or a similar Used Core to be returned to@menpany by the customer, in each case, for ci

Long-term core inventory is recorded at averag®hisal purchase prices determined based on aptuahases of inventory on hand. The cost
and market value of Used Cores for which sufficietent purchases have occurred are deemed theasatime purchase price for purchases
that are made in arm’s length transactions.

Long-term core inventory recorded at average hicdbpurchase prices is primarily made up of Usede8 for newer products related to more
recent automobile models or products for whichehisra less liquid market. The Company must puetiasse Used Cores from core brokers
because its customers do not have a sufficientlgabphese newer Used Cores available for the egphange program.

Used Cores obtained in core broker transactionsalved based on average purchase price. The avpurghase price of Used Cores for ir
recent automobile models is retained as the coshése Used Cores in subsequent periods evemr astince of these Used Cores shifts to the
core exchange program.

Long-term core inventory is recorded at the lowfecast or market value. In the absence of sufficienent purchases, the Company uses cor
broker price lists to assess whether Used Coreesmsteds Used Core market value on an item bybtsis. The primary reason for the
insufficient recent purchases is that the Compdgins most of its Used Core inventory from thetaoer core exchange program.
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The Company classifies all of its core inventoasedong-term assets. The determination of the teng-classification is based on its view that
the value of the cores is not consumed or realizedsh during the Company’s normal operating cyelgich is one year for most of the cores
recorded in inventory. According to guidance preddinder the FASB ASC, current assets are definédssets or resources commonly
identified as those which are reasonably expectdxt trealized in cash or sold or consumed duriagitirmal operating cycle of the business.”
The Company does not believe that core inventowbg;h the Company classifies as long-term, aresaored because the credits issued upor
the return of Used Cores offset the amounts invbwlen the Remanufactured Cores included in fimisi@ds were sold. The Company does
not expect the core inventories to be consumedttarsithe Company does not expect to realize casl jts relationship with a customer er

a possibility that the Company considers remotedas existing long-term customer agreements astdrigal experience.

However, historically for certain finished goodddsahe Company’s customer will not send the Conypmitused Core to obtain the credit the
Company offers under its core exchange programreftue, based on the Company’s historical estintaeeCompany relieves the core value
for these finished goods upon sale, as the Combpaeligves they have been consumed and the Compamglized cash.

The Company realizes cash for only the core exahanggram shortfall. This shortfall representsttistorical difference between the number
of finished goods shipped to customers and the eambUsed Cores returned to the Company by custriibe Company does not realize
cash for the remaining portion of the cores bec#useredits issued upon the return of Used Cdifsstthe amounts invoiced when the
Remanufactured Cores included in finished good®weld. The Company does not expect to realize foathe remaining portion of these
Remanufactured Cores until its relationship wittuatomer ends, a possibility that the Company censiremote based on existing long-term
customer agreements and historical experience.

For these reasons, the Company concluded thatibis appropriate to classify core inventory agiiterm assets.
Long-term Core Inventory Deposit

The long-term core inventory deposit account regmesthe value of Remanufactured Cores the Comparghased from customers, which are
held by the customers and remain on the custorpeggiises. The purchase is made through the isswéircedits against that customer’s
receivables either on a one-time basis or oveigagea-upon period. The credits against the custamegeivable are based upon the
Remanufactured Core purchase price previously ksftald with the customer. At the same time, the @amny records the long-term core
inventory deposit for the Remanufactured Coresimsed at its cost, determined as noted under Lemg-€ore Inventory. The long-term core
inventory deposit is stated at the lower of cogharket. The cost is established at the time ofrdmesaction based on the then current cost,
determined as noted under Long-term Core Invenfng. difference between the credit granted anddisé of the long-term core inventory
deposit is treated as a sales allowance reducuemuoe. When the purchases are made over an agpeedsariod, the long-term core inventory
deposit is recorded at the same time the credisised to the customer for the purchase of the Refaetured Cores.

At least annually, and as often as quarterly, retiations and confirmations are performed to deiee that the number of Remanufactured
Cores purchased, but retained at the customeidosaremains sufficient to support the amountsmed in the long-term core inventory
deposit account. At the same time, the mix of Rarferiured Cores is reviewed to determine that §ggemate value of Remanufactured Ci
in the account has not changed during the repop@rpd. The Company evaluates the cost of congsating the aggregate long-term core
inventory deposit account each quarter. If the Camgagdentifies any permanent reduction in eithernbimber or the aggregate value of the
Remanufactured Core inventory mix held at the qustdocation, the Company will record a reductionhe long-term core inventory deposit
account resulting in a corresponding increase $b @bsales during that period.

F-9




Table of Contents

Customer Finished Goods Returns Accrual

The customer finished goods returns accrual reptegke Company’s estimate of its exposure to oustaeturns, including warranty returns,
under its general right of return policy to allowstomers to return items that their end user custsimave returned to them and from time to
time, stock adjustment returns when the custonieventory of certain products exceeds the antieipaales to end-user customers. The
customer finished goods returns accrual represkatson-core sales value of the estimated returdssaclassified as a current liability due to
the expectation that these returns will occur witthie normal operating cycle of one year.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using thditiamethod, which measures deferred income tdweapplying enacted statutory rate
effect at the balance sheet date to the differebeageen the tax basis of assets and liabilitielstaair reported amounts in the financial
statements. The resulting asset or liability isiatfd to reflect changes in the tax laws as theyro@ valuation allowance is provided to
reduce deferred tax assets when it is more likedy tnot that a portion of the deferred tax asskinwat be realized.

The primary components of the Company’s incomeptaxision are (i) the current liability or refundel for federal, state and foreign income
taxes and (ii) the change in the amount of thede&trred income tax asset, including the effeetryf change in the valuation allowance.

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependermt tippCompany’s ability to generate sufficient fettaxable income. The Company reviews
its deferred tax assets on a jurisdiction by jucison basis to determine whether it is more likédgn not that the deferred tax assets will be
realized. The Company believes that it is moreyikiean not that future taxable income will be giént to realize the recorded deferred tax
assets. In evaluating this ability, the Companysaers long-term agreements, including Remanufadt@ore purchase obligations, with each
of its major customers that expire at various detesugh March 2019. The Company periodically corapats forecasts to actual results.
Although there can be no assurance that the faegtassults will be achieved, the history of incamall jurisdictions provides sufficient
positive evidence that no valuation allowance isdegl.

Plant and Equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost, less adatedwepreciation. The cost of additions and impneents are capitalized, while
maintenance and repairs are charged to expenseintiened. Depreciation is provided on a straighé-basis in amounts sufficient to relate
the cost of depreciable assets to operations beardstimated service lives. Machinery and equiptinaee depreciated over a range from fiv
ten years. Office equipment and fixtures are deated over a range from three to ten years. Leddefmprovements are depreciated over the
lives of the respective leases or the service lofdbe leasehold improvements, whichever is shoBiepreciation of assets recorded under
capital leases is included in depreciation expense.

I ntangible Assets

The Company’s intangible assets other than goodwaéllfinite—lived and amortized on a straight lxasis over their respective useful lives.
Finite-lived intangible assets are analyzed forampent when and if indicators of impairment ex#ss.of March 31, 2014, there were no
indicators of impairment.

Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs include fees and costsried to obtain financing. The fees and costs fraldnders under the Company’s financing
agreement are recorded as an offset to the temnalod the fees and costs paid to third party noddes are recorded in other assets in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Thesafgecosts are amortized using the straight-liathad, which approximates the effective
interest rate method, over the terms of the relktads and are included in interest expense ilCttrapany’s consolidated statements of
operations.
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Foreign Currency Trandation

For financial reporting purposes, the functionatrency of the foreign subsidiaries is the localrency. The assets and liabilities of foreign
operations for which the local currency is the tiomal currency are translated into the U.S. ddlathe exchange rate in effect at the balance
sheet date, while revenues and expenses are texhalzaverage exchange rates during the yearadthenulated foreign currency translation
adjustment is presented as a component of comsiteeincome or loss in the consolidated statemaigbareholders’ equity.

Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes revenue when performantieeb@ompany is complete and all of the followingeria have been met:
» Persuasive evidence of an arrangement e:
» Delivery has occurred or services have been redd
» The selle’s price to the buyer is fixed or determinable,
»  Collectability is reasonably assur¢

For products shipped free-on-board (“FOB”) shippiregnt, revenue is recognized on the date of shippnf®r products shipped FOB
destination, revenues are recognized on the estihtatactual date of delivery. The Company inclustépping and handling charges in its
gross invoice price to customers and classifiegdte# amount as revenue. Shipping and handlints@re recorded as cost of sales.

The price of a finished rotating electrical prodseold to customers is generally comprised of séplgranvoiced amounts for the
Remanufactured Core included in the product (“Reufastured Core value”) and for the value addeddoyanufacturing (“unit value”). Unit
value revenue is recorded based on the Companigs |st, net of applicable discounts and allowandée Company allows customers to
return slow moving and other inventory. The Compprovides for such returns of inventory by redudiegenue and cost of sales for the unit
value of goods sold that are expected to be retiipased on a historical return analysis and inftionabbtained from customers about current
stock levels as further described under the captiG@ustomer Finished Goods Returns Accrual” andéhtory Unreturned”.

The Company accounts for revenues and cost of salasnet-of-core-value basis. The Company hasrdated that its business practices and
contractual arrangements result in a significamtipo of the Remanufactured Cores sold being requlday similar Used Cores sent back for
credit by customers under the Compangre exchange program. Accordingly, the Compawijudes the value of Remanufactured Cores -
revenue.

When the Company ships a product, it recognizesbéigation to accept a similar Used Core sent haader the core exchange program by

recording a contra receivable account based uppRé&manufactured Core price agreed upon by the &oyrgind its customer. Upon receip

a Used Core, the Company grants the customer & beesitd on the Remanufactured Core price billetirastores the Used Core to on-hand
inventory.

When the Company ships a product, it invoices sedastomers for the Remanufactured Core portiath@foroduct at full Remanufactured
Core sales price. For these Remanufactured Chve§€dmpany recognizes core revenue based uporiuatesof the rate at which the
Company'’s customers will pay cash for Remanufadt@eres in lieu of sending back similar Used Cdoesredits under the Company’s core
exchange program.

In addition, the Company recognizes revenue relmétemanufactured Cores originally sold at a nainimice and not expected to be repla
by a similar Used Core under the core exchangeranogUnlike the full price Remanufactured Cores, @ompany only recognizes revenue
from nominally priced Remanufactured Cores not etgubto be replaced by a similar Used Core serk bader the core exchange program
when the Company believes it has met all of thiefahg criteria:
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 The Company has a signed agreement with the custmowering the nominally priced Remanufactured Garet expected to be
replaced by a similar Used Core sent back undecdheexchange program. This agreement must spibeifgumber of
Remanufactured Cores its customer will pay caslnféeu of sending back a similar Used Core arallihsis on which the nominally
priced Remanufactured Cores are to be valued (riyrthe average price per Remanufactured Core lstipd in the agreemen

e The contractual date for reconciling the Compamgtords and customer’s records of the number ofimaliy priced Remanufactured
Cores not expected to be replaced by a similar \@s@d sent back under the core exchange prograrnbaus the current or a prior
period.

*  The reconciliation of the nominally priced Remartitsed Cores must be completed and agreed to bgudtemer
*  The amount must be billed to the custon

The Company has agreed in the past and may inutheefagree to buy back Remanufactured Cores. iffegeshce between the credit granted
and the cost of the Remanufactured Cores boughtibaeated as a sales allowance reducing revékaa.result of the increasing level of
Remanufactured Core buybacks, the Company nowsletee revenue from these customers until theme expectation that the sales
allowances associated with Remanufactured Coredmkgfrom these customers will offset Remanufact@ere revenues that would
otherwise be recognized once the criteria noted@bave been met. At March 31, 2014 and 2013, Refaatured Core revenue of
$15,065,000 and $12,014,000, respectively, wasdefe

Marketing Allowances

The Company records the cost of all marketing adlloges provided to its customers. Such allowanadsda sales incentives and concessions
Voluntary marketing allowances related to a sirgglehange of product are recorded as a reductioevehues at the time the related revenues
are recorded or when such incentives are offertélterOnarketing allowances, which may only be aplp#igainst future purchases, are recoi
as a reduction to revenues in accordance with edsté set forth in the relevant contract. Salesritice amounts are recorded based on the
value of the incentive provided. See Note 14 fdescription of all marketing allowances.

Advertising Costs

The Company expenses all advertising costs asredtufAdvertising expenses from the Company’s caoiittign operations for the fiscal years
ended March 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were $205%B%R,000, and $381,000, respectively.

Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Basic net income (loss) per share is computed Widid net income (loss) by the weighted averagalmer of shares of common stock
outstanding during the period. Diluted net incoiess) per share includes the effect, if any, frbenpotential exercise or conversion of
securities, such as stock options and warrantghwhiould result in the issuance of incremental shaf common stock.
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The following presents a reconciliation of basid ailuted net income (loss) per share.

Years Ended March 31,

2014 2013 2012
Income from continuing operatiol $ 6,482,000 $ 14,558,00 $ 14,348,00
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 100,877,00  (106,069,00) (62,862,00)
Net income (loss $107,359,00 $ (91,511,00) $ (48,514,00)
Basic share 14,633,94 14,327,31 12,442,68
Effect of dilutive stock options and warrants 683,98! 58,20¢ 314,16
Diluted shares 15,317,93 14,385,51 12,756,84
Net income (loss) per shal
Basic net income per share from continuing openal $ 0.4t $ 1.01 $ 1.1%
Basic net income (loss) per share from discontimygtations 6.8¢ (7.40) (5.05)
Basic net income (loss) per share $ 7.3/ % (6.39) $ (3.90
Diluted net income per share from continuing openrst $ 04z $ 1.01 $ 1.15
Diluted net income (loss) per share from discorgthoperations 6.5¢ (7.37) (4.93)
Diluted net income (loss) per share $ 7.01 $ (6.3€) $ (3.80)

The effect of dilutive options and warrants excki@i@ 77,000 shares subject to options with exerpisces ranging from $13.65 to $19.94 per
share for the year ended March 31, 2014, (ii) 1,322 shares subject to options and 735,484 shabgscs to warrants with exercise prices
ranging from $5.83 to $15.06 per share for the yealed March 31, 2013, and (iii) 463,000 sharegestio options and 546,283 shares sut
to warrants with exercise prices ranging from $30d7$15.06 per share for the year ended MarclR@12.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statem@ntonformity with accounting principles geneyaltcepted in the United States (“GAAP”)
requires management to make estimates and assasfhiat affect the reported amounts in the conatditifinancial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could diffenfrihose estimates. On an on-going basis, the Coympaiuates its estimates, including
those related to the carrying amount of plant apndmnent, valuation of acquisition-related intargiassets, impairment of long-lived assets,
valuation and return allowances for receivablegeimories, and deferred income taxes, accrueditiabj warrant liability, share-based
compensation, and litigation and disputes.

The Company uses significant estimates in the tation of sales returns. These estimates are las#dute Company’s historical return rates
and an evaluation of estimated sales returns frmeoiic customers.

The Company uses significant estimates in the ttion of the lower of cost or market value of letegm core inventory.

The Company’s calculation of inventory reservelags significant estimates. The basis for the oy reserve is a comparison of inventory
on hand to historical production usage or salesmek.

The Company records its liability for self-insunedrkers’ compensation by including an estimatehefltability associated with total claims
incurred and reported as well as an estimate dfabaities associated with incurred, but not repd, claims determined by applying the
Company’s historical claims development factort$oeistimate of the liabilities associated with imed and reported claims.

The Company uses significant estimates in the tion of its income tax provision or benefit bying forecasts to estimate whether it will
have sufficient future taxable income to realizediéferred tax assets. There can be no assurdmateke Company’s taxable income will be
sufficient to realize such deferred tax assets.
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The Company uses significant estimates in the angoalculation of potential liabilities from uncairt tax positions that are more likely than
not to occur.

A change in the assumptions used in the estimatesafes returns, inventory reserves and incomestaguld result in a difference in the reli
amounts recorded in the Company’s consolidatedéizh statements.

Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of cash, short-term investmaticounts receivable, accounts payable and attabdities approximate their fair value
due to the short-term nature of these instrum@ifits.carrying amounts of the revolving loan, teren@nd other long-term liabilities
approximate their fair value based on current ridemstruments with similar characteristics.

Stock Options and Share-Based Payments

In accounting for share-based compensation awtres;ompany follows the accounting guidance foiitgehased compensation, which
requires that the Company measure the cost of gmplservices received in exchange for an awardufyeinstruments based on the grant-
date fair value of the award. The cost associaiédstock options is estimated using the Black-$ehoption-pricing model. The cost of
equity instruments is recognized in the consolidatatements of operations on a straigte-basis (net of estimated forfeitures) overleeod
during which an employee is required to provideviserin exchange for the award. Also, excess taefits realized are reported as a financing
cash inflow.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model requiresitipait of subjective assumptions including the etpé volatility of the underlying stock
and the expected holding period of the option. Ermsjective assumptions are based on both hiate@md other information. Changes in the
values assumed and used in the model can mateafédigt the estimate of fair value. Options to fmarge 331,000, 635,800 and 15,000 shares
of common stock were granted during the years edbdh 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The table below summarizes the Black-Scholes ogtiaring model assumptions used to derive the weijaverage fair value of the stock
options granted during the periods noted.

Years Ended March 31,

2014 2013 2012
Weighted average risk free interest 1 1.8¢% 1.17% 1.74%
Weighted average expected holding period (ye 5.8¢ 6.6( 6.2¢
Weighted average expected volatil 48.15% 44.25% 40.28%
Weighted average expected dividend yi - - -
Weighted average fair value of options grar $ 5.1¢ $ 29 $ 4.21
Credit Risk

The majority of the Company'’s sales are to leadingpmotive aftermarket parts suppliers. Managerbelves the credit risk with respect to
trade accounts receivable is limited due to the @amy’s credit evaluation process and the natuits @ustomers. However, should the
Company’s customers experience significant caskh flmblems, the Company’s financial position arglitts of operations could be materially
and adversely affected, and the maximum amourtdssf that would be incurred would be the outstandiegivable balance, Used Cores
expected to be returned by customer, and the vidltree Remanufactured Cores held at customerstitotsat March 31, 2014.
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Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company has a deferred compensation plan ftaicenembers of management. The plan allows ppaiits to defer salary and bonuses.
The assets of the plan are held in a trust andutbect to the claims of the Compasigieneral creditors under federal and state lawseirever

of insolvency. Consequently, the trust qualifiesd®abbi trust for income tax purposes. The plas&ets consist primarily of mutual funds anc
are classified as available for sale. The investmare recorded at market value, with any unreadlgaen or loss recorded as other
comprehensive income or loss in shareholders’ ggaidjustments to the deferred compensation ohtigadre recorded in operating expenses
The Company did not redeem any of its short-tevestments for the payment of deferred compensétbilities during the years ended
March 31, 2014 and 2013. The carrying value of plssets was $521,000 and $411,000, and deferregecsation obligation was $521,000
and $411,000 at March 31, 2014 and 2013, respégctidaring the years ended March 31, 2014, 201d,201.2 an expense of $10,000, $8,
and $8,000, respectively, was recorded for eachrgdated to the deferred compensation plan.

Comprehensive Income or Loss

Comprehensive income or loss is defined as thegehamequity during a period resulting from trangats and other events and circumstance:
from non-owner sources. The Company’s total comgmsive income or loss consists of net unrealizedrnre or loss from foreign currency
translation adjustments and unrealized gains @eksn short-term investments.

New Accounting Pronouncements
Accumulated other comprehensive incollAOCI")

In the first quarter of fiscal 2014, the Compangptéd an accounting standard issued by the FASBehaires entities to provide details of
reclassifications in the disclosure of changes @CA balances. In addition, for significant itemslessified out of AOCI in the fiscal year,
entities must provide information about the effamtsnet income together, in one location, on tloe faf the statement where net income is
presented, or as a separate disclosure in the. fkiegems not reclassified to net income in tlegitirety in the fiscal year, entities must cross-
reference to the note where additional details atfmueffects of the reclassifications are disaiodée adoption of this update did not impact
the Company'’s financial position, results of opierag or cash flows.

Income Taxe

In July 2013, the FASB issued guidance that requargities to present an unrecognized tax bemefd, portion of an unrecognized tax benefit,
as a reduction to a deferred tax asset for a reatipg loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, ¢aacredit carryforward when settlement in this
manner is available under the tax law and the Compgends to use the deferred tax asset for thiggqse. The amendments in this update ar
effective for fiscal years, and interim periodshinitthose fiscal years, beginning after Decembe0%3. The adoption of this guidance is not
expected to have a material impact on the Compdimgdscial position, results of operations or céetws.

Discontinued Operation

In April 2014, the FASB issued guidance on repgrtiiscontinued operations. The new guidance chathgesriteria for determining which
disposals can be presented as discontinued opesatial modifies related disclosure requirementsledthe new guidance, a discontinued
operation is defined as a disposal of a componegtaup of components that is disposed of or issifeed as held for sale and represents a
strategic shift that has or will have a major effee an entity’s operations and financial resulltse guidance applies prospectively to new
disposals and new classifications of disposal gs@agpheld for sale after the effective date. Thedsrd is required to be adopted by public
business entities in annual periods beginning cafter December 15, 2014, and interim periods withbse annual periods. The adoption of
this guidance is not expected to have a materiphahon the Company’s financial position, resuftsfgerations or cash flows.

Revenue Recognitic

In May 2014, the FASB issued an amendment to thewading guidance related to revenue recognititte &mendment was the result of a
joint project between the FASB and the Internatigxexounting Standards Board ("IASB") to clarifyetiprinciples for recognizing revenue ¢
to develop common revenue standards for U.S. GAAPlaternational Financial Reporting StandardsR®). To meet those objectives, the
FASB is amending the FASB ASC and creating a nepid606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers,thedASB is issuing IFRS 15,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The newaguid is effective prospectively for annual peribdginning after December 15, 2016,
and interim periods within those years. Early agailon is not permitted. The Company is evaluatigimpact of adopting this prospective
guidance to its consolidated financial statements.
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3. Discontinued Operations and Deconsolidation oféhco

In May 2011, the Company purchased (i) all of thestanding equity of Fenwick Automotive Productmited (“FAPL"), (i) all of the
outstanding equity of Introcan, Inc., a Delawargooation (“Introcan”), and (iii) 1% of the outstding equity of Fapco S.A. de C.V., a
Mexican variable capital company (“Fapco”) (colleety, “Fenco” and also referred to herein as tHis¢ontinued subsidiary”). Since FAPL
owned 99% of Fapco prior to these acquisitionsQbmpany owned 100% of Fapco.

Between May 2011 and its bankruptcy in June 20&8¢cB had been attempting to turn around its busiré@vever, revenues generated by its
undercar product line segment were not sufficierdrtable Fenco to meet its operating expensestaedidse implement its undercar product
line turnaround plan. Fenco had recurring operdtisges since the date of acquisition and had &imagcapital and equity deficiency.

In May 2013, FAPL appointed a new board of indegendlirectors, hired an independent chief restrirgjuofficer and all its previously
existing officers resigned from FAPL. As a reslltass of control of Fenco, the Company deconstdiddhe assets and liabilities of Fenco
from its consolidated financial statements effectiday 31, 2013. On June 10, 2013, each of FAPkodah and Introcan’s subsidiaries, Flo-
Pro Inc., LH Distribution Inc., Rafko Logistics Ind&Rafko Holdings Inc. and Rafko Enterprises lrollectively, the “Fenco Entities”), filed a
voluntary petition for relief under Chapter 7 ofl€i11 of the United States Code (the “Bankruptegl€) in the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the
District of Delaware. As a result of the loss ohtol of Fenco and the subsequent filing of thetjoet for relief under the Bankruptcy Code,
Fenco had effectively been disposed of and the @omgdid not and does not retain any continuing lvenment in the operations of Fenco. -
Company may be subject to claims relating to thekhgtcy (see Note 19).

The following table summarizes the effects on thesolidated balance sheet of the deconsolidatidgtento effective May 31, 2013.

Cash $ (170,000
Accounts receivabl— net (4,377,00i)
Inventory— net (25,731,00)
Inventory unreturne (5,321,00i)
Deferred income taxe (225,000
Prepaid expenses and other current a: (2,436,00i)
Plant and equipmer— net (4,018,001
Long-term core inventor— net (40,471,00)
Other assets (22,000
Reduction in total assets $ (82,771,00)
Accounts payabl $ (75,454,00)
Accrued liabilities (4,759,00)
Customer finished goods returns accl (10,744,00)
Other current liabilitie (1,761,001
Revolving loar- in default (48,520,00)
Term loan- in default (20,000,00)
Customer core returns accri (49,531,00)
Other liabilities (97,000
Reduction in total liabilties $(200,866,00)
Gain from deconsolidation of Fenco $ 118,095,00

Net sales from discontinued operations for theafiyears ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 were $19%00 and $185,136,000, respectivi
A loss of approximately $5,910,000 was incurredrfrdiscontinued operations from April 1, 2013 to Madly 2013. In addition, during the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2014, the Company dexba loss of approximately $20,464,000 in cononaatiith the guarantee of obligations
certain Fenco suppliers and recorded related indamnbenefits of $9,156,000. In addition, an ineoex benefit of $1,374,000 was included
in the gain from deconsolidation of Fenco.
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4. Intangible Assets

The following is a summary of the intangible assefigject to amortization at March 31.:

2014 2013
Weighted
Average Gross Gross
Amortization Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Period Value Amortization Value Amortization
Intangible assets subject to amortizatior
Trademarks 9 years $ 553,000 $ 391,000 $ 553,000 $ 337,00(
Customer relationshiy 12 years 6,464,001 3,393,001 6,464,001 2,743,00i
Non-compete agreements 4 years 257,00( 246,00( 257,00( 211,00(
Total 11 years $ 7,274000 $ 4,030,000 $ 7,274,000 $ 3,291,00

Amortization expense for acquired intangible asiets follows:

Years Ended March 31,
2014 2013 2012

Amortization expens $ 739,000 $ 773,000 $ 774,00(
The estimated future amortization expense for gitala assets subject to amortization is as follows:

Year Ending March 31,

2015 $ 670,00(
2016 349,00(
2017 266,00(
2018 266,00(
2019 266,00(
Thereafter 1,427,00!
Total $ 3,244,00

5. Short-Term Investments

The short-term investments account contains thetas$ the Company’s deferred compensation plaa.plén’s assets consist primarily of
mutual funds and are classified as available fla. §ehe Company did not redeem any short-term imvests for the payment of deferred
compensation liabilities during the year ended Ma&t, 2014. As of March 31, 2014 and 2013, therfairket value of the short-term
investments was $521,000 and $411,000, and thiitiiab plan participants was $521,000 and $410,0@spectively.

6. Accounts Receivable— Net

Included in accounts receivable — net are signifiedfset accounts related to customer allowaneesesl (see Note 14), customer payment
discrepancies, returned goods authorizations (“RGgsued for in-transit unit returns, estimatedifatcredits to be provided for Used Cores
returned by the customers (see Note 2) and potdsaithdebts. Due to the forward looking nature gnaddifferent aging periods of certain
estimated offset accounts, they may not, at angtpoitime, directly relate to the balances in éiteounts receivable—trade account.

F-17




Table of Contents

Accounts receivable — net is comprised of the feitg at March 31;

2014 2013
Accounts receivabl— trade $ 58,766,00 $ 40,686,00
Allowance for bad debt (854,000 (1,019,001
Customer allowances earn (9,088,00i) (11,160,00)
Customer payment discrepanc (577,000 (514,000
Customer returns RGA issu (5,809,00) (4,966,00)
Customer core returns accruals (20,155,00) (19,338,00)
Less: total accounts receivable offset accounts (36,483,00) (36,997,00)
Total accounts receivable — net $ 22,283,00 $ 3,689,00

As of May 31, 2013, $4,377,000 of accounts recdesabthe discontinued subsidiary was deconsoléiifiten the consolidated financial
statements of the Company (see Note 3).

Warranty Returns

The Company allows its customers to return goodseaCompany that their end-user customers hauened to them, whether the returned
item is or is not defective (warranty returns). T@mpany accrues an estimate of its exposure tantgrreturns based on a historical analysi:
of the level of this type of return as a percentag®mtal unit sales. Amounts charged to expens¢hiese warranty returns are considered in
arriving at the Compang’net sales. At March 31, 2014 and 2013, the wirmaturn accrual of $2,407,000 and $1,807,00(qaetvely, on th
credits to be issued for the returns received walsided under the customer returns RGA issueddrabiove table and the warranty return
estimate of $5,632,000 and $4,398,000, respectiwgg included in customer finished goods retuncsual (see Note 2) in the consolidated
balance sheets.

Change in the Company’s warranty return accruasifollows at March 31.:

2014 2013
Balance at beginning of peric $ 6,205,000 $ 4,426,00
Charged to expen: 56,284,00 48,948,00
Amounts processed (54,450,00)  (47,169,00)
Balance at end of period $ 8,039,000 $ 6,205,00

As of May 31, 2013, $5,642,000 of warranty retucaraal at the discontinued subsidiary was decodatd from the consolidated financial
statements of the Company (see Note 3).
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7. Inventory

Non-core inventory, inventory unreturned, long-termecmventory, and long-term core inventory depoaitsas follows at March 31:

2014 2013
Non-core inventory

Raw materials $ 18,787,000 $ 14,152,00
Work-in-process 124.,00( 137,00(
Finished goods 30,197,00 19,239,00
49,108,00 33,528,00
Less allowance for excess and obsolete inventory (1,862,001 (1,690,00)
Total $ 47,246,000 $ 31,838,00
Inventory unreturned $ 7,534,000 $ 6,981,00

Long-term core inventory
Used cores held at the Company's facili $ 23,718,00 $ 22,227,00
Used cores expected to be returned by custo 6,160,00! 5,147,001
Remanufactured cores held in finished gc 18,093,00 15,019,00
Remanufactured cores held at customers' locations 96,351,00 76,626,00
144,322,00 119,019,00
Less allowance for excess and obsolete inventory (846,000 (808,00()
Total $ 143,476,00 $118,211,00
Long-term core inventory deposits $ 29,375,00 $ 27,610,00

As of May 31, 2013, $25,731,000 of non-core invent$5,321,000 of inventory unreturned, and $40,d00Q of long-term core inventory at
the discontinued subsidiary was deconsolidated tfmrconsolidated financial statements of the Camaee Note 3).

8. Plant and Equipment

Plant and equipment, at cost, are as follows atMai.:

2014 2013
Machinery and equipme! $ 25,092,00 $ 24,342,00
Office equipment and fixture 7,552,00! 6,761,00i
Leasehold improvements 7,569,00! 7,613,00i
40,213,00 38,716,00
Less accumulated depreciation (29,188,00)  (28,680,00)
Total $ 11,025,00 $ 10,036,00

Plant and equipment located in the foreign coustribere the Company has facilities, net of accutadldepreciation, totaled $4,703,000 and
$5,197,000 at March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectiVidglgse assets constitute substantially all thg-lared production assets of the Company
located outside of the United States.

As of May 31, 2013, $4,018,000 of plant and equipnat the discontinued subsidiary was deconsoliifiten the consolidated financial
statements of the Company (see Note 3).
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9. Capital Lease Obligations

The Company leases various types of equipment lagteements accounted for as capital leases aldi@ttin plant and equipment as
follows at March 31:

2014 2013
Cost $ 343,000 $ 748,00(
Less: accumulated depreciation (25,000) (461,000
Total $ 318,000 $ 287,00(
Future minimum lease payments for the capital lease as follows:
Year Ending March 31,
2015 $ 76,00(
2016 76,00(
2017 76,00(
2018 75,00(
2019 50,00(
Total minimum lease paymer 353,00(
Less amount representing interest (35,000
Present value of future minimum lease payn 318,00(
Less current portion (64,000
$ 254,00

As of May 31, 2013, $169,000 in capital leasesatdiscontinued subsidiary were deconsolidated fimrconsolidated financial statements of
the Company (see Note 3).

10. Debt
The Company has the following credit agreements.
Financing Agreemer

The Company is party to a financing agreementnanaed, (the “Financing Agreement”) with a syndicattlenders, Cerberus Business
Finance, LLC (“Cerberus”), as collateral agent, 8NC Bank, National Association, as administratigent. The loans made thereunder (the
“Loans”) consist of: (i) term loans aggregating $8®,000 (the “Term Loans”) and (ii) revolving leaof up to $20,000,000, subject to
borrowing base restrictions and a $10,000,000 sublor letters of credit (the “Revolving Loanshe Loans were initially scheduled to
mature on January 17, 2017. In connection withRihancing Agreement, the lenders were granted arisginterest in substantially all of the
assets of the Company.

The Term Loans required quarterly principal paymeaft$600,000 per quarter from April 1, 2013 to teegber 30, 2013 and $1,350,000 per
quarter from October 1, 2013 until the final matudate. The Term Loans bear interest at ratesl éguat the Company’s option, either
LIBOR plus 8.5% or a base rate plus 7.5%.

In June 2013, the Company entered into a sixth dment to the Financing Agreement (the “Sixth Amegrdt?), under the terms of which the
agents and lenders agreed to waive any event afii¢fiat would otherwise arise under the Finanéiggeement due to the qualification in the
opinion by the Company’s independent registeredatiing firm with respect to the financial statensefior the fiscal year ended March 31,
2013. In addition, the Sixth Amendment (i) addeeorting requirement with respect to the Compaligigdity levels and certain inventory
purchases and (ii) added a financial covenant unwtieth the Company must maintain the following kevef liquidity on the following dates
unless otherwise consented to by the lenders: oa 28, 2013, an aggregate amount of at least $2B00, subject to certain adjustments; on
July 31, 2013, an aggregate amount of at leasO$RE)00, subject to certain adjustments; and orudug0, 2013, an aggregate amount of at
least $27,000,000, subject to certain adjustmdiis.Company was in compliance with these minimwuitlity requirements at each date.
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In August 2013, the Company entered into a sevambndment to the Financing Agreement (the “SevAntendment”) Pursuant to the terr
of the Seventh Amendment, (i) the Company borroareddditional $20,000,000 in Term Loans, (ii) mzdifcertain financial covenants, and
(i) provided consent from the lenders to the Camgs payment of certain subordinated debt witipeesto the guaranty as described below
under WX Agreement (as defined herein). Among othiegs, the Seventh Amendment required quartaihcipal payments of $2,100,000,
with respect to the Term Loans, beginning on Oatdh@013 until the final maturity date.

In October 2013, the Company entered into an eightndment to the Financing Agreement (the “Eigtttendment”), which among other
things, permitted the Company to purchase Mr. Jofftock option pursuant to the Option Purchases@grent (as defined in Note 20).

In November 2013, the Company entered into a rantendment and waiver to the Financing Agreement“{ttinth Amendment”). Pursuant

to the terms of the Ninth Amendment, (i) the agamd lenders waived a requirement for the Compampay down the Loans with its receip
certain state tax refunds, (ii) the Revolving Loarse increased by $10,000,000 to $30,000,000'&heended Revolving Loans”), subject to
certain borrowing base restrictions, (iii) the Tdroans were decreased by $10,000,000 to $95,00@t6@0Amended Term Loans”), (iv) the
final maturity date was extended to November 6 820) the Company gained the right, subject totingecertain conditions, to repurchase uy
to $10,000,000 of its equity interests, and (vitai@ other amendments and modifications were niadlee Financing Agreement in the form
an amended and restated financing agreement (tmeflled Financing Agreement”).

Among other things, the Amended Term Loans requuiaterly principal payments of $2,100,000 and let@rest at rates equal to, at the
Company’s option, either LIBOR (subject to a 1.5DBBOR floor) plus 5.25% or a reference rate plud54s. The Amended Revolving Loans
bear interest at rates equal to, at the Compaiptisrg either LIBOR plus 2.50% or a reference gdtes 1.00%. The interest rate on the
Company’s term loans using the LIBOR option wa$%7and 10.50% at March 31, 2014 and 2013, respygtiVhe interest rate on the
Company’s Amended Revolving Loans using the LIBQRan was 2.66% at March 31, 2014.

The following summarizes information about the Camys term loan at March 31.:

2014 2013

Principal amount of term loz $ 92,900,000 $ 84,500,00
Unamortized financing fees (5,623,001 (2,595,000

Net carrying amount of term loz $ 87,277,000 $ 81,905,00
Less current portion of term loan (7,843,001 (3,775,001

Long-term portion of term loan $ 79,434,00 $ 78,130,00
Future repayments of the Company’s Amended Ternm] by fiscal year, are as follows:
Year Ending March 31,

2015 $ 8,400,001

2016 8,400,00!

2017 8,400,00!

2018 8,400,00!

2019 59,300,00

Total payments $ 92,900,00
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The Amended Revolving Loans may, at the Compangt®n, be prepaid in whole or in part. The Comparay reduce or terminate the
commitments of the lenders to make the Amended RienplLoans or prepay the Amended Term Loans inle/oo in part, but such
prepayments are subject to a prepayment pena(fy 200% times the sum of the reduction of theotewg credit commitment plus the
principal amount of any prepayment of the AmendethTLoans until January 18, 2014 and (ii) 2.00%e8rthe sum of the reduction of the
revolving credit commitment plus the principal ambaf any prepayment of the Amended Term Loans flamuary 19, 2014 to January 18,
2015. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company the right to prepay up to $10,000,000 of the AdeghTerm Loans without any
prepayment penalty if such payment was made witBihdays of the Ninth Amendment effective date. Toenpany did not exercise the
prepayment option.

The Amended Financing Agreement, among other thigggiires the Company to maintain certain findrmaenants including a maximum
senior leverage ratio, a minimum fixed charge cagerratio, and minimum consolidated earnings bdfaegest, income tax, depreciation and
amortization expenses (“EBITDA"). The Company wagsdmpliance with all financial covenants as of tka81, 2014.

At March 31, 2014, the Company had borrowed $1Q@@under the Amended Revolving Loans. There wasafance on the Revolving
Loans at March 31, 2013. The Company had reserd4&d,800 of the Amended Revolving Loans for stanékters of credit for workers’
compensation insurance and $1,614,000 for comniéetiers of credit as of March 31, 2014. As of ktaB1, 2014, $17,720,000, subject to
certain adjustments, was available under the Amg:Rvolving Loans at March 31, 2014.

Cerberus Warrant

In connection with the Financing Agreement, the @any issued a warrant (the “Cerberus Warrant”)édo€rus. Pursuant to the Cerberus
Warrant, Cerberus could purchase up to 219,35%shdthe Company’s common stock (the “Warrant &iqufor an adjusted exercise price
of $7.75 per share exercisable on or before May@4y. The exercise price was subject to adjussnantong other things, for sales of
common stock by the Company at a price below tleeaise price.

In November 2013, the Company entered into a waparchase agreement (the “Cerberus Warrant Puiechaeement”) with Cerberus to
purchase the Cerberus Warrant. Pursuant to thee@erbVarrant Purchase Agreement, the Company 2a194,000, which is an amount ec
to the closing price of the Company’s common stmeiNovember 22, 2013 of $17.75 less the adjustedhm@e exercise price of $7.75,
($10.00 per Warrant Share) multiplied by the numdfé/Varrant Shares. The fair value of the Cerb#&¥asrant as of the settlement date was
$2,410,000 using the Monte Carlo simulation mod@kE following assumptions were used to calculagefélir value of the Cerberus Warrant:
dividend yield of 0%; expected volatility of 45.69%sk-free interest rate of 0.77%; subsequentrfiiidg probability of 0%; and an expected
life of 3.5 years. As a result of this settleméhg Company recorded a gain of $216,000 whichdkided in general and administrative
expenses during the fiscal year ended March 314.2lMe fair value of the Cerberus Warrant usingMioeite Carlo simulation model was
$375,000 at March 31, 2013. This amount was recbadea warrant liability which is included in othiabilities in the consolidated balance
sheet at March 31, 2013.

During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2014 arkB28 loss of $2,035,000 and a gain of $232,0GMeetively, were recorded in general anc
administrative expenses due to the change in thedhie of this warrant liability.

Fenco Loan:

As of May 31, 2013, $48,520,000 of revolving loan default and $10,000,000 of term loan - in défatithe discontinued subsidiary were
deconsolidated from the consolidated financiaksteents of the Company (see Note 3).
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WX Agreement

In August 2012, the Company entered into a Revgl@nedit/Strategic Cooperation Agreement (the “Witrédement”) with Wanxiang
America Corporation (the “Supplier”) and the disttoned subsidiary. Under the terms of the WX Agreatnthe Supplier agreed to provide a
revolving credit line for purchases of automotiatp and components by the discontinued subsidheap aggregate principal amount not to
exceed $22,000,000 (the “Fenco Credit Linef)which $2,000,000 would only be available forraed interest and other amounts payable
“Obligations”). Payment for all purchases became and payable 120 days after the date of the fadlding. Any amounts remaining unpaid
following the due date would bear interest at a tt1% per month. The Fenco Credit Line was scleeldio mature on July 31, 2017. Pursuan
to a guaranty (the “Guaranty”), the Obligations einthe WX Agreement were guaranteed by the Compadycertain of its subsidiaries.

On July 9, 2013, the Company received notice froenSupplier that the filing of the voluntary petitifor relief under Chapter 7 of Title 11 of
the United States Code in the U.S. Bankruptcy Clmurthe District of Delaware by the Fenco Entitemstituted an “Event of Default” under
the WX Agreement. As a result of the Event of Défaall amounts outstanding under the WX Agreentegether with all accrued interest and
all other amounts payable automatically became idiately due and payable subject to the terms ofaharanty and a subordination
agreement with the lender under the Financing Agesg. In addition, subject to certain adjustmettis,interest rate applicable to all amounts
remaining unpaid will increase, to the extent pé&tadiby law, to 1.25% per month, compounding montbh December 10, 2013, and to
1.50% per month, compounding monthly, on June Q@42

On August 26, 2013, in connection with the Sevekitrendment, the Company paid $20,843,000 to the [&rgdpr payments of all outstandi
liabilities, including interest payments, of ther@many under the Guaranty.

In connection with the WX Agreement and the Guayattie Company also issued a warrant (the “Supjdllarrant”) to the Supplier to
purchase up to 516,129 shares of the Company’s constock for an initial exercise price of $7.75 plhare exercisable at any time after
August 22, 2014 and on or prior to September 3072The exercise price is subject to adjustmem®srg other things, for sales of common
stock by the Company at a price below the exemine.

The fair value of the Supplier Warrant using therfdoCarlo simulation model was $10,047,000 and32,@0 at March 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. This amount is recorded as a waltiapitity which is included in other liabilities ithe consolidated balance sheets at March 31,
2014 and 2013. During the fiscal years ended Madc2014 and 2013, a loss of $8,408,000 and $6Q1r@8pectively, was recorded in
general and administrative expenses due to thegehiarthe fair value of this warrant liability.

11. Accounts Receivable Discount Programs

The Company uses receivable discount programsoeitiain customers and their respective banks. Uth@ése programs, the Company may
sell those customerséceivables to those banks at a discount to beedgrpon at the time the receivables are sold. Tilisseunt arrangemer
allow the Company to accelerate collection of cors’ receivables.

The following is a summary of the Company’s acceurteivable discount programs for continuing ofpena:

Years Ended March 31,

2014 2013
Receivables discountt $210,752,00 $188,536,00
Weighted average da 337 33¢€
Weighted average discount ri 2.2% 2.7%
Amount of discount as interest expel $ 4,336,000 $ 4,654,00
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12. Financial Risk Management and Derivatives

Purchases and expenses denominated in currenbistioan the U.S. dollar, which are primarily rethto the Company’s facilities overseas,
expose the Company to market risk from material enoents in foreign exchange rates between the WIBr@nd the foreign currency. The
Company’s primary risk exposure is from fluctuatan the value of the Mexican peso and to a lessient the Chinese yuan. To mitigate
these risks, the Company enters into forward fareigrrency exchange contracts to exchange U.Sarddlbr these foreign currencies. The
extent to which forward foreign currency exchangetracts are used is modified periodically in resmoto the Company’s estimate of market
conditions and the terms and length of anticipa¢egiirements.

The Company enters into forward foreign currenoghexge contracts in order to reduce the impaatreidgn currency fluctuations and not to
engage in currency speculation. The use of devigdinancial instruments allows the Company to cediis exposure to the risk that the
eventual cash outflow resulting from funding th@emxses of the foreign operations will be materiaffected by changes in exchange rates.
The Company does not hold or issue financial imsémts for trading purposes. The forward foreigmeney exchange contracts are designate
for forecasted expenditure requirements to fundifpr operations.

The Company had forward foreign currency excharmgpracts with a U.S. dollar equivalent notionalueabf $17,796,000 and $17,543,000 at
March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. These cotstigenerally expire in a year or less, at rateseabat the inception of the contracts. The
counterparty to this derivative transaction is gamfinancial institution with investment grade lmgtter credit rating; however, the Company is
exposed to credit risk with this institution. Thedit risk is limited to the potential unrealizeaimms (which offset currency fluctuations adverse
to the Company) in any such contract should thisiterparty fail to perform as contracted. Any chem the fair values of forward foreign
currency exchange contracts are reflected in cupenod earnings and accounted for as an increas#set to general and administrative
expenses.

The following table shows the effect of the Comparerivative instruments on its consolidated stegets of operations:

Gain (Loss) Recognized within General and
Administrative Expenses

Derivatives Not Designated as Years Ended March 31,
Hedging Instruments 2014 2013 2012
Forward foreign currency exchange contr: $ (842,000 $ 804,000 $ (476,000

The fair value of the forward foreign currency eanbe contracts of $159,000 is included in otheresuriabilities in the consolidated balance
sheet at March 31, 2014. The fair value of the &atWforeign currency exchange contracts of $683i9cluded in prepaid expenses and
other current assets in the consolidated balareet stt March 31, 2013.

13. Fair Value Measurements

The Company defines fair value as the price thatlevbe received to sell an asset or paid to trarsfiability (an exit price) in the principal or
most advantageous market for the asset or lialilign orderly transaction between market participan the measurement date. The Com
uses a three-tier valuation hierarchy based upserebble and unobservable inputs:

» Level 1— Valuation is based upon quoted prices (unadjusteagtive markets for identical assets or liakakt

» Level 2 — Valuation is based upon quoted pricessiinilar assets and liabilities in active marketsother inputs that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or imectly, for substantially the full term of the fimeial instrument

» Level 3— Valuation is based upon unobservable inputs tleasignificant to the fair value measurem
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The fair value hierarchy requires the use of oledglermarket data when available. In instances iiclwthe inputs used to measure fair value
fall into different levels of the fair value hiecluy, the fair value measurement has been deternhiaged on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement in itdrety. The Company’s assessment of the signifieasfa particular item to the fair value
measurement in its entirety requires judgmentyidiclg the consideration of inputs specific to theed or liability.

The following table sets forth by level within tfar value hierarchy, the Company’s financial assetd liabilities that were accounted for at
fair value on a recurring basis at March 31, 20dd 2013, according to the valuation techniquebmpany used to determine their fair
values.

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Fair Value Measurements Fair Value Measurements
Using Inputs Considered as Using Inputs Considered as
Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets
Shor-term investment
Mutual funds $ 521,000 $ 521,00( - - $ 411,000 $ 411,00( - -

Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Forward foreign currency
exchange contrac - - - - 683,00( - $ 683,00( -

Liabilities
Other current liabilitie
Deferred compensatic 521,00( 521,00( - - 411,00( 411,00( - -
Forward foreign currency
exchange contrac 159,00( - $ 159,00( - - - - -
Other liabilities
Warrant liability 10,047,00 - - $10,047,00 2,014,00 - - $2,014,00!

The Company’s short-term investments, which fusdigferred compensation liabilities, consist okestments in mutual funds. These
investments are classified as Level 1 as the slditbese mutual funds trade with sufficient freaqeyeand volume to enable the Company to
obtain pricing information on an ongoing basis.

The forward foreign currency exchange contractgarearily measured based on the foreign currepoy and forward rates quoted by the
banks or foreign currency dealers and classifieldeagl 2. During the fiscal years ended March 3l,£2and 2013, a loss of $842,000 and a
gain of $804,000, respectively, were recorded imegal and administrative expenses due to the chartge value of the forward foreign
currency exchange contracts subsequent to entetmg¢he contracts.

The Company estimates the fair value of the watiability using level 3 inputs and the Monte Casimulation model at each balance sheet
date. Monte Carlo simulation model requires theutrgd subjective assumptions including the expeetdltility of the underlying stock. These
subjective assumptions are based on both hist@imwhbther information. Changes in the values asgduand used in the model can materially
affect the estimate of fair value. This amountisarded as a warrant liability which is includedther liabilities in the consolidated balance
sheets at March 31, 2014 and 2013. Any subseghanges in the fair value of the warrant liabilitifl we recorded in current period earnings
as a general and administrative expense. Duringghes ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, a loss ofi$32®00 and $389,000 was recorded in
general and administrative expenses due to thegehiarthe fair value of the warrant liability.

The assumptions used to determine the fair valdbeoSupplier Warrant recorded as warrant liabikigre:

March 31, 2014

Risk free interest rai 1.11%
Expected life in year 3.5C
Expected volatility 45.9(%
Dividend yield -
Probability of future financin 0%
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The risk free interest rate used was based ontté&ury-note yields with terms commensurate vhithremaining term of the warrants. The

expected life is based on the remaining contrad¢ered of the warrants and the expected volatiitased on the Company’s daily historical
volatility over a period commensurate with the rérrgy term of the warrants.

A summary of the change to the Companyarrant liability, as measured at fair value ae@urring basis using significant unobservableiis
(Level 3) is presented below:

Years Ended March 31,

2014 2013
Beginning balanc $ 2,014,000 $ -
Newly issuec - 1,625,00!
Total (gain) loss included in net lo 10,443,00 389,00(
Exercises/settlements ( (2,410,00i) -
Net transfers in (out) of Level - -
Ending balance $ 10,047,00 $ 2,014,00

(1) Represents the fair value of the Cerberus Warmanf ¢he settlement date (see Note

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014 the gamy had no significant measurements of assetahilities at fair value on a nonrecurri
basis subsequent to their initial recognition.

14. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Lease Commitments

The Company leases various office and warehougl@iézcin North America and Asia under operatiegs$es expiring through 2022. The
Company also has short term contracts of one yelase covering its third party warehouses thavigiefor contingent payments based on the
level of sales that are processed through the garty warehouse.

The remaining future minimum rental payments uriderabove operating leases are as follows:

Year Ending March 31,

2015 $ 2,953,00
2016 1,288,001
2017 1,081,001
2018 1,066,001
2019 1,031,001
Thereafter 3,209,001
Total minimum lease payments $ 10,628,00

During fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Comigarontinuing operations incurred total operatiegse expenses of $2,928,000,
$2,567,000 and $2,825,000, respectively.
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Commitments to Provide Marketing Allowances underg-Term Customer Contracts

The Company has or is renegotiating long-term ageses with many of its major customers. Under ttaggeements, which typically have
initial terms of at least four years, the Compagesignated as the exclusive or primary suppbiesfpecified categories of remanufactured
alternators and starters. In consideration forGbmpany’s designation as a customer’s exclusiy@iorary supplier, the Company typically
provides the customer with a package of marketiegritives. These incentives differ from contraatdatract and can include (i) the issuance
of a specified amount of credits against receivabieaccordance with a schedule set forth in thevaat contract, (ii) support for a particular
customer’s research or marketing efforts provideé scheduled basis, (iii) discounts granted imection with each individual shipment of
product, and (iv) other marketing, research, staq@ansion or product development support. Thestaia typically require that the Company
meet ongoing standards related to fulfillment, @rignd quality. The Company’s contracts with majmtomers expire at various dates througt
March 2019.

The Company typically grants its customers markgéitiowances in connection with these customgusthase of goods. The Company rec
the cost of all marketing allowances provided sociistomers. Such allowances include sales in@néiid concessions and typically consis

(i) allowances which may only be applied againsiifel purchases and are recorded as a reductievaauies in accordance with a schedule s
forth in the long-term contract, (ii) allowancesated to a single exchange of product that arerdsxbas a reduction of revenues at the time tt
related revenues are recorded or when such inesngike offered, and (iii) allowances that are maa®nnection with the purchase of
inventory from a customer.

The following table presents the breakout of alloees for our continuing operations discussed alr@eerded as a reduction to revenues:

Years Ended March 31,

2014 2013 2012
Allowances incurred under lo-term customer contrac $ 16,099,00 $ 13,590,00 $ 11,549,00
Allowances related to a single exchange of pro 30,948,00 27,392,00 19,544,00
Allowances related to core inventory purchase aiiogns 2,506,001 2,615,001 3,030,001
Total customer allowances recorded as a reducfioevenues $ 49,553,00 $ 43,597,00 $ 34,123,00

The following table presents the commitments taiirallowances, excluding allowances related taglsiexchange of product, which will be
recognized as a charge against revenue, and cusReneanufactured Core purchase obligations whidhbeirecognized in accordance with
the terms of the relevant long-term customer catdra

Year Ending March 31,

2015 $ 15,460,00
2016 11,420,00
2017 5,983,001
2018 5,390,001
2019 4,192,00!
Thereafter 4,551,001
Total marketing allowances $ 46,996,00

Workers Compensation Insurance

Effective January 1, 2007 through the current figear, the Company’s workers compensation insweaadicy has been written on a
guaranteed cost basis (first dollar payment ohesaivith no deductibles). For each of the five ygaisr to January 1, 2007, the Company
purchased workers compensation insurance on adkdéctible plan. The Company was, and still &hlk for the first $250,000 of each claim
until all claims are settled (essentially self-irel). The Company records an estimate of its lighfibr the self-insured portion of its workers’
compensation policy by including an estimate ofttital claims incurred and reported as well asstimate of incurred, but not reported,
claims by applying the Company’s historical claidevelopment factor to its estimate of incurred espbrted claims.
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15. Major Customers and Suppliers
The Company’s largest customers accounted fordit@fing total percentage of net sales from coritigwoperations:

Years Ended March 31,

Sales 2014 2013 2012

Customer A 53% 41% 49%
Customer E 19% 24% 17%
Customer C 11% 12% 6%
Customer C 4% 5% 6%

The Company’s largest customers accounted forahmafing total percentage of accounts receivablérade from continuing operations at
March 31:

Accounts receivable- trade 2014 2013

Customer A 46% 27%
Customer E 12% 11%
Customer C 7% 7%
Customer C 10% 12%

The Company’s largest supplier accounted for 13%, &nd 16% of inventory purchases for the yearg@mdarch 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012,
respectively. No other suppliers accounted for ntlba@ 10% of inventory purchases for the years @idigrch 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012.

16. Income Taxes
The income tax expense from the Company’s contqojperations for the years ended March 31 is d@st

Years Ended March 31,

2014 2013 2012

Current tax expens

Federa $ 4,564,000 $ 31,226,000 $ 5,081,00

State 614,00( 3,368,001 319,00(

Foreign 599,00( 336,00( 228,00(

Total current tax expense 5,777,00! 34,930,00 5,628,001
Deferred tax expense (bene

Federa 2,477,001 (25,074,00) 1,224,001

State (162,00() (2,706,001 542,00(

Foreign (759,00() 282,00( (9,000)

Total deferred tax (benefit) expense 1,556,00! (27,498,00) 1,757,001
Total income tax expense $ 7,333,000 $ 7,432,000 $ 7,385,00
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Deferred income taxes from the Company’s contingipgrations consist of the following at March 31:

2014 2013
Assets
Accounts receivable valuatic $ 3,926,000 $ 4,713,00
Allowance for customer incentivi 1,343,001 1,222,001
Inventory obsolescence rese 1,070,001 966,00(
Stock options 1,426,001 1,488,001
Cancellation of indedtedne - 20,510,00
Intangibles, ne 796,00( 704,00(
Deferred core revent 2,885,00! 2,259,001
Claims payablt 88,00( 175,00(
Accrued compensatic 1,787,001 1,786,00
Net operating losse 9,117,001 190,00(
Other 2,217,00 2,320,00i
Total deferred tax assets $ 24,655,00 $ 36,333,00
Liabilities
Prepaid expenst $ (331,000 $ (642,000
Property and equipment, r (298,000 (391,000
Estimate for return (916,00() (219,000
Other (1,866,001 (2,281,000
Total deferred tax liabilities $ (3,411,000 $ (3,533,000
Net deferred tax asse $ 21,244,00 $ 32,800,00
Net current deferred income tax as $ 18,630,000 $ 30,851,00
Net lon¢-term deferred income tax assets 2,614,00i 1,949,00
Total $ 21,244,00 $ 32,800,00

At March 31, 2014 current deferred income tax litibs of $137,000 are included in other curreabliities in the consolidated balance sheet.
At March 31, 2013, current deferred income taxilides of $145,000 are included in other curreabllities and $428,000 of long-term
deferred income tax liabilities are included inathabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.

At March 31, 2014, the Company had federal ane stat operating loss carryforwards of $26,100,0tD%22,300,000, respectively. The
utilization of these net operating loss carryforsisamay be permanently limited due to Internal Reee@iode Section 382 in the Unites States.
Prior to the utilization of such losses, the Compaill perform further analysis to determine the@amt subject to limitation. Additionally, in
certain states the suspension of the usage ofetheperating losses may apply. The net operatisgdarryforwards expire between fiscal year:
2020 and 2032.

The U.S. operating loss carryforwards include $8,800 of losses attributable to windfall stock optdeductions. A net benefit of
approximately $2,200,000 will be recorded to addidl paid-in capital when realized as a reductioimtome taxes payable.

Realization of the Company's deferred tax assetependent upon the Company’s ability to genenafficent taxable income. Management
reviews the Company's deferred tax assets onsjation by jurisdiction basis to determine whetités more likely than not that the deferred
tax assets will be realized. Management believasitlis more likely than not that future taxabieame will be sufficient to realize the recor
deferred tax assets. In evaluating this abilitynagement considers long-term agreements, includamganufactured Core purchase
obligations, with the Company’s major customerg &xire at various dates through March 2019. Manant also periodically compares its
forecasts to actual results. Even though therébeamo assurance that the forecasted results wdtb&ved, the history of income in all other
jurisdictions provides sufficient positive evidertbat no valuation allowance is need
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For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2014, 2018,2812, the primary components of the Company’sime tax expense were (i) the current
liability due to federal, state and foreign incotares, (ii) foreign income taxed at rates thatdifferent from the federal statutory rate, (iii)
non-deductible expenses in connection with theviaiwe adjustments on the warrants, and (iv) impéthie non-deductible executive
compensation under Internal Revenue Code Sectip(n)6 A tax benefit of $10,530,000 is containethini the income from the discontinued
operations as disclosed in Note 3 above.

The difference between the income tax expensesdetteral statutory rate and the Company’s effedtx rate from the Comparsytontinuing
operations is as follows:

Years Ended March 31,

2014 2013 2012

Statutory federal income tax re 34% 34% 34%
State income tax rate, net of federal ber 2% 2% 3%
Change in deferred tax re 2% -% (D)%
Foreign income taxed at different ra (7% -% (3)%
Warrants 26% -% -%
Non-deductible executive compensat 2% -% -%
Uncertain Tax Position 2% -% -%
Other income tax -% (2)% 1%

53% 34% 34%

The Company and its subsidiaries file income tawrres in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and variatste and foreign jurisdictions with varying
statutes of limitations. At March 31, 2014, the @amy is under examination in the U.S. by the IrdeRevenue Service for fiscal years 2011
through 2013 and by the State of California focdisyears 2008 through 2010. The Company is no¢uegamination in any another
jurisdiction. The Company believes no significanéges in the unrecognized tax benefits will oeditiin the next 12 month:

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoefntinrecognized tax benefits from the Companyistioniing operations is as follows at
March 31:

2014 2013 2012
Balance at beginning of peric $ 827,000 $ 634,000 $ 576,00(
Additions based on tax positions related to theeniryeal 71,00( 227,00( 116,00(
Additions for tax positions of prior ye. - - 18,00(
Reductions for tax positions of prior ye (358,000 (34,000 (76,000
Settlements - - -
Balance at end of period $ 540,000 $ 827,000 $ 634,00!

At March 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, there are $387.$897,000 and $480,000 of unrecognized tax bisrtbfat if recognized would affect the
annual effective tax rate.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties ederlated to unrecognized tax benefits as pdrooime tax expense. During the fiscal
years ended March 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the @wymecognized approximately ($9,000), $32,000,%6000 in interest and penalti
The Company had approximately $112,000 and $121f@0Be payment of interest and penalties accatédarch 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.
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17. Defined Contribution Plans

The Company has a 401(k) plan covering all empleyd®o are 21 years of age with at least six mootisgrvice. The plan permits eligible
employees to make contributions up to certain Atiohs, with the Company matching 25% of each gpdting employee’s contribution up to
the first 6% of employee compensation. Employeesramediately vested in their voluntary employertdbutions and vest in the Company’s
matching contributions ratably over five years. TB@npany’s matching contribution to the 401(k) pleas $126,000, $117,000 and $102,000
for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2014, 2013201, respectively.

18. Stock Options and Restricted Stock Awards

In January 1994, the Company adopted the 1994 Sption Plan (the “1994 Plan”), under which it wveaghorized to issue nagualified stocl
options and incentive stock options to key emplayd&ectors and consultants. After a number ofedi@der-approved increases to this plan,
at March 31, 2002 the aggregate number of stodkmgpapproved was 960,000 shares of the Companysnon stock. The term and vesting
period of options granted is determined by a cotemiof the Board of Directors with a term not teeed ten years. At the Company’s Annual
Meeting of Shareholders held on November 8, 2082,1894 Plan was amended to increase the authanimeler of shares issued to
1,155,000. As of March 31, 2014 no options to pasehshares of common stock were outstanding oiable@for grant under the 1994 Plan.
As of March 31, 2013, options to purchase 95,7%0eshof common stock were outstanding and no opti@re available for grant under the
1994 Plan.

At the Company’s Annual Meeting of Shareholderslteel December 17, 2003, the shareholders apprree@ampany’s 2003 Long-Term
Incentive Plan (“Incentive Plan”) which had beempigd by the Company’s Board of Directors on Ocatdlde 2003. Under the Incentive Plan,
a total of 1,200,000 shares of the Company’s comstock were reserved for grants of Incentive Awanadd all of the Company’s employees
are eligible to participate. The 2003 IncentiverBhas terminated on October 31, 2013. As of Marthi2B14 and 2013, options to purchase
467,500 and 1,035,534 shares of common stock, ctgely, were outstanding under the Incentive Plarlanuary 2011, this Incentive Plan
was replaced and no options were available fortgrader the Incentive Plan.

In November 2004, the Company’s shareholders ajgprtive 2004 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Rtha “2004 Plan”) which

provides for the granting of options to non-empkogrectors. At the Company’s Annual Meeting of @&halders held on February 25, 2010,
the Company’s shareholders approved an amendmém 2004 Plan that increased the number of slediresmmon stock reserved for grant
under the 2004 Plan from 175,000 to 275,000. Adafch 31, 2014 and 2013, options to purchase 1830d 218,000, respectively, shares o
common stock for grant under the 2004 Plan. In M&@14, the 2004 Plan was replaced and the Comp#inyot make any further grants of
awards under this plan.

In January 2011, the Company’s shareholders apgrtnee2010 Incentive Award Plan (the “2010 Planhjiat replaced the 2003 Long-term
Incentive Plan. At the Company’s Annual MeetingStfareholders held on March 28, 2013, the Compafhdseholders approved an
amendment to the 2010 Plan that increased the ruphisbares of common stock reserved for grant utide2010 Plan from 750,000 to
1,750,000. At the Company’s Annual Meeting of Shatders held on March 31, 2014, the Company’s $itdders approved a second
amendment to the 2010 Plan that further increasedember of shares of common stock reserved &mtgmder the 2010 Plan from 1,750,
to 2,750,000. Under the 2010 Plan, all of the Camfsaemployees are eligible to participate. As dadrivh 31, 2014 and 2013, options to
purchase 776,468 and 620,800 shares of common, sesgectively, were outstanding and 1,452,9831a0d8,033, respectively, shares of
common stock were available for grant under theDZ@lan.

At the Company’s Annual Meeting of Shareholdersltedl March 31, 2014, the shareholders approve@timepany’s 2014 Non-Employee
Director Incentive Award Plan (the “2014 Plan”) whihad been adopted by the Company’s Board of bireon February 23, 2014 and
replaced the 2004 Plan. Under the 2014 Plan, hdab&42,000 shares of the Company’s common stoeteweserved for grants to the
Company’s non-employee directors. As of March 3£ no options to purchase shares under the 2@bdRere issued.

The shares of common stock issued upon exerciagomviously granted stock option are considerediasuances from shares reserved for
issuance upon adoption of the various plans. Thagaay requires that the option holders provide itewr notice of exercise to the stock plan
administrator and payment for the shares priossaance of the shares.
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A summary of stock option transactions follows:

Number of Weighted Average

Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding at March 31, 20. 1,591,08. $ 8.61
Grantec 15,000 $ 10.0¢
Exercisec (95,550 $ 3.3¢€
Cancelled (48,25() $ 3.1¢F
Outstanding at March 31, 20. 1,462,28. $ 9.1f
Grantec 635,80( $ 6.47
Exercisec (128,000 $ 2.2¢
Cancelled - $ -
Outstanding at March 31, 20. 1,970,08. $ 8.7¢
Grantec 331,000 $ 11.0¢
Exercisec (721,66¢) $ 9.12
Cancelled (152,45() $ 7.44
Outstanding at March 31, 2014 1,426,960 $ 9.21

Based on the market value of the Company’s comrtemk @t March 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the prer@ixsic value of options exercised
was $12,593,000, $493,000 and $598,000 respectively

The followings table summarizes information abdwt dptions outstanding at March 31, 2014:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Weighted Average Weighted
Average Remaining Aggregate Average Aggregate
Range of Exercise Life Intrinsic Exercise Intrinsic
Exercise price Shares Price In Years Value Shares Price Value
$ 1.800 to $6.34 81,00( $ 5.22 5.0z $ 1,729,00! 78,000 $ 5.2C $ 1,667,00
$ 6.460 to $7.45 509,46¢ 6.52 8.4¢  10,215,00 344,76t 6.54 6,906,001
$ 8.700 to $9.9C 279,25( 9.3¢ 9.1C 4,814,001 12,25( 9.4¢ 209,00(
$ 10.010to $11.9C 214,25( 10.2¢ 1.84 3,499,001 214,25( 10.2¢ 3,499,001
$ 12.000 to $19.€ 343,000 $ 13.4] 3.87 4,514,00! 287,000 $ 12.2¢ 4,116,00!
1,426,96: $24,771,00 936,26t $16,397,00

The aggregate intrinsic values in the above tadpeasent the pre-tax value of all in-the-moneyartiif all such options had been exercised o
March 31, 2014 based on the Company'’s closing gboick of $26.57 as of that date.

Options to purchase 936,266, 1,549,683 and 1,44&R8res of common stock were exercisable as ofiMait, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. The weighted average exercise pficptions exercisable was $9.06, $9.33 and $9.1f &tarch 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.
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A summary of changes in the status of non-vestakgiptions is presented below.

Weighted Average

Number of Grant Date Fair
Shares Value
Non-vested at March 31, 20: 420,40: $ 2.9z
Grantec 331,000 $ 5.1€
Vested (147,999 $ 3.1C
Cancelled (112,700 $ 2.92
Non-vested at March 31, 2014 490,70: $ 4.3¢

At March 31, 2014, there was $1,916,000 of totakangnized compensation expense from stock-basegertsation granted under the plans,
which is related to non-vested shares. The compiensaxpense is expected to be recognized overightesl average vesting period of 1.9
years.

Restricted Stoc

On September 3, 2013, the Company awarded 138l20@ssof restricted stock to certain executivahatlosing market price of $9.32 per
share. These awards vest in three equal instalineEginning each anniversary from the award datgest to continued employment. The fair
value related to the restricted stock awards d&3,000 will be recognized as compensation expensethe vesting period. At March 31,
2014, there was $1,072,000 of total unrecognizedpemsation expense from these restricted stockdswahich will be recognized over the
remaining vesting period.

19. Litigation

There have been and may be additional claims &itednst the Company by the trustee and some of ide creditors in connection with the
bankruptcy proceedings involving the Fenco EntitiEsr example, the trustee has notified the Comigainsurance companies that it may r
claims for wrongful acts, breach of fiduciary dutwil conspiracy, aiding and abetting, negligeaoel conversion. The Company is also a
defendant in a case in Ontario Superior Court araldase in the District Court for the Districtixélaware claiming that the Company is liable
for amounts due by the Fenco Entities to their eygés under U.S. and Canadian law. Any litigat@determine the validity of these claims,
regardless of their merit or resolution, may betlgand time consuming and divert the efforts atidrdion of the Company’s management
from its business strategy. Any adverse judgmesttilement by the Company of these claims wilbaksult in additional expense.

The Company is also subject to various other latwsrnd claims in the normal course of business.agament does not believe that the
outcome of these matters will have a material astveffect on its financial position or future résuf operations.

20. Related Party Transactions
The Company has arrangements or entered into agreswith the certain members of its Board of Divex

In August 2000, the Company’s Board of Directoreeag to engage Mr. Mel Marks to provide consulsegvices to the Company. Mr. Marks
was paid an annual consulting fee of $350,000 par ynder this arrangement until its terminatiorMarch 31, 2013. In March 2013, the
Company agreed to pay a one-time fee of $350,06&édditional compensation of $300,000 which wasl plairing fiscal 2014.

On May 18, 2012, the Company entered into a newl@ment agreement (the “New Employment Agreemewntth Mr. Joffe, which
terminated and superseded Mr. Joffe's previous eynpént agreement that was to expire on August @12 2The New Employment
Agreement provides for Mr. Joffe to serve as thex@any’s Chairman, President and Chief Executive Offioerafterm expiring on August 3
2015, unless extended or earlier terminated. Patsonahe New Employment Agreement, Mr. Joffe wéiteive a base salary of $600,000 per
year, which will be reviewed from time to time iocardance with the Compg's established procedures for adjusting salariesifoilarly
situated employees. Mr. Joffe will be eligible tarficipate the Compang’Annual Incentive Plan adopted and amended froma to time by th
Board (the “Annual Incentive Plan”), with a tardenus equal to 100% of Mr. Joffe’s salary (the “Aahincentive Bonuses”). In addition to
the Annual Incentive Bonuses, the Company paidJdife a one-time bonus of $250,000 upon the sigafrthe New Employment Agreement
and awarded Mr. Joffe a guaranteed bonus of $500v@ich is payable in three annual installmen1§&000 on May 18, 2012; $166,000 on
May 18, 2013; and $166,000 on May 18, 2014.
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Pursuant to Mr. Joffe's previous employment agradgirtee was entitled to receive a transaction fek@¥ of the “total consideration” of any
transaction, including any transaction resultin@ ichange of control, his efforts brought to thenpany. In lieu of this transaction fee, pursi

to the New Employment Agreement, the Company gdaptesuant to its 2010 Plan (i) a fully-vested optio purchase 109,100 shares of the
Company’s common stock equal to $250,000 baseteBlackScholes valuation method and (ii) 51,167 shardallyf vested restricted stoc
with a fair value of $331,000 in December 2012. Trenpany withheld 25,137 shares based upon the @uyfgpclosing stock price on the
vesting date to settle Mr. Joffe’s minimum statytobligation for the applicable income and otheptyment taxes. The Company then
remitted cash to the appropriate taxing authorifieéal payment for this tax obligation to the taxiauthorities was $163,000 and is reflecte

a financing activity within the consolidated statmts of cash flows. These net-share settlementthieaeffect of share repurchases by the
Company as they reduced and retired the numbdrasés that would have otherwise been issued asili of the vesting and did not represent
an expense to the Company.

Pursuant to the New Employment Agreement, Mr. Jaifealso be eligible to receive annual awardsemithe 2010 Plan in such amounts as
are determined by the Compensation Committee ag&strator of the 2010 Plan in its sole and absoliiscretion (the “Annual Awards”).
Such awards may be in the form of options, resttigtock, restricted stock units, performance shaerformance units or such other form of
award as determined by the Compensation Commist@glinistrator of the 2010 Plan in its sole ansbhlie discretion.

On June 12, 2014, the Company and Mr. Joffe eniateddmendment No. 1 to the New Employment Agreetpirsuant to which, effective
as of July 1, 2014, (i) the last day of Mr. Joffe'sn of employment was changed from August 315201uly 1, 2019 and (ii) his base salary
was increased from $600,000 per year to $700,009q#. All other terms and conditions of the Nemffoyment Agreement remain the
same.

In October 2013, the Company entered into an opticohase agreement (the “Option Purchase Agre&maith Mr. Joffe, pursuant to whic
among other things, the Company purchased Mr. '3affation to purchase 100,000 shares of the Conipaxmynmon stock which were
originally granted on January 14, 2004 under they@any’'s 1994 Stock Option Plan at a net purchase pf $626,500. This payment
represents the difference between $12.66, thengjgmice per share of the Compasigommon stock on the measurement date under ttien
Purchase Agreement, and the exercise price pee shi#ine stock option, multiplied by the total nuenbf shares under Mr. Joffe’s stock
option, and less an administrative fee.

Other Related Party Transactions

During fiscal 2014, the Company paid $304,000 talith@n Lokey Howard & Zukin Capital, Inc. in conttien with the restructuring of the
discontinued subsidiary. A member of the CompaBgard of Directors, is a Co-President and GlobaHead of Corporate Finance for
Houlihan Lokey Howard & Zukin Capital, Inc.

21. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (LosSs)

The changes in accumulated other comprehensivenag¢toss) is as follows:

Unrealized gain Foreign
on Short-Term Currency
Investments Translation Total
Balance as of April 1, 201 $ 287,000 $ (1,133,000 $ (846,000
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of 34,00( (65,000 (31,000
Amounts reclassified from other comprehensive inedloss), net of tax - - -
Balance as of March 31, 2014 $ 321,000 $ (1,198,000 $ (877,000
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22. Subsequent Events

On June 12, 2014, the Company entered into adimgndment to the amended and restated financiegmagnt, pursuant to which (i) the

commitments to make revolving loans under the amérahd restated financing agreement were incréas&d0,000,000 to $40,000,000, and

(i) the maximum amount of capital expenditures waseased to $3,200,000 for fiscal year 2014, ®7,@00 for fiscal year 2015, and
$4,000,000 for each of fiscal years 2016 and 20MiYe maximum amount of capital expenditures fardigyear 2018 remains at $2,500,000.

23. Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data

The following table summarizes selected quarténgrfcial data for the fiscal year ended March 31,2.

Net sales
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Operating expense
General and administratiy
Sales and marketir
Research and development
Total operating expenses
Operating incom:
Other expense
Interest expense, net
Income from continuing operations before incomeeapenst
Income tax expense
Income from continuing operatiol
Income from discontinued operations

Net income

Basic net income per share from continuing openal
Basic net income per share from discontinued ojmrsit

Basic net income per share

Diluted net income per share from continuing openst
Diluted net income per share from discontinued afi@ns

Diluted net income per share

First
Quarter

Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

$ 50,245,00 $ 66,174,00

$ 65568,00 $ 76,682,00

34231,00  46,469,00  43,642,00  52,761,00
16,014,00  19,70500  21,926,00 _ 23,921,00
9,632,001 8,706,001 9,580,000  11,766,00
1,731,001 2,143,001 1,905,001 2,059,001
549,00 398,00 452,00( 541,00!
11,012,00 _ 1124700 _ 11,937,00 _ 14,366,00
4,102,001 8,458,001 9,989,001 9,555,001
3,925,001 4,663,001 6,524,001 3,177,001

177,00 3,795,001 3,465,001 6,378,00!
74,00( 1,631,00 2,317,001 3,311,001
103,00 2,164,001 1,148,001 3,067,00!

100,877,00 . : :

$ 100,980,00 2,164,000 $ 1,148,001 3,067,001

$ 0.01 0.1f $ 0.0¢ 0.2¢

6.97 - - -
$ 6.0¢ 0.1t § 0.0¢ 0.2
$ 0.01 0.1t $ 0.07 0.1¢
6.9( - - -
$ 6.91 0.1 $ 0.07 0.1¢
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The following summarizes selected quarterly finahdata for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013:

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Net sales $ 46,799,000 $ 57,652,00 $ 50,658,000 $ 58,042,00
Cost of goods sold 31,980,00 37,556,00 34,332,00 39,942,00
Gross profit 14,819,00 20,096,00 16,326,00 18,100,00
Operating expense
General and administrati 5,914,00 4,392,00! 8,848,001 6,653,00!
Sales and marketir 1,772,001 1,724,001 1,983,001 1,811,001
Research and development 436,00( 461,00( 445,00( 588,00
Total operating expenses 8,122,001 6,577,00! 11,276,00 9,052,001
Operating incom: 6,697,001 13,519,00 5,050,001 9,048,001
Other expense
Interest expense, net 2,896,00! 3,093,001 2,384,00! 3,951,001
Income from continuing operations before incomeeapenst 3,801,001 10,426,00 2,666,001 5,097,00!
Income tax expense 1,434,00! 3,923,00! 880,00( 1,195,001
Income from continuing operatiol 2,367,001 6,503,001 1,786,001 3,902,001
Loss from discontinued operations (12,229,00) (15,436,00) (851,000 (77,553,00)
Net (loss) incom: $ (9,862,000 $ (8,933,000 $ 935,00( $ (73,651,00)
Basic net income per share from continuing openai $ 017 $ 04t $ 0.1z $ 0.27
Basic net loss per share from discontinued operstio (0.8¢) (1.07) (0.0¢€) (5.3¢6)
Basic net (loss) income per share $ (0.7) $ (0.62) $ 0.06 $ (5.09)
Diluted net income per share from continuing operest $ 017 $ 0.4t $ 0.1z $ 0.21%
Diluted net loss per share from discontinued ojp@mat (0.87) (1.07) (0.06) (5.3%)
Diluted net (loss) income per share $ (0.70) $ (0.62) $ 0.06 $ (5.0¢)

Quarterly and year-to-date computations of peresharounts are made independently. Therefore, theo$per share amounts for the quarters
may not agree with per share amounts for the yeawns elsewhere in the Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Schedule Il— Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Accounts Receivable— Allowance for doubtful accounts

Charge to

Years Balance at (recovery of) Balance at

Ended o beginning of bad debts Amounts end of
March 31, Description period expense written off period

2014 Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 1,019,000 $ (47,000 $ 118,00 $ 854,00(

2013 Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 947,000 $ 166,00 $ 94,00 $ 1,019,00

2012 Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 1,026,000 $ (14,000 $ 65,000 $ 947,00(

Accounts Receivable— Allowance for customer-payment discrepancies

Years Balance at Charge to Balance at

Ended o beginning of  discrepancie: Amounts end of
March 31, Description period expense Processed period

2014 Allowance for customepayment discrepancit $ 514,000 $ (20,000 $ (73,000 $ 577,00(

2013 Allowance for customepayment discrepancit $ 280,000 $ 536,000 $ 302,000 $ 514,00(

2012 Allowance for customepayment discrepancit $ 648,000 $ 270,000 $ 638,000 $ 280,00

Inventory — Allowance for excess and obsolete inventory
Provision for

Years Balance at excess and Balance at

Ended o beginning of obsolete Amounts end of
March 31, Description period inventory written off period

2014  Allowance for excess and obsolete invent $ 2,498,000 $ 1,620,000 $ 1,410,000 $ 2,708,00

2013 Allowance for excess and obsolete invent $ 2,164,000 $ 1,814,000 $ 1,480,000 $ 2,498,00

2012 Allowance for excess and obsolete invent $ 2,599,000 $ 3,216,000 $ 3,651,000 $ 2,164,00:
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Exhibit 10.62

FIRST AMENDMENT TO FINANCING AGREEMENT

FIRST AMENDMENT, dated as of June 12, 2014 (thigitst Amendment’), to the Amended and Restated Finan
Agreement, dated as of November 6, 2013 (as amendsthted, supplemented, modified or otherwisengbd from time to time, the
Financing Agreemeriy), by and among Motorcar Parts of America, IncNew York corporation (the " Borrowé), the lenders from time
time party thereto (each a " Lendaand collectively, the " Lendef3, Cerberus Business Finance, LLC, a Delawaredidliability company (
Cerberus"), as collateral agent for the Lenders (in sughacity, together with its successors and assigssdh capacity, theCollateral Ager
"), and PNC Bank, National Association_(" PN); as administrative agent for the Lenders (inhsoapacity, together with its successors
assigns in such capacity, the " Administrative Adesind together with the Collateral Agent, each &wént" and collectively, the " Agenty.

WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Agents and the Lendeishwo amend certain terms and provisions of theahaing
Agreement as hereafter set forth.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises atietr good and valuable consideration, the pahereto heret
agree as follows:

1. Defined Terms Any capitalized term used herein and not defisteall have the meaning assigned to it in the FiimgnAgreement.
2. Recitals. The fourth paragraph of the recitals of the Raiag Agreement is hereby amended and restatetd ientirety to read
follows:

"The Borrower has requested that the Agents antléhders amend and restate the Existing Financgrgément in order t
among other things, (a) amend, restate, convertcantinue $95,000,000 of the Existing Term Loarthes Term Loan (z
hereinafter defined) and (b) increase the amouthefrevolving credit facility by $10,000,000 toG$300,000. On the Fil
Amendment Effective Date, the Borrower has requestat the Agents and the Lenders amend the Fingrejreement ti
among other things, increase the amount of thelvigpcredit facility by $10,000,000 to $40,000,000he proceeds of t
term loans and the loans made under the revolviaditcfacility shall be used to (i) on the RestageinEffective Date, mal
the Ninth Amendment Effective Date Prepayment,f(idd general working capital purposes of the Bagpand for othe
general corporate purposes and (iii) pay fees apereses related to this Agreement. The lettersredit will be used fc
general working capital purposes. The Lenderssaverally, and not jointly, willing to extend andfoaintain such credit
the Borrower subject to the terms and conditiorreinafter set forth."




3. Amendments

€) New Definitions. Section 1.01 of the Financing Agreement is hgrainended by adding the following definitions
appropriate alphabetical order:

0] " First Amendment means the First Amendment to this Agreement,dlateof June 12, 2014, among the Borra
the Agents and the Lenders."

(i) " Eirst Amendment Effective Daté means the date on which the First Amendment dhatiome effective
accordance with its terms."

(iii) " Specified Account Debtot means an Account Debtor of the Borrower who jsaae of the top ten (10) larg
customers of the Borrower (based on the reports negently delivered to the Agents pursuant to i8act.01(a)(v)), (b) provided extenc
payment terms and (c) not a party to a Factoringe@gpent.”

(b) Existing Definitions.

(@ The definition of "Borrowing Base" in Section 1.61the Financing Agreement is hereby amended astdtes in it
entirety to read as follows:

orrowing Basé' means, as of any date of determination, the tesfse

(a) the result of the sum of (i) 85% of the Net AmoohtEligible Accounts Receivable at such time; pd@dthat the
aggregate amount of Eligible Accounts Receivable fiam the Specified Account Debtors at such timexcess of tt
amount equal to 20% of the Total Revolving Creditt@nitment shall not be included in the calculatidrihis clause (a)(i
plus (ii) the lower of (A) 60% of the Book Value of Eilge Inventory located in the continental Unitecat8s and ar
province or territory of Canada at such time anftf®® sum of (1) 90%imesthe most recently determined Net Liquida
Percentagéimesthe Book Value of the Eligible Inventory consistiofgrotating electrical products and (2) 8%%hesthe mos
recently determined Net Liquidation Percenttigeesthe Book Value of the Eligible Inventory consistiafjwheel hubs ar
new product lines, in each case of clauses (B)(t) @)(2), located in the continental United Statwsl any province

territory of Canada at such time, plii§) the lowest of (A) 50% of the Book Value ofiffible Inventory located in Mexico
such time, (B) 60%imesthe most recently determined Net Liquidation Petagatimesthe Book Value of the Eligib
Inventory located in Mexico at such time and (G tesser (1) $14,000,000 and (2) 60% of the BomgvBase, minusiv)
Reserves, and

(b) an amount equal to the product of TTM Consolid&BdT DA for the most recently ended month of the Barer ani
its Subsidiariesimesthe Applicable EBITDA Multiple_minushe aggregate outstanding principal amount of themTLoal
and Capitalized Lease Obligations at such time."

(i) The definition of "Consolidated EBITDA" in Sectioh01 of the Financing Agreement is hereby amendw
restated in its entirety to read as follows:




" Consolidated EBITDA' means, with respect to any Person for any pefmdthe Consolidated Net Income of such Pe
and its Subsidiaries for such period, p{b} without duplication, the sum of the followingnaunts of such Person and
Subsidiaries for such period and to the extent ciedluin determining Consolidated Net Income of siehson for suc
period: (i) Consolidated Net Interest Expensg,ificome tax expense, (iii) depreciation expensg,amortization expens
(v) the amount of all costs, fees and expensesri@dun connection with (A) the Transactions, (B§ fThird Amendment al
the Wanxiang Transaction Documents, (C) the SixteAdment, (D) the First Amendment and (E) liquitgtihe Exclude
Subsidiaries in an aggregate amount not to exc&@08,000 and as approved in writing by the Requltenders, (v
severance charges in an aggregate amount not ¢ée@$100,000 for any Fiscal Year, (vii) the amanfréll travel and othe
administrative costs, fees and expenses (inclugindessional fees) incurred in connection with thanagement of tl
Excluded Subsidiaries in an aggregate amount naxteed $75,000 for any fiscal quarter, (viii) amyncash expens
incurred in connection with stock options and oteeguity-based compensation, (ix) noash charges reducing Consolidi
Net Income (excluding any narash charge that results in an accrual of a rederveash charges in any future period)
such period, (x) standard inventory revaluationtevdowns, (xi) norcash losses on Hedging Agreements, (xii) commis
accrual adjustment, (xiii)) losses from the Excludgdbsidiaries, (xiv) any expenses incurred in cotiop with stocl
offerings, (xv) for each fiscal quarter specified 8chedule 1.01(E), the expenses set forth on 8&hed01(E) in a
aggregate amount not to exceed the amount set émplosite such expenses for such fiscal quarter) @l Restricte
Payments paid in cash during such period, if anysymnt to clause (F) of the proviso in Sectior2{h®) (xvii) through th
fiscal quarter ending September 31, 2014, stprcosts with respect to a specified new produe ih an aggregate amo
not to exceed $500,000, and (xviii) specified irteey purchases from certain customers in an ag¢geggaount not to exce
$6,800,000, minugc) without duplication, the sum of the followingnaunts of such Person and its Subsidiaries for
period and to the extent included in determiningnétdidated Net Income of such Person for such gefip noncash item
increasing Consolidated Net Income (other thanait@ual of revenue or recording of Accounts Red#&én the ordinar
course of business) for such period, (ii) re@sh gains on Hedging Agreements, and (iii) profittm the Exclude
Subsidiaries, all as determined on a consolidassish

(iii) The definition of "Eligible Inventory" in Section@l of the Financing Agreement is hereby amendedebsting th
"and" immediately following clause (h) thereof, elishg clause (i) thereof and inserting followingnmediately at the end of clause (h) thereof:

"(i) if such Inventory consists of new product knehe Administrative Agent shall have received agpraisal of suc
Inventory, in form and substance reasonably satisfg to the Administrative Agent, from an apprajsand (j) suc
Inventory is and at all times shall continue to dmeeptable to the Administrative Agent in the elserof its reasonak
business judgment.”




(iv) The definition of "Fee Letter" in Section 1.01 bétFinancing Agreement is hereby amended and eesiaits
entirety to read as follows:

" Fee Letter" means the first amended and restated fee |letéded as of the First Amendment Effective Datewben thi
Borrower and the Collateral Agent."

(v) The proviso at the end of the first sentence ofd#ifinition of "Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio" in &t 1.01 of th
Financing Agreement is hereby amended and restaitlentirety to read as follows:

"; provided_that (A) for the fiscal quarter ending December 3113, solely for the purposes of clause (b)(ifhas definition,
the principal amount of the Existing Term Loan paiOctober 1, 2013 pursuant to Section 2.03(h@Existing Financing
Agreement shall be $1,350,000 and (B) for eachefiscal quarters ending June 30, 2014, SepteBher014, December
31, 2014 and March 30, 2015, solely for the purpsgause (b)(v) of this definition, the aggregateount of non-financed
Capital Expenditures made by such Person and fisifiaries during such period shall be the lowe19$750,000 or (2) the
amount actually spent during such fiscal quarter.”

(c) Section 7.02(qg) (Capital Expenditures)Section 7.02(g) of the Financing Agreement isehg amended by amending
restating the table set forth therein to read hsvis:
" Period Capital Expenditure
Fiscal Year ended March 31, 20 $3,200,000
Fiscal Year ended March 31, 20 $7,000,00(
Fiscal Year ended March 31, 20 $4,000,00(
Fiscal Year ended March 31, 20 $4,000,00(¢
Fiscal Year ended March 31, 20 $2,500,000'
(d) Schedule 1.01(A) to Financing AgreemenSchedule 1.01(A) of the Financing Agreementesehy replaced in its entire

with the new Schedule 1.01(A) attached as Annseréto.

4, Conditions to Effectiveness The effectiveness of this First Amendment isjettbto the fulfillment, in a manner satisfactooy the

Agents, of each of the following conditions precaidghe date such conditions are fulfilled or wai\®y the Agents is hereinafter referred t
the " First Amendment Effective Date




(a) Representations and Warranties; No Event of Defaullhe following statements shall be true and atrre(i) the
representations and warranties contained in tmig Rmendment, ARTICLE VI of the Financing Agreerhand in each other Loan Documi
certificate or other writing delivered to any Agemtany Lender pursuant hereto or thereto on ar poi the First Amendment Effective Date
true and correct on and as of the First Amendméieicitve Date as though made on and as of such datept to the extent that any s
representation or warranty expressly relates satebn earlier date (in which case such representat warranty shall be true and correc
and as of such earlier date) and (ii) no DefauEwent of Default shall have occurred and be caiiti on the First Amendment Effective D
or would result from this First Amendment becoméffgctive in accordance with its terms.

(b) Execution of Amendment The Agents and the Lenders shall have exechisd-irst Amendment and shall have receiv
counterpart to this First Amendment, duly execltg@ach Loan Party.

(c) Payment of Fees, Etc The Borrower shall have paid on or before thetFAmendment Effective Date all fees and invo
costs and expenses then payable by the Borrowsuait to the Loan Documents, including, withouttétion, Sections 2.06 and 12.04 of
Financing Agreement.

(d) Delivery of Documents The Collateral Agent shall have received on eiote the First Amendment Effective Date
following, each in form and substance reasonablysfsatory to the Collateral Agent and, unless datkkd otherwise, dated the F
Amendment Effective Date:

0] the Fee Letter, duly executed by the Borrower;

(i) a copy of the resolutions of each Loan Party, fiedtias of the First Amendment Effective Date byAarthorizec
Officer thereof, authorizing the execution, deliwand performance by such Loan Party of this Frsendment, the performance of the L
Documents as amended thereby, and the executiordelivkry of the other documents to be deliveredsbgh Loan Party in connect
herewith and therewith;

(iii) a certificate of an Authorized Officer of each Ld@arty, certifying as to the matters set forthubsection (a) of th
Section 4; and

(iv) such other agreements, instruments, approvalsiomgirand other documents, each satisfactory té\geats in forn
and substance, as any Agent may reasonably request.




5. Representations and WarrantieEach Loan Party represents and warrants asvgllo

€)) Organization, Good Standing, Etdcach Loan Party (i) is a corporation, limitecbllay company or limited partnership dt
organized, validly existing and in good standinglemthe laws of the state or jurisdiction of itgamization, (i) has all requisite power i
authority to conduct its business as now conduatedl as presently contemplated, and to execute elivkdthis First Amendment, and
consummate the transactions contemplated herebiyatite Financing Agreement, as amended hereby(iignd duly qualified to do busine
and is in good standing in each jurisdiction in eththe character of the properties owned or ledsed or in which the transaction of
business makes such qualification necessary, exselgly for the purposes of this subclause (iiil)ere the failure to be so qualified or in g
standing could not reasonably be expected to resalMaterial Adverse Effect.

(b) Authorization, Etc. The execution, delivery and performance by eaohanLParty of this First Amendment, and
performance of the Financing Agreement, as amehéeeby, (i) have been duly authorized by all neagsaction, (i) do not and will n
contravene any of its Governing Documents or anpliegble Requirement of Law in any material respectany material Contractt
Obligation binding on or otherwise affecting itamy of its properties, (iii) do not and will notsegdt in or require the creation of any Lien (o
than pursuant to any Loan Document) upon or witpeet to any of its properties, and (iv) do not avill not result in any defau
noncompliance, suspension, revocation, impairnferfigiture or nonrenewal of any permit, licensethawization or approval applicable to
operations or any of its properties.

(c) Governmental Approvals No authorization or approval or other action &yd no notice to or filing with, any Governme
Authority is required in connection with the dueeention, delivery and performance of this First Aaheent by the Loan Parties, and
performance of the Financing Agreement, as amehdgszby.

(d) Enforceability of the First Amendment This First Amendment and the Financing Agreemaatamended herebwher
delivered hereunder, will keelegal, valid and binding obligation of each Ldarty, enforceable against such Loan Party in decae with th
terms thereof, except as enforceability may betéichby applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorgatidn, moratorium or other similar la
affecting creditors' rights generally.

(e) Representations and Warranties; No Event of Defaulthe following statements shall be true and airre(i) the
representations and warranties contained in thg Amendment, ARTICLE VI of the Financing Agreerhand in each other Loan Documi
certificate or other writing delivered to any Agemtany Lender pursuant hereto or thereto on ar poi the First Amendment Effective Date
true and correct on and as of the First Amendméisicive Date as though made on and as of such datept to the extent that any s
representation or warranty expressly relates sa¢en earlier date (in which case such representar warranty shall be true and correc
and as of such earlier date) and (ii) no DefaulEwent of Default has occurred and is continuingtten First Amendment Effective Date
would result from this First Amendment becomingeefive in accordance with its terms.

6. Covenants

€) Within 2 Business Days of the First Amendment BffecDate (or such later date as the Agents mageagr writing in thei
sole discretion), the Borrower shall deliver an adesl and restated promissory note evidencing thel@ag Loans, duly executed by 1
Borrower, in form and substance reasonably satsfato the Agents.




(b) Within 10 Business Days of the First Amendment &ffee Date (or such later date as the CollateragérAgnay agree
writing in its sole discretion), the Borrower shd#lliver an amendment to the Pledge Agreemengrim ind substance reasonably satisfa
to the Collateral Agent, and such amendment sleafblmalized in accordance with the laws of Mexit@ manner reasonably satisfactor
the Collateral Agent.

7. Release Each Loan Party hereby acknowledges and agnags (a) neither it nor any of its Affiliates hasy claim or cause of acti
against any Agent or any Lender (or any of thespestive Affiliates, officers, directors, employeasiorneys, consultants or agents) an
each Agent and each Lender has heretofore properfprmed and satisfied in a timely manner alltsfdbligations to the Loan Parties
their Affiliates under the Financing Agreement dhd other Loan Documents that are required to heen performed on or prior to the ¢
hereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Ageamsl the Lenders wish (and the Loan Parties agoeeljrhinate any possibility that any p
conditions, acts, omissions, events or circumstmeauld impair or otherwise adversely affect anytted Agents' and the Lenders' rig
interests, security and/or remedies under the EingnrAgreement and the other Loan Documents. Alingly, for and in consideration of 1
agreements contained in this First Amendment ahdrajood and valuable consideration, each Loary Rt itself and its Affiliates and tl
successors, assigns, heirs and representativesiofoé the foregoing) (collectively, the " Releasfrdoes hereby fully, finally, unconditiona
and irrevocably release and forever discharge éaent, each Lender and each of their respectivdiats, officers, directors, employe
attorneys, consultants and agents (collectively,"tliReleased Partié$ from any and all debts, claims, obligations, daes, costs, attorne
fees, suits, demands, liabilities, actions, prooegdand causes of action, in each case, whettwyrkior unknown, contingent or fixed, dir
or indirect, and of whatever nature or descriptamd whether in law or in equity, under contraett, tstatute or otherwise, which any Rele
has heretofore had or now or hereafter can, shathay have against any Released Party by reasanyofict, omission or thing whatsoe
done or omitted to be done on or prior to the Fistendment Effective Date directly arising out ofnnected with or related to this F
Amendment, the Financing Agreement or any othernLB@cument, or any act, event or transaction rélate attendant thereto, or
agreements of any Agent or any Lender containegbitieor the possession, use, operation or confrahy of the assets of any Loan Part
the making of any Loans or other advances, or theagement of such Loans or advances or the Callater

8. No Novation; Reaffirmation and Confirmation

€) This First Amendment does not extinguish the oltiges for the payment of money outstanding under Emancin
Agreement or discharge or release the lien or ipyiof any mortgage, security agreement, pledgeement or any other security therefc
Nothing herein contained shall be construed ashbatsgution or novation of the Obligations outstargliunder the Financing Agreemen
instruments securing the same, which shall remaiull force and effect, except as modified herebyy instruments executed concurre
herewith. Nothing expressed or implied in thissElmendment shall be construed as a release er ditcharge of the Borrower under
Financing Agreement, or the other Loan Documerstgraended hereby, from any of its obligations #@tullities as a "Borrower" thereunder.




(b) The Borrower hereby (i) acknowledges and reaffitm®bligations as set forth in each Loan Documastamended herel
(i) agrees to continue to comply with, and be suabjto, all of the terms, provisions, conditionsyenants, agreements and obligat
applicable to it set forth in each Loan Documestamended hereby, which remain in full force arféatf and (iii) confirms, ratifies ai
reaffirms that the security interest granted to @uwllateral Agent, for the benefit of the Agentsdatie Lenders, pursuant to the L
Documents, as amended hereby, in all of its ritithe, and interest in all then existing and théeyaacquired or arising Collateral in orde
secure prompt payment and performance of the Qldigg is continuing and is and shall remain uniimgghand continue to constitute a f
priority security interest (subject to Permittecehs) in favor of the Collateral Agent, for the biénef the Agents and the Lenders, with
same force, effect and priority in effect both intiaely prior to and after entering into this Filshendment.

9. Miscellaneous

€) ContinuedEffectiveness of the Financing Agreement and theOit oan Documents Except as otherwise expressly prov
herein, the Financing Agreement and the other acuments are, and shall continue to be, in fultécand effect and are hereby ratified
confirmed in all respects, except that on and afterFirst Amendment Effective Date (i) all referes in the Financing Agreement to "
Agreement”, "hereto”, "hereof", "hereunder" or weouf like import referring to the Financing Agreaermshall mean the Financing Agreen
as amended by this First Amendment, and (ii) d#rences in the other Loan Documents to the "FimgnAgreement", "thereto”, "therea
"thereunder" or words of like import referring tbet Financing Agreement shall mean the Financinge&ment as amended by this F
Amendment. To the extent that the Financing Agesgnor any other Loan Document purports to pledgdé Collateral Agent, or to grant
the Collateral Agent, a security interest or lisach pledge or grant is hereby ratified and cordiinin all respects. Except as expre
provided herein, the execution, delivery and effectess of this First Amendment shall not operatem amendment of any right, powe
remedy of the Agents and the Lenders under thenEing Agreement or any other Loan Document, norstitte an amendment of ¢
provision of the Financing Agreement or any otheah Document.

(b) Counterparts This First Amendment may be executed in any remdf counterparts and by different parties heie
separate counterparts, each of which shall be deédmée an original, but all of which taken togetlsball constitute one and the s:
agreement. Delivery of an executed counterpathisf First Amendment by telefacsimile or electroniail shall be equally as effective
delivery of an original executed counterpart o thirst Amendment.

(c) Headings. Section headings herein are included for coraresg of reference only and shall not constitutara @f this Firs
Amendment for any other purpose.

(d) Costs and ExpensesThe Borrower agrees to pay on demand all feestsand expenses of the Agents and the Lend
connection with the preparation, execution andveeji of this First Amendment.




(e) First Amendment as Loan DocumentEach Loan Party hereby acknowledges and agtessthis First Amendme
constitutes a "Loan Document" under the Financigge&ment. Accordingly, it shall be an Event of &8f under the Financing Agreemer
(i) any representation or warranty made by any LBarty under or in connection with this First Amamaht, which representation or warre
is (A) subject to a materiality or a Material AdserEffect qualification, shall have been incoriacny respect when made or deemed mac
(B) not subject to a materiality or a Material Adse Effect qualification, shall have been incorriecany material respect when madt
deemed made or (ii) any Loan Party shall fail tdfqgren or observe any term, covenant or agreemantaared in this First Amendment.

() Severability. Any provision of this First Amendment that i®hibited or unenforceable in any jurisdiction $has to suc
jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of sumtohibition or unenforceability without invalidaginthe remaining portions hereof or affec
the validity or enforceability of such provisionamy other jurisdiction.

(9) Governing Law. This First Amendment shall be governed by theslaf the State of New York.

(h) Waiver of Jury Trial THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVE THR RESPECTIVE RIGHTS TO
JURY TRIAL OF ANY CLAIM OR CAUSE OF ACTION BASED UBN OR ARISING OUT OF THIS FIRST AMENDMENT OR ANY C
THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREIN, INCLUDING COMNRACT CLAIMS, TORT CLAIMS, BREACH OF DUT
CLAIMS, AND ALL OTHER COMMON LAW OR STATUTORY CLAIMS.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the parties hereto have caused this First Amentineée executed and delivered by their
respective duly authorized officers as of the diasé¢ written above.

BORROWER:
MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC.
By: /s/ Selwyn Joff

Name: Selwyn Joff
Title: Chief Executive Office




COLLATERAL AGENT :

CERBERUS BUSINESS FINANCE, LLC

By: /s/ Daniel Wolt
Name: Daniel Wol
Title: Presiden




ADMINISTRATIVE AGENT AND LENDER:

PNC BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

By: /s/ Fred Kiehni
Name: Fred Kiehn
Title: Senior Vice Presidel




LENDERS:
CERBERUS ASRS FUNDING LLC

By: /s/ Daniel Wolf
Name: Daniel Wol
Title: Vice Presiden

CERBERUS AUS LEVERED II LP

By: CALIIGP LLC
Its: General Partne

By: /s/ Daniel Wolf
Name: Daniel Wol
Title: Vice Presiden

CERBERUS N-1 FUNDING LLC

By: /s/ Daniel Wolf
Name: Daniel Wol
Title: Vice Presiden

CERBERUS OFFSHORE LEVERED I L.P.

By: COL | GP Inc.
Its: General Partne

By: /s/ Daniel Wolf
Name: Daniel Wol
Title: Vice Presiden

CERBERUS ONSHORE LEVERED Il LLC
By: /s/ Daniel Wolf

Name: Daniel Wol
Title: Vice Presiden




CERBERUS OFFSHORE LEVERED Il LP

By: COL Il GP Inc.
Its: General Partne

By: /s/ Daniel Woll
Name: Daniel Wol
Title: Vice Presiden

CERBERUSNJ CREDIT OPPORTUNITIES FUND, L.P.

By: Cerberus NJ Credit Opportunities GP, L
Its: General Partne

By: /s/ Daniel Woll
Name: Daniel Wol
Title: Senior Managing Directc

CERBERUS ONSHORE Il CLO LLC
By: /s/ Daniel Wolf

Name: Daniel Wol
Title: Vice Presiden




BAWAG P.S.K. Bank fur Arbeit und Wirtschaft
und Osterreichische Postsparkass
Aktiengesellschaft

By:/s/ Dr. Guido Jesta«
Name: Dr. Guido Jesta

By:/s/Eric Sonc
Name: Eric Son




ANNEX |

SCHEDULE 1.01(A)

LENDERS AND LENDERS' REVOLVING CREDIT COMMITMENTS

Lender

Revolving
Credit
Commitment

PNC BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

$ 40,000,00

Total

$ 40,000,00




EXHIBIT 10.63

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 1 , dated as of July 1, 2014 (this “AMENDMENTp the Employment Agreement, dated &
May 18, 2012 (the “EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT"), by anagtween Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. (“COMPANYaNd Selwyn Joffe, ¢
individual residing at 2687 Cordelia Road, Los Alege CA 90049 (“EXECUTIVE”") Capitalized terms used but not defined herein diealt
the meanings ascribed to them in the EMPLOYMENT AKEHMENT.

RECITALS

WHEREAS , the parties wish to amend the EMPLOYMENT AGREEMEN change the SALARY and EMPLOYME!
TERM,;

NOW, THEREFORE , in consideration of the promises contained heagid other good and valuable consideration
receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby ackremged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Section 2 of the EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT is herebyleted in its entirety and is hereby replaced whk
following:

“TERM . EXECUTIVE'S term of employment under this AGREEMNT shall commence on July 1, 2014
and shall continue for a period through and inaigdiuly 1, 2019 (the ‘EMPLOYMENT TERM’), unless
extended in writing by both parties or earlier terated pursuant to the terms and conditions seh for
herein.”

2. Section 5(a) of the EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT is hereasnended by deleting the first sentence thereofis
hereby replaced with the following:

“The COMPANY shall pay EXECUTIVE a base salary (IS®RY’) of Seven Hundred Thousand Dollars
($700,000) per year.”

3. Except as amended by this AMENDMENT, the EMPLOYMENGREEMENT shall remain in full force and effect.

4, This AMENDMENT may be executed by facsimile sigmatuin two or more counterparts, each of which Ishe
deemed an original, but all of which together shalfistitute one and the same instrument.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the undersigned have executed this AMENDMENT fagate first above written.
THE COMPANY :
MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC.
By: /s/ Michael M. Umansk'
Name: Michael M. Umansk
Title: Vice President & General Coun:

EXECUTIVE:

/sl Selwyn Joffe
SELWYN JOFFE




Exhibit 21.1
List of Subsidiaries
MVR Products Pte. Limited, a company organized utigde laws of Singapore
Unijoh Sdn. Bhd., a company organized under the lafAMalaysia
Motorcar Parts de Mexico, S.A. de C.V., a compamyanized under the laws of Mexico
Motorcar Parts of Canada, Inc., a company organineir the laws of Canada

Central Auto Parts Co., Ltd, a company organizedeumhe laws of China




Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference ifdllewing Registration Statements:

Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-114169) pertaining to the Long Term Incentive P

Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-103313) pertaining to the 1994 Stock Option P

Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-144883) pertaining to the 2004 M-Employee Director Stock Option Ple
Registration Statement (Forn-1 No. 33:-190966) of Motorcar Parts of America, Inc., ¢

Registration Statement (Forn-3 No. 33:-195585) of Motorcar Parts of America, I

agrwNE

of our reports dated June 16, 2014, with respetttd@onsolidated financial statements and schexféotorcar Parts of America, Inc. and the
effectiveness of internal control over financigdoeting of Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. includedhis Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the
year ended March 31, 201

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Los Angeles, C/
June 16, 201




Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Selwyn Joffe, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Metr Parts of America, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or emnéttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedoreaused such disclosure controls and procedaites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financigloring, or caused, such internal control overritial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargading the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeabepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentisineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig's internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repod) iflas materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alndave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrand’ Board of Directors (or persons performing theiwaant functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: June 16, 2014 /sl Selwyn Joffe

Selwyn Joffe
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, David Lee, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Metr Parts of America, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or emnéttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedoreaused such disclosure controls and procedaites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financiglorting, or caused, such internal control overritial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and preséanthi report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based upon such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig's internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repod) iflas materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrand’ Board of Directors (or persons performing theiwaant functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: June 16, 2014 /s/ David Lee

David Lee
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 31.3
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Kevin Daly, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Metr Parts of America, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or emnéttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedoreaused such disclosure controls and procedaites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financigloring, or caused, such internal control overritial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargading the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeabepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentisineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based upon such evaluation;
and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig's internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) llas materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alndave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theittemmmittee of registrarg’Board of Directors (or persons performing theiesant functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifrole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: June 16, 2014 /s/ Kevin Daly

Kevin Daly
Chief Accounting Office




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATE OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, CHIEF FINAN CIAL OFFICER AND CHIEF
ACCOUNTING OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Motorcart8af America, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-& the year ended March 31,
2014 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Csion on the date hereof (the “Annual Report"sélwyn Joffe, Chief Executive Officer
of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. ect350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 od#rbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to my
knowledge, that:

1. The Annual Report fully complies with the requirents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securkeshange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Annual Repaitly presents, in all material respects, the faalhcondition and results of operations
of the Company.

/s/ Selwyn Joffe
Selwyn Joffe

Chief Executive Office
June 16, 201

In connection with the Annual Report of Motorcart8af America, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-& the year ended March 31,
2014 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Csion on the date hereof (the “Annual Report"Ravid Lee, Chief Financial Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secti®®d0, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of tHea8as-Oxley Act of 2002, to my
knowledge, that:

1. The Annual Report fully complies with the requirents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securkieshange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Annual Repaitly presents, in all material respects, the faalhcondition and results of operations
of the Company.

/s/ David Lee

David Lee

Chief Financial Office
June 16, 201

In connection with the Annual Report of Motorcart8af America, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-& the year ended March 31,
2014 as filed with the Securities and Exchange C@sion on the date hereof (the “Annual Report”Kéyin Daly, Chief Accounting Officer
of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Bect350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 osérbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to my
knowledge, that:

1. The Annual Report fully complies with the requirents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securkeshange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Annual Repaitly presents, in all material respects, the faalhcondition and results of operations
of the Company.

/sl Kevin Daly

Kevin Daly

Chief Accounting Office
June 16, 201

The foregoing certifications are being furnishedh® Securities and Exchange Commission as palnecdiccompanying report on Form
10-K. A signed original of each of these stateméasbeen provided to Motorcar Parts of America, &md will be retained by Motorcar Parts
of America, Inc. and furnished to the Securitied Bmchange Commission or its staff upon request.




